
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
MARCH 7, 2005 

 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 



TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
Identified below are goals for the City, which have been advanced by the 
governing body; and Agenda items submitted for your consideration are on 
course with these goals. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Minimize cost and increase efficiency of City government. 
2. Retain and attract investment while encouraging redevelopment. 
3. Effectively and professionally communicate internally and externally. 
4. Creatively maintain and improve public infrastructure. 
5. Protect life and property. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
 
 



 
      

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

 
  AGENDA 

March 7, 2005 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers  

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

CALL TO ORDER: 1 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen Oaks Alliance 
Church 1 

ROLL CALL: 1 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 1 

CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

B-1 No Carryover Items 1 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

C-1  No Public Hearings 1 

POSTPONED ITEMS: 1 

D-1 Scheduling of Special Meeting – City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations 1 

CONSENT AGENDA: 2 

E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 2 

E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 2 



E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 2 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 3 

a) National Surveyor’s Week – March 13-19, 2005 .................................................. 3 
b) Recognition of Ruth I. Haugh on the Occasion of Her 90th Birthday ..................... 3 
c) Recognition of Lorraine Dietz on the Occasion of Her 100th Birthday................... 3 

E-4  Application for a new SDM License for Linens n’ Things 3 

E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Topsoil 3 

E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005 4 

E-7  Approval of Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) Amendatory Contract 
05-5032 for Demolition Work – Troy Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver, Rochester 
to Dequindre 4 

E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award: Lowest Bidders Meeting 
Specifications – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 4 

E-9  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Vehicle Graphics 5 

E-10  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Aggregates 5 

E-11  Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Flynn Park Sports 
Lighting 6 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 6 

REGULAR BUSINESS: 6 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Cable Advisory Committee; 
Historic District Commission 6 

F-2 Interagency Agreement – Rouge River National Wet Weather Demonstration 
Project – Round VI-Part B – Detention Pond Retrofits and Best Management 
Practice (BMP) Analysis (RVIB-21) 9 

F-3 Request to Use Veterans’ Plaza for National Day of Prayer Event 9 



F-4 Revisions Concerning Sanctuary Lake Municipal Golf Course 10 

F-5 Schedule a Special/Joint Meeting with City Council and Planning Commission for 
March 28, 2005 to Discuss Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
and Definitions and Provisions 10 

F-6 2005 Magic of Fall – Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees 11 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 11 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 11 

G-2 Green Memorandums: 11 

a) Mission, Vision and Values for Troy Employees................................................. 11 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award – Audit 

Services.............................................................................................................. 11 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape 

Maintenance Services ........................................................................................ 11 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 12 

H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 12 

COUNCIL COMMENTS: 12 

I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 12 

REPORTS: 12 

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 12 

a) Troy Youth Council/Final – January 19, 2005..................................................... 12 
b) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – January 25, 2005.................................. 12 
c) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 1, 2005 .......................... 12 
d) Planning Commission/Final – February 8, 2005 ................................................. 12 
e) Troy Daze Committee/Final – February 8, 2005................................................. 12 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – February 9, 2005 .... 12 
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 15, 2005 .......................................... 12 
h) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – February 15, 2005........................... 12 
i) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – February 22, 2005 ................................ 12 
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – February 23, 2005 ................................................... 12 



J-2 Department Reports:  No Department Reports Submitted 12 

J-3  Letters of Appreciation: 12 

a) Letter to Chief Nelson from Kelly Sigmon, Senior Plan Manager, Royal Oak 
Processing and Distribution Center, United States Postal Service, Thanking 
the Troy Fire Department for Its Role in the Installation of Biohazard Detection 
Equipment .......................................................................................................... 12 

J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 12 

J-5  Calendar 12 

J-6  Nancy Cook v. City of Troy 12 

J-7  Website Updates – E-Agenda Packet Format and Public Hearings 12 

STUDY ITEMS: 12 

K-1  Charnwood Hills Options Relative to Sanitary Sewer Installation 12 

PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 12 

CLOSED SESSION: 13 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 13 

RECESSED 13 

RECONVENED 13 

ADJOURNMENT 13 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 13 

Monday, March 21, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 13 
Monday, March 28, 2005 Regular City Council ..................................................... 13 
Monday, April 04, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 13 
Monday, April 18, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 13 
Monday, April 25, 2005 Regular City Council........................................................ 13 
Monday, May 9, 2005 Regular City Council .......................................................... 13 
Monday, May 16, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 13 



Monday, May 23, 2005 Regular City Council ........................................................ 13 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

CALL TO ORDER: 

INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Pastor Paul Lehman – Glen Oaks 
Alliance Church 

ROLL CALL:  

Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Cristina Broomfield 
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak 
David A. Lambert 
Jeanne M. Stine 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1  No Public Hearings 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Scheduling of Special Meeting – City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations 
 
Postponed Resolution 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That a Special meeting of the Troy City Council be SCHEDULED in the Council 
Boardroom on Monday, March 7, 2005 for the purpose of scheduling a Closed Session at 6:00 
PM for the City Manager’s evaluation and at 6:45 PM for the purpose of the City Attorney’s 
evaluation. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
Proposed Resolution to Amend Resolution by Substitution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session on Monday, April 4, 
2005 at 6:00 PM in the City Council Boardroom, to conduct a personnel evaluation of Troy City 
Manager John Szerlag, pursuant to MCL 15.268 (a).  
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session on Monday, April 4, 
2005 at 6:45 PM in the City Council Boardroom, to conduct a personnel evaluation of Troy City 
Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm, pursuant to MCL 15.268 (a).  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 
motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda 
and have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent 
Agenda shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have 
been heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda 
Item 9 “E”.  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which shall be considered after 
Consent Agenda (E) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03-  
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 28, 2005 at 7:30 PM be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
a) National Surveyor’s Week – March 13-19, 2005  
b) Recognition of Ruth I. Haugh on the Occasion of Her 90th Birthday  
c) Recognition of Lorraine Dietz on the Occasion of Her 100th Birthday 
 
E-4  Application for a new SDM License for Linens n’ Things 
 
a) New License 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from LNT West, Inc., for a new SDM license located at 790 E. 
Big Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan 48083, in Oakland County [MLCC REQ ID# 276831] be 
CONSIDERED for approval. 
 
It is the consensus of this legislative body that the application be recommended “above all 
others” for issuance. 

 
b) Agreement 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy deems it necessary to enter agreements with 
applicants for liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the 
event licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy hereby 
APPROVES an agreement with LNT West, Inc., for a new SDM license located at 790 E. Big 
Beaver Rd., Troy, Michigan 48083, in Oakland County [MLCC REQ ID# 276831] and the Mayor 
and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the document, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Topsoil  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
WHEREAS, On May 24, 2004, a contract to provide one-year requirements of Topsoil with an 
option to renew for one additional year was hereby awarded to the low bidder, Sterling Topsoil 
& Grading, Inc. of Sterling Heights, Michigan (Resolution 2004-05-268-E6), and 
 
WHEREAS, The awarded bidder has agreed to exercise the one-year option to renew under 
the same prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the option to renew the contract is hereby 
EXERCISED with Sterling Topsoil & Grading, Inc. to provide topsoil under the same contract 
prices, terms, and conditions for one-year expiring December 31, 2005. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

 
E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
a) Installation of YIELD Signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott 
 
RESOLVED, that Traffic Control Order #2005-03-________ be ISSUED for installation of 
YIELD signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott. 
 
b) Installation of NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING Signs on South Side of 

Timberview Between Livernois and Millpond 
 
RESOLVED, that Traffic Control Order #2005-03-________ be ISSUED for installation of NO 
STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING signs on the south side of Timberview between Livernois 
and Millpond. 
 
c) Installation of NO PARKING ZONE Signs on the East Side of Millpond, 50 Feet 

North and South of Timberview 
 
RESOLVED, that Traffic Control Order #2005-03-________ be ISSUED for installation of NO 
PARKING ZONE signs on the east side of Millpond, 50 feet north and south of Timberview. 
 
d) Installation of STOP Sign on Timberview at Millpond 
 
RESOLVED, that Traffic Control Order #2005-03-_________be ISSUED for installation of a 
STOP sign on Timberview at Millpond. 
 
E-7  Approval of Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) Amendatory Contract 

05-5032 for Demolition Work – Troy Project No. 01.105.5 – Big Beaver, Rochester 
to Dequindre  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That Amendatory Contract No. 05-5032 to MDOT Contract No. 02-5394 between 
the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation for Demolition Work for Big 
Beaver Road, from Rochester Road to Dequindre Road, Project No. 01.105.5, is hereby 
APPROVED at an estimated cost to the City of Troy not to exceed $30,500, and the Mayor and 
City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award: Lowest Bidders Meeting 

Specifications – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

 
RESOLVED, That contracts to provide for one (1) year requirements of lawn and  
yard services for the Home Chore Program are hereby AWARDED to the lowest acceptable 
bidders meeting specifications, G.D.M. Lawn Care for Proposal A, and Ground EFX Land & 
Lawn, LLC for Proposal B, for an estimated cost of $33,810.00 and $9,702.00 respectfully, at 
unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened January 25, 2005, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of December 31, 
2005.  
  
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor’s submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including bonds, insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements. 
 
E-9  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Vehicle Graphics  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That a two-year contract to provide Police and Fire Departments with vehicle 
graphic material and/or installation, with an option to renew for two additional years, is hereby 
AWARDED to the low total bidder, Majik Graphics Inc. of Clinton Township, MI at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened November 5, 2004, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED 
to the original Minutes of this meeting, with a contract expiration of February 28, 2007.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That bids received for Item 1b., installation of letters and 
numbers only one (1) police undercover vehicle and Item #3., the purchase of Graphics only for 
the Motor Pool are hereby REJECTED and prices can be obtained through an informal quote 
process following standard purchasing procedures.    
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
E-10  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Options – Aggregates  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
WHEREAS, On April 19, 2004, one-year contracts for Aggregates with an option to renew for 
one additional year was awarded to low bidders, Tri-City Aggregates, Inc (Resolution #2004-04-
215-E5) and subsequently to United Soils, Inc as a result of a rescind/re-award on June 21, 
2004 (Resolution #2004-06-346) and; 
 
WHEREAS, Both awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the option to renew under the same 
unit prices, terms, and conditions; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the options to renew the contracts are hereby 
EXERCISED with Tri-City Aggregates, Inc. and United Soils, Inc. for Aggregates under the 
same contract prices, terms, and conditions expiring April 30, 2006. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

 
E-11  Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids – Flynn Park Sports 

Lighting  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
 
RESOLVED, That bids received to provide all labor, materials, and equipment to remove 
existing lighting and install a new sport lighting system on four ball diamonds at Flynn Park, 
which opened February 2, 2005, are hereby REJECTED. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
Public comment limited to items not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules of 
Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 
the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 11“F” of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. Council requests that if you do have a 
question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown 
Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Cable Advisory Committee; 
Historic District Commission 

 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed board and committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council.  Council members submit recommendations 
for appointment. When the number of submitted names exceed the number of positions to be 
filled, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required (current process of appointing).  Any 
board or commission with remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the next 
Regular City Council Meeting Agenda.  
 
The following boards and committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
(a)  Mayoral Appointments 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE MAYOR with 
COUNCIL APPROVAL to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor, Council Approval (13) – 4 years 
 
 Term expires 07-01-2005 (Student) 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Culpepper, Michael W 09/30/08 
Frankel, Stuart 09/30/07 
Hay, David R 09/30/07 
Hodges, Michele 09/30/05 
Kennis, William 09/30/06 
Kiriluk, Alan M 09/30/08 
MacLeish, Daniel 09/30/05 
Price, Carol A 09/30/07 
Reschke, Ernest C 09/30/06 
Schilling, Louise E 09/30/08 
Schroeder, Douglas J 09/30/06 
Weiss, Harvey 09/30/05 
Wong, Fred (Student) 07/01/04 
York, G Thomas 09/30/08 
 
INTERESTED STUDENT APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
None on File   
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
(b)  City Council Appointments 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the following persons are hereby APPOINTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Cable Advisory Committee 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years 
 
 Term expires 02-28-2008 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Bixby, Jerry L 02-28-06 
Butt, Shazad 11-30-05 
Hughes, Richard 02-28-06 
Marinos, Penny 02-28-07 
Manzon, Alan 09-30-06 
Lin, Fan (Student) 07-01-05 
Voigt, W Kent 02-28-07 
Wehrung, Bryan H 02-28-05 
  
INTERESTED APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Godlewski, W S 12/28/01-07/01/03- 

07/2005 
01/07/02- 
07/07/03 

Kuschinsky, Dick 10/11/01-06/19/03 
06/2005 

11/05/01 

Payne, Timothy P 02/25/04-02/2006 03/08/04 
Powers, Brian M 10/15/02-10/2004 10/21/02 
Pritzlaff, Mark 04/17/03-04/2005 04/28/03 
Shier, Frank 02/18/03-02/2005 03/03/03 
Solomon, Mark R 01/21/05 02/07/05 
Victor, Robert 06/03/03-06/2005 02/02/04 
Wattles, Brian J 07/10/01 07/23/01 
Weisgerber, William 07/14/03-07/2005 07/21/03 
Wheeler, Nancy 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
   
  
Historic District Commission One member must be an architect. 
Appointed by Council (7) – 3 years Two members-Historical Society recommendations. 
 One member – Historical Commission recommendation. 
 
  Term expires 03-01-08 
 

(Historical Commission) Term expires 03-01-08 
 

(Historical Society) Term expires 03-01-08 
 
CURRENT MEMBERS 
NAME TERM EXPIRES 
Marjorie A. Biglin 03/01/07 
Wilson Deane Blythe (Does not seek reappointment) 03/01/05 
Barbara Chambers (Historical Commission) 03/01/05 
Robert Hudson 05/15/06 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Paul C. Lin (Architect) 05/15/06 
Ann Partlan (Historical Society) 03/01/05 
Muriel Rounds 05/15/06 
Vilin Zhang (Student) 07/01/05 
 
INTERESTED  APPLICANTS 
NAME DATE APPLIED DATE SENT TO COUNCIL 
Kerry S. Krivoshein 08/12/99-06/14/01-05/2003 07/09/01 
Al Petrulis 02/11/03-07/31/03-07/2005 02/17/03-08/18/03 
Nancy Wheeler 03/08/04-03/2006 04/12/04 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-2 Interagency Agreement – Rouge River National Wet Weather Demonstration 

Project – Round VI-Part B – Detention Pond Retrofits and Best Management 
Practice (BMP) Analysis (RVIB-21) 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the City enter into an agreement with the Wayne County Department of 
Environment/Rouge River National Wet Weather Demonstration Project for a demonstration 
project of Detention Pond Retrofits and Best Management Practice (BMP) Analysis, Project No. 
05.302.6 with the City share being $305,000 of the total $610,000 project cost.  The City of 
Troy’s share would be funded by the Capital Drains account in the amount of $255,000 plus an 
estimated $50,000 staff cost soft match. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the 
agreement, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to and made a part of the original minutes of 
this meeting.  
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-3 Request to Use Veterans’ Plaza for National Day of Prayer Event 
 
Suggested Resolutions as Requested by Petitioner: 
 
a) Suggested Resolution to Hold a National Day of Prayer-Judeo-Christian 

Observance on May 5, 2005 at the Troy Veteran’s Plaza 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS the request of Lori Wagner, National Day 
of Prayer Coordinator for the City of Troy’s National Day of Prayer Task Force, to hold National 
Day of Prayer-Judeo-Christian observance at the Troy Veteran’s Plaza on Thursday, May 5, 
2005 from 12:00 PM until 1:00 PM. 
 
b) Suggested Resolution to Install a Banner at 500 W. Big Beaver 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS the request from Lori Wagner, National 
Day of Prayer Coordinator for the City of Troy’s National Day of Prayer Task Force, to install a 3 
foot x 10 foot vinyl banner which reads “Annual National Day of Prayer – 1st Thursday of May” 
at 500 W. Big Beaver in accordance with Section 14.00 of the Sign Ordinance of the City of 
Troy. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-4 Revisions Concerning Sanctuary Lake Municipal Golf Course 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That an ordinance amendment to Chapter 30 – Troy Municipal Golf Course, is 
hereby ADOPTED as recommended by the City Administration.  A copy of this ordinance shall 
be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting.  
 
RESOLVED, That the Addendum to the Agreement – Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course between the City of Troy and Emerald Services I, L.L.C. is hereby APPROVED, the 
Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to execute the documents, and a copy shall be 
ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-5 Schedule a Special/Joint Meeting with City Council and Planning Commission for 

March 28, 2005 to Discuss Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-A) – 
Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings 
and Definitions and Provisions 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, City Council referred ZOTA 215-A to the Planning Commission to address garage 
door height, footprint ratios, further rationale of the number of detached buildings, and that staff 
make changes in regard to greenhouses; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission and City Management conducted an interest-based 
approach to identify common interests related to garage/accessory structure door heights, and 
determined that different there are different interests; 
 
WHEREAS, The Planning Commission and City Management could not develop a unified 
recommendation related to garage/accessory structure door heights. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That a Joint City Council and Planning Commission 
Special Meeting be SCHEDULED for March 28, 2005 at 7:30 PM at the Fire/Police Training 
Center, 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan.  The purpose of the meeting is to conduct an interest-
based approach to determine the interests of the City Council, Planning Commission and City 
Management; with the overall purpose of providing direction to both the Planning Commission 
and City Management in the process of formulating a ZOTA 215-A recommendation to City 
Council that addresses size/footprint of accessory structures, garage door heights and related 
issues. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
F-6 2005 Magic of Fall – Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2005-03- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy Daze/Magic of Fall schedule and fees are hereby APPROVED as 
requested by the Troy Daze Advisory Committee and a copy shall be ATTACHED to and made 
a part of the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:   
a) Mission, Vision and Values for Troy Employees 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award – Audit Services  
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance 

Services  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
I-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 
REPORTS:   
J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Troy Youth Council/Final – January 19, 2005  
b) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – January 25, 2005 
c) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 1, 2005 
d) Planning Commission/Final – February 8, 2005  
e) Troy Daze Committee/Final – February 8, 2005 
f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – February 9, 2005  
g) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 15, 2005 
h) Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – February 15, 2005  
i) Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – February 22, 2005 
j) Troy Youth Council/Draft – February 23, 2005 
 

J-2 Department Reports:  No Department Reports Submitted 
  
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Chief Nelson from Kelly Sigmon, Senior Plan Manager, Royal Oak Processing 

and Distribution Center, United States Postal Service, Thanking the Troy Fire 
Department for Its Role in the Installation of Biohazard Detection Equipment 

 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 
 
J-6  Nancy Cook v. City of Troy 
 
J-7  Website Updates – E-Agenda Packet Format and Public Hearings 
 
 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  Charnwood Hills Options Relative to Sanitary Sewer Installation 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 
Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 
Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA March 7, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

the Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, 
during the Public Comment section under item 18 of the agenda. Other than asking 
questions for the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt 
or debate with members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is 
brought back to the Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak 
only by invitation by Council, through the Chair. City Council requests that if you do 
have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you 
are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved 
satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
 
 
CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
 
RECESSED 
 
RECONVENED 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
 
 
 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 

Monday, March 21, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 28, 2005........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 04, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 18, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 25, 2005 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 9, 2005................................................................ Regular City Council 
Monday, May 16, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, May 23, 2005.............................................................. Regular City Council 

 



TO: Honorable Troy City Council Members   
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: March 3, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Evaluations of City Manager and City Attorney   
 

 
 

 
At the February 28, 2005 meeting, City Council discussed revisions 

to the evaluation process for the City Manager and the City Attorney.  
Council’s final resolution was to place the scheduling of our evaluations on 
the March 7, 2005 City Council meeting.  In addition, City Council directed 
us to submit the names of three government attorneys, who could 
potentially serve as legal counsel during the evaluations.   

 
We are requesting that our performance evaluations be held in 

closed session, as allowed by the Open Meetings Act (MCL 15.268 (a)).  
This statutory opportunity to conduct personnel evaluations in a closed 
session was a subsequent addition to the Open Meetings Act, and was 
enacted to allow for candor in the evaluation process.  It reflects the 
evaluation process that we utilize for our employees, and that is 
universally accepted practice.  Although City Council does have the ability 
to retain an attorney to be present in the evaluations, the pronouncement 
of any weaknesses in our relationships may have a detrimental impact on 
our relationships or effectiveness in the close knit municipal community.       

   
Any decision concerning our employment, including a salary 

increase, will be a regular City Council agenda item, and will be discussed 
in an open session of Troy City Council.  It is for this reason that we 
request that City Council not incur additional expenses in retaining an 
attorney for the evaluation process.  

 
If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us 

know.   
 
   
 

   
   

 
    

bittnera
Text Box
D-01



 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Date:  March 2, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Peggy E. Clifton, Human Resources Director 
 
Subject: City Manager and City Attorney Pay Increases 
 
 
 
You have asked that I consider a methodology that might be proposed to City Council to assist 
in their deliberations over pay increases for City Manager and City Attorney.   
 
Let me first indicate that you and the City Attorney, both of whom are Exempt employees, are 
the only two employees who did not receive a pay increase for fiscal year 2004/05.  Given that 
both positions are Exempt classifications in our Classification Plan, my recommendation is to 
administer pay increases for these positions in the same way that they are administered for 
other Exempt personnel.  For instance, in July 2004, all classified and exempt employees who 
received satisfactory performance evaluations received a salary increase of 2% of base salary, 
plus up to an additional 1% for exceptional performance.  This methodology was previously 
approved by City Council on June 21, 2004. 
 
Using this methodology for future salary adjustments would provide consistency in the pay plan 
administration for all employees, and is defensible in light of the relationship between salary 
increase and performance.  Furthermore, it does not impact nor set the tone for fiscal year 2005 
pay increases since it deals only with the increases that were already approved by Council. 
 
Please advise if I can provide additional information. 
 
 
PEC/bjm/PC05M.014 
 
 
  cc: Lori Grigg-Bluhm, City Attorney 

Human Resources Department 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 1 - 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, February 28, 2005, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

Reverend Dr. J. Harold Ellens – First Presbyterian Church gave the Invocation and the Pledge 
of Allegiance to the Flag was given. 

ROLL CALL 

PRESENT: Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin E. Beltramini (Absent) 
Cristina Broomfield  
David Eisenbacher 
Martin F. Howrylak  
David A. Lambert  
Jeanne M. Stine 

Resolution to Excuse Council Member Beltramini     
 
Resolution #2005-02-090 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Council Member Beltramini’s absence at the Regular City Council meeting of 
February 28, 2005 is EXCUSED due to being out of the County. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent:  Beltramini    
 

CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations 
 
CARRYOVER ITEMS:  

B-1 No Carryover Items 
 
PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

C-1 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 5839 John R  
 
Resolution 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Lambert  
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)"; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and the property 
consists of 4.5 acres, is situated on a mile road, and is not located in a residentially 
zoned district; and that the petitioner shall plant evergreen trees be planted on the south 
side of the property in front of the vehicle or park the vehicle further back on the 
property; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Nashat and Wafaa Gatie, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for two years. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-02-091 
Moved by Eisenbacher   
Seconded by Broomfield   
  
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “and that the petitioner shall 
plant evergreen trees be planted on the south side of the property in front of the vehicle or park 
the vehicle further back on the property” and INSERTING, “CONTINGENT upon the petitioner 
planting at least three (3) 4-6’ conifers to the south side of the proposed parking location within 
ninety (90) days.” AFTER “two years”.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 3 - 

Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Stine, Schilling  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-02-092 
Moved by Eisenbacher    
Seconded by Lambert    
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)”; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 

D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 
commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and the property 
consists of 4.5 acres, is situated on a mile road, and is not located in a residentially 
zoned district; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Nashat and Wafaa Gatie, for 
waiver of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor 
parking of a Chevrolet cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for two years 
CONTINGENT upon the petitioner planting at least three (3) 4-6’ conifers to the south side of 
the proposed parking location within ninety (90) days. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 4 - 

Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Broomfield  
No: Stine, Schilling  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-2 Commercial Vehicle Appeal – 3463 Crooks Road 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)"; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following condition, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Timothy Clyne, for waiver 
of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
GMC cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for 1 year.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 5 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-02-093 
Moved by Lambert   
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING, “1 year” and INSERTING, “9 
months”. 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Lambert, Eisenbacher 
No: Stine, Schilling, Broomfield  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-02-094 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)"; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s); and 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 6 - 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Timothy Clyne, for waiver 
of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
GMC cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for 1 year.  
 
Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak  
No: Lambert, Stine, Schilling  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Resolution 
 
Resolution #2005-02-095 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Lambert   
 
WHEREAS, Section 44.02.02 of Chapter 39, Zoning, of the Code of the City of Troy provides 
that actions to grant appeals to the restrictions on outdoor parking of commercial vehicles in 
residential districts pursuant to Section 40.66.00 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy 
"shall be based upon at least one of the following findings by the City Council: 
 
A. The occurrence of the subject commercial vehicle on the residential site involved is 

compelled by parties other than the owner or occupant of the subject residential site (e.g. 
employer). 

 
B. Efforts by the applicant have determined that there are no reasonable or feasible 

alternative locations for the parking of the subject commercial vehicle. 
 
C. A garage or accessory building on the subject residential site cannot accommodate, or 

cannot reasonably be constructed or modified to accommodate, the subject commercial 
vehicle. 

 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy has found that the petitioner has demonstrated 
the presence of the following conditions, justifying the granting of a variance: 
 
D. The location available on the residential site for the outdoor parking of the subject 

commercial vehicle is adequate to provide for such parking in a manner which will not 
negatively impact adjacent residential properties, and will not negatively impact 
pedestrian and vehicular movement along the frontage street(s)."; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the request from Mr. Timothy Clyne, for waiver 
of Chapter 39, Section 40.66.00, of the Code of the City of Troy, to permit outdoor parking of a 
GMC cube van in a residential district is hereby APPROVED for 6 months. 
  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 7 - 

Yes: Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert  
No: Stine, Schilling  
Absent: Beltramini  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C-3 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 04.20 Definitions, Section 22.30 

Uses Permitted Subject to Special Use Approval – B-3 District, Section 28.25 
Conditional Uses Permitted – M-1 District (ZOTA 209) 

 
Resolution #2005-02-096 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That Article IV (Definitions), Article XXII (B-3 District), and Article XXVIII (M-1 
District) of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 209), dated December 7, 2004, as recommended 
by the Planning Commission and City Management. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini  
 
C-4 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment for Section 03.21, Procedure (ZOTA 210) 
 
Resolution #2005-02-097 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Howrylak  
 
RESOLVED, That Article III (Applications and Procedures), of the City of Troy Zoning Ordinance, 
be AMENDED to read as written in the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 
210), dated December 7, 2004, as recommended by the Planning Commission and City 
Management. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
POSTPONED ITEMS:  

D-1 Scheduling of Study Session for the Purpose of Discussing an Ethics Policy 
 
Postponed Resolution  
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 8 - 

RESOLVED, That a Study session is SCHEDULED, for the purpose of discussing an ethics 
policy, in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on 
Wednesday, March 2, 2005 at 7:30 p.m.  
 
Vote on Resolution to Substitute  
 
Resolution #2005-02-098 
Moved by Howrylak  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 
RESOLVED, That the Resolution be STRICKEN in its entirety and SUBSTITUTED by 
INSERTING: 
 
“RESOLVED, That three (3) Special/Study meetings to review the proposed 2005/06 Budget 
are SCHEDULED in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, 
Michigan on the following dates: 
 
Monday, April 25, 2005 at 6:30 PM 
Monday, May 2, 2005 at 6:30 PM 
Saturday, May 7, 2005 at 9:00 AM; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a Special/Study meeting is SCHEDULED, for the purpose 
of discussing an ethics policy, in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, 
Troy, Michigan on Tuesday, May 10, 2005 at 7:30 p.m.“ 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
Vote on Resolution as Substituted 
 
Resolution #2005-02-099 
Moved by Broomfield  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That three (3) Special/Study meetings to review the proposed 2005/06 budget are 
SCHEDULED in the Council Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan 
on the following dates: 
 
Monday, April 25, 2005 at 6:30 PM 
Monday, May 2, 2005 at 6:30 PM 
Saturday, May 7, 2005 at 9:00 AM; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That a Special/Study meeting is SCHEDULED, in the Council 
Boardroom of Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Tuesday, May 10, 2005 at 
7:30 p.m.  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 9 - 

Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
D-2 Mayor Louise Schilling’s Request to Discuss Modification of the April 19, 2004 

Resolution Regarding Campaign Finance Statements 
 
Resolution  
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has recently discussed the need for more ethical behavior 
from members of the City Council. 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan currently posts on their web site the candidate committee 
campaign finance reports for all candidates that run for State office. 
 
WHEREAS, All local election Campaign Finance Act required campaign statements are 
available for viewing by the public at the Oakland County Clerk’s Office. 
 
WHEREAS, This Council wishes to maintain an open and honest relationship with all residents 
and businesses in Troy. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That ALL committees; candidate committees, independent 
committees, and Political Action Committees (PACs) required to file Candidate Campaign 
Finance statements with the Oakland County Clerk’s office trying to influence a political 
outcome of a Troy City election be REQUIRED to have their campaign finance reports posted 
on the City’s web site; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy WILL POST on its web site, the campaign 
finance reports from ALL committees; candidate committees, independent committees, and 
Political Action Committees (PACs) who have spent money fostering a candidacy for local office 
and/or ballot question on the City of Troy ballot for a time no less than 6 (six) years; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That pre- and post-election statements be UPDATED seven (7)  
days after the initial filing and all statements, until links can be made by the City Clerk on the 
last business day of the month as necessary; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That when the County of Oakland electronically posts candidate 
campaign committee finance forms on its web site, that the City of Troy PROVIDE a link to that 
location from its web site. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Amend 
 
Resolution #2005-02-100 
Moved by Lambert  
Seconded by Eisenbacher  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 10 - 

RESOLVED, That the Resolution be AMENDED by STRIKING “THEREFORE, BE IT 
RESOLVED, That ALL committees; candidate committees, independent committees, and 
Political Action Committees (PACs) required to file Candidate Campaign Finance statements 
with the Oakland County Clerk’s office trying to influence a political outcome of a Troy City 
election be REQUIRED to have their campaign finance reports posted on the City’s web site” 
and INSERTING, ”THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk SHALL obtain copies 
of Campaign Finance Reports for all candidate committees, independent committees, and 
Political Action Committees required to file Campaign Finance statements with the Oakland 
County Clerk’s office that are trying to influence the outcome of a Troy City election and that the 
City Clerk POST the Campaign Finance reports on the City’s web site” and FURTHER 
AMENDED by INSERTING, “and provide for a link to the Secretary of State’s campaign 
website” AFTER “that the City of Troy PROVIDE a link to that location from its web site“ in the 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED.  
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2005-02-101 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has recently discussed the need for more ethical behavior 
from members of the City Council. 
 
WHEREAS, The State of Michigan currently posts on their web site the candidate committee 
campaign finance reports for all candidates that run for State office. 
 
WHEREAS, All local election Campaign Finance Act required campaign statements are 
available for viewing by the public at the Oakland County Clerk’s Office. 
 
WHEREAS, This Council wishes to maintain an open and honest relationship with all residents 
and businesses in Troy. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Clerk SHALL obtain copies of Campaign 
Finance Reports for all candidate committees, independent committees, and Political Action 
Committees required to file Campaign Finance statements with the Oakland County Clerk’s 
office that are trying to influence the outcome of a Troy City election and that the City Clerk 
POST the Campaign Finance reports on the City’s web site; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City of Troy WILL POST on its web site, the campaign 
finance reports from ALL committees; candidate committees, independent committees, and 
Political Action Committees (PACs) who have spent money fostering a candidacy for local office 
and/or ballot question on the City of Troy ballot for a time no less than 6 (six) years; and   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 11 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That pre- and post-election statements be UPDATED seven (7) 
days after the initial filing and all statements, until links can be made by the City Clerk on the 
last business day of the month as necessary; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That when the County of Oakland electronically posts candidate 
campaign committee finance forms on its web site, that the City of Troy PROVIDE a link to that 
location from its web site and PROVIDE for a link to the Secretary of State’s campaign website. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:13 p.m. 
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 9:23 p.m. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2005-02-102 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Stine  
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council and/or the Public 
 
E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2005-02-102-E-2 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the Regular Meeting-Liquor Violation Hearings of February 
16, 2005 and the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February 21, 2005 at 7:30 PM be 
APPROVED as submitted. 
 
E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamation: None Submitted 
 
E-4  Approval to Pay Relocation Claim – Maurice David Freed-O’Rilley Building – 2780 

Rochester Road 
 
Resolution #2005-02-102-E-4 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 12 - 

RESOLVED, That as required by Michigan Laws and Federal Guidelines, the City Council of 
the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES payment for relocation benefits in the amount of 
$16,640.00, to Maurice David Freed on behalf of Freed Agency, Lawyer’s Help Investigations, 
O’Rilley Investment, MDF, PLLC, and CMI Educational & Brokerage Services. 
 
E-5  Temporary Sales Trailer – Weston Downs Condominiums 
 
Resolution #2005-02-102-E-5 
 
RESOLVED, That the request from Joseph Maniaci representing Mondrian Properties for the 
placement of a temporary office trailer on the site of the Weston Downs Condominium 
Development, is hereby APPROVED for a twelve month period in accordance with Chapter 47, 
House Trailers and Trailer Courts, Section 6.41(3), of the Code of the City of Troy. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Limited to Items Not on the Agenda 
 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 

F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: None; b) City 
Council Appointments: None 

MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submitted 
 
G-2 Green Memorandums:  No Memorandums Submitted 
  
COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City 
Council Members for Placement on the Agenda 
 
H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced 
 
COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

I-1  Scheduling of Special Meeting – City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Broomfield  
 
RESOLVED, That a Special meeting of the Troy City Council be SCHEDULED in the Council 
Boardroom on Monday, March 7, 2005 for the purpose of scheduling a Closed Session at 6:00 
P.M. for the City Manager’s evaluation and at 6:45 P.M. for the purpose of the City Attorney’s 
evaluation. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 13 - 

Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure 
 
Resolution #2005-02-103 
Moved by Schilling  
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS their Rules of Procedure, in 
accordance with Article 22 – Suspend Rules, to discuss and take action on agenda item, 
Scheduling of Special Meeting – City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations, under Article 15 - 
Council Comments. 
 
Yes: All-6  
No: None 
Absent: Beltramini 
 
Vote on Resolution to Postpone 
 
Resolution #2005-02-104 
Moved by Howrylak   
Seconded by Lambert   
 
RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the Scheduling of Special 
Meeting – City Manager and City Attorney Evaluations until the Regular City Council Meeting 
scheduled for Monday, March 7, 2005 at 7:30 P.M. and DIRECTS the City Manager and the 
City Attorney to put forward a listing of three independent outside legal counsel acceptable to 
them for their evaluations during Closed Session. 
 
Yes: Eisenbacher, Howrylak, Lambert, Stine  
No: Schilling, Broomfield  
Absent: Beltramini 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
REPORTS:   

J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Traffic Committee/Final – July 21, 2004 
b) Planning Commission/Final – January 11, 2005 
c) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – January 12, 2005 
d) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – January 25, 2005  
e) Election Commission/Final – January 26, 2005 
f) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – February 1, 2005  
g) Planning Commission/Draft – February 8, 2005  
h) Election Commission/Draft – February 23, 2005 

Noted and Filed 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 14 - 

J-2 Department Reports:   
a) Southeastern Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority (SOCRRA) Quarterly 

Report – January 2005   
b) 2004 Police Department Calls for Service  
c) Report on Council Member Attendance of Council Meetings as Requested by Mayor 

Louise Schilling 
Noted and Filed 

 
J-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter to Brian Stoutenburg from Ruben Meyer, Thanking Him for Planning the Library’s 

Creative Courses, and Thanking Mary Ann Wehler and Iris Underwood for Conducting 
the Writing Courses 

b) Letter to Chief Craft from Kevin Sagan, Chief of Police of Madison Heights, Thanking 
Sergeant Don Ostrowski for His Presentation, “Incident Response to Terrorist Bombings” 

c) Letter to Chief Craft from David Trahan, Thanking Officer Jim Feld for His Assistance 
with a Situation  

d) Letter to Lindsey Duvall and Nathan Madak, Library Assistants, from Dr. Katter Thanking 
Them for Their Assistance in the Tech Room of the Troy Public Library’s Adult Services 
Section  

e) Letter to the Troy Water Department from John Stier, Thanking Teresa Shepard and 
Dean Bise for Their Assistance in Handling His Plumbing Repair Issue 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
J-5  Calendar 

Noted and Filed 
 
J-6  Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 

40.55.00-40.59.00, Pertaining to Accessory Buildings Definitions and Provisions 
Noted and Filed 

 
STUDY ITEMS:  
 
K-1  No Study Items Submitted 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Address of “K” Items 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Draft February 28, 2005 
 

- 15 - 

CLOSED SESSION: 

L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested 
 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 10:07 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
  

 
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 

City Clerk 
 



 PROCLAMATION 
NATIONAL SURVEYOR’S WEEK 

MARCH 13-19, 2005 
  
WHEREAS, Great American leaders like presidents Washington, Jefferson and Lincoln were 
surveyors during their lifetimes, making important land decisions that would forever shape our 
country; and 
 
WHEREAS, Today’s surveyors follow the standards of diligence, service and ethics which were set 
up by our nation’s early leaders; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Professional Land Surveyors of the United States alone possess the expertise 
required to research, gather, and analyze data for the retracement and establishment of the property 
boundaries so vital to our system of land ownership; and 
 
WHEREAS, The expertise of the Professional Land Surveyor is obtained through a combination of 
education and experience over a career spanning many years in the classroom, the field, and the 
office.  
 
WHEREAS, The continual advancements in instrumentation have required surveyors not only to be 
able to understand and implement the methods of the past, but also to learn about and employ space 
age technology in finding solutions to the challenges they face; and  
 
WHEREAS, Surveyors play an important role in protecting private ownership rights and working with 
all levels of government. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That March 13-19, 2005 is hereby proclaimed as National 
Surveyor’s Week in the City of Troy. 
 
Signed this 7th day of March 2005. 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-03a



 
 
 

PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF RUTH I. HAUGH 

ON THE OCCASION OF HER 90th BIRTHDAY 
 

WHEREAS, Today we gather to honor Ruth I. Haugh on the occasion of her 90th birthday; and  
 
WHEREAS, On March 6, 1915, Ruth was born in Cincinnati, Ohio where she grew up as one of five children; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Ruth married her husband Cecil E. Haugh in February of 1944 and raised three children 
together, Thomas, Barbara and William; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ruth has lived at the Somerset Apartments in Troy for the past thirty years; and 
 
WHEREAS, Four grandchildren, Kristin, Katherine, David and Jessica make Ruth a happy grandmother; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ruth is active in her church community at St. Alan’s Catholic Church; and 
 
WHEREAS, An employee at J.L. Hudson at Northland for over twenty years, Ruth is now enjoying her golden 
years doing hobbies like needlepoint, especially handmade Christmas ornaments as gifts for the family; and 
 
WHEREAS, On March 6, 2005, family and friends will join with Ruth in Celebration of her 90th Birthday; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ruth is honored and respected by all for the many contributions to her family, her community and 
her positive outlook on life. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy congratulate Ruth I. Haugh 
on the occasion of her 90th birthday; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
Ruth for many more healthy and happy years. 
 
Presented this 6th day of March 2005. 

bittnera
Text Box
E-03b



 
 

PROCLAMATION 
IN RECOGNITION OF LORRAINE DIETZ 

ON THE OCCASION OF HER 100th BIRTHDAY 
 
WHEREAS, Today we gather to honor Lorraine Dietz on the occasion of her 100th birthday; and  
 
WHEREAS, On March 15, 1905 Lorraine Cunningham entered the world, making her parents very happy in 
Buffalo, New York; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lorraine married her husband George Dietz on June 29, 1929 and they shared in 71 years of 
marriage.  Together they raised six children, George, Gerald, John, Anthony, Paul and Lori; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lorraine and George moved their family to the City of Troy in 1970; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Dietz children have given Lorraine 29 grandchildren and 41 great grandchildren; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lorraine attends church every day at St. Alan’s Catholic Church, and her other interests include 
meeting friends for lunch at the Community Center, taking chair exercise classes twice a week, and attending 
harmonica concerts; and 
 
WHEREAS, Believing that “it is never too late to learn,” Lorraine learned how to play golf at age 65 with her 
husband and children and enjoyed playing the game for over 30 years; and 
 
WHEREAS, On March 6, 2005, family and friends will join in celebration of Lorraine’s 100th Birthday; and 
 
WHEREAS, Lorraine is honored and respected by all for the many contributions to her family, her community 
and her positive outlook on life. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Troy congratulate Lorraine Dietz 
on the occasion of her 100th birthday; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council and all of Troy’s residents extend best wishes to 
Lorraine for many more healthy and happy years. 
 
Presented this 6th day of March 2005. 

bittnera
Text Box
E-03c



 
 

February 24, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:   Mr. John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Charles Craft, Chief of Police 

Gary Mayer, Police Captain 
Thomas Gordon, Police Sergeant 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Application for a new SDM license for Linens n’ Things 
  
 
 
LNT West, INC., requests a new SDM license to be located at 790 E. Big Beaver, Troy, MI 
48083, Oakland County.   
 
Linens n’ Things is a nationwide store chain specializing in household items.  In an attempt to 
offer their customers a “one-stop shopping” opportunity, they are requesting an SDM license 
which would allow them to sell beer and wine for off-premise consumption.  They will be 
increasing their specialty food inventory to include items that would normally be included in a gift 
basket.   
 
The store will be training all employees through the TIPS program, and will add a machine to 
their cash registers requiring that a driver’s license be swiped.  There are five stores in Michigan 
that have requested SDM licenses. 
   
The police department has no objection to this request.  
 
 
 
 
TJG/tjg 

bittnera
Text Box
E-04













LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                    February 14, 2005 
 

 
A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, February 14, 
2005 in Conference Room C of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Committee 
member Henry K. Allemon called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
  
 
ROLL CALL: 
 
  PRESENT: Henry W. Allemon 
    Alex Bennett 
    W. Stan Godlewski 
    James R. Peard 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
    Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
    Sergeant Thomas J. Gordon 
    Pat Gladysz 
 
  ABSENT: Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
    Patrick C. Hall 
 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Members Ehlert and Hall 
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-001 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that the absence of Committee members Ehlert and Hall at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of February 14, 2005 BE EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  5  
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 13, 2004 Meeting  
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-002 
Moved by Allemon 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, that the Minutes of the December 13, 2004 meeting of the Liquor Advisory 
Committee be approved. 

Page 1 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                    February 14, 2005 
 

 
Yes:  5  
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
_____________________________________________________________________  
 
Agenda Items: 
 
1.   LNT WEST, INC., requests a new SDM license to be located at 790 E. Big 

Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276831]     
Linens n’ Things 

 
 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Kelly Allen and Laura Peters of 
Adkison, Need & Allen law firm. 
 
Linens n’ Things is a nationwide department store chain specializing in household items. 
 In an attempt to offer their customers a “one-stop shopping” opportunity, they are 
requesting a SDM license which will allow them to sell beer and wine for off-premise 
consumption.  The stores will also be increasing their specialty food inventory to include 
items that would normally be included in a gift basket.  They will train all employees 
through the TIPS program and will update their cash registers to include a machine that 
will require the driver’s license of the customer be swiped before the alcohol purchase 
can be completed.  There are currently five stores in Michigan where the SDM license 
has been requested. 
 
Resolution #LC2005-02-003 
Moved by Peard 
Seconded by Bennett 
 
RESOLVED, that LNT WEST, INC., be granted a new SDM license to be located at 790 
E. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County.  [MLCC REQ ID# 276831]      
 
Yes:  5 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert, Hall 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT                    February 14, 2005 
 

 
The meeting adjourned at 7:27 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Henry W. Allemon 
 
 
 
      __________________________________ 
      Patricia A. Gladysz, Office Assistant II 

Page 3 of 3 



Liquor Control Commission  13 
(3) "Professional account" means an account established for a person by a class C licensee or 
tavern licensee whose major business is the sale of food, by which the licensee extends credit 
to the person for not more than 30 days. 
(4) "Residence" means the premises in which a person resides permanently. 
(5) "Retailer" means a person licensed by the commission who sells to the consumer in 
accordance with rules promulgated by the commission. 
(6) "Sacramental wine" means wine containing not more than 24% of alcohol by volume which is 
used for sacramental purposes. 
(7) "Sale" includes the exchange, barter, traffic, furnishing, or giving away of alcoholic liquor. In 
the case of a sale in which a shipment or delivery of alcoholic liquor is made by a common or 
other carrier, the sale of the alcoholic liquor is considered to be made in the county within which 
the delivery of the alcoholic liquor is made by that carrier to the consignee or his or her agent or 
employee, and venue for the prosecution for that sale may be in the county or city where the 
seller resides or from which the shipment is made or at the place of delivery. 
(8) "School" includes buildings used for school purposes to provide instruction to children in 
grades kindergarten through 12, when that instruction is provided by a public, private, 
denominational, or parochial school, except those buildings used primarily for adult education or 
college extension courses. School does not include a proprietary trade or occupational school. 
(9) "Small wine maker" means a wine maker manufacturing or bottling not more than 50,000 
gallons of wine in 1 calendar year. 
(10) "Special license" means a contract between the commission and the special licensee 
granting authority to that licensee to sell beer, wine, mixed spirit drink, or spirits. The license shall 
be granted only to such persons and such organization and for such period of time as the 
commission shall determine so long as the person or organization is able to demonstrate an 
existence separate from an affiliated umbrella organization. If such an existence is 
demonstrated, the commission shall not deny a special license solely by the applicant's affiliation 
with an organization that is also eligible for a special license. 
(11) "Specially designated distributor" means a person engaged in an established business 
licensed by the commission to distribute spirits and mixed spirit drink in the original package for 
the commission for consumption off the premises. 
(12) "Specially designated merchant" means a person to whom the commission grants a license 
to sell beer or wine, or both, at retail for consumption off the licensed premises. 
(13) "Spirits" means a beverage that contains alcohol obtained by distillation, mixed with potable 
water or other substances, or both, in solution, and includes wine containing an alcoholic content 
of more than 21% by volume, except sacramental wine and mixed spirit drink. 
(14) "State liquor store" means a store established by the commission under this act for the sale 
of spirits in the original package for consumption off the premises. 
(15) "Supplier of spirits" means a vendor of spirits, a manufacturer of spirits, or a primary source 
of supply. 
History: 1998, Act 58, Imd. Eff. Apr. 14, 1998.  
 
436.1113 Definitions; T to W.  
Sec. 113. (1) "Tavern" means any place licensed to sell at retail beer and wine for consumption 
on the premises only. 
(2) "Vehicle" means any means of transportation by land, by water, or by air. 
(3) "Vendor" means a person licensed by the commission to sell alcoholic liquor. 
(4) "Vendor of spirits" means a person selling spirits to the commission. 



 February 22, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 

Carol Anderson, Parks & Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Topsoil 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION
On May 24, 2004, the Troy City Council approved a contract to provide one-year 
requirements of Topsoil with an option to renew for one (1) additional year to the low 
bidder, Sterling Topsoil & Grading Inc. of Sterling Heights, MI. {Resolution #2004-05-
268-E6}.  City management recommends exercising the option to renew for one-year 
under the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contract to expire 
December 31, 2005.  
 
Sterling Topsoil & Grading Inc. has agreed to exercise the one-year option to 
renew under 2004 prices, terms, and conditions. 
 

Description Price/Cubic Yard 
Topsoil $5.49 

 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department has conducted a market survey and concurs with the 
recommendation to exercise the option to renew as fuel prices continue to be 
volatile.  
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating 
budgets for Streets and Water, as monies clear through the balance sheet 
inventory account for Topsoil; and also through the Parks and Recreation 
operating budget for Local Tree Maintenance, #777.7740.010.   
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 
                       Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Systems Administrator 

bittnera
Text Box
E-05



 
 

  February 21, 2005 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
                 Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:     Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
 
RE:     MARKET SURVEY – Topsoil 
 
 
GLENCORP INC. – Ken Leschinger                                                         (586) 997-9563 
Ken has indicated that prices will be increasing because of fuel costs and maintenance 
of the Trucks.  Topsoil in upper Michigan is double of what it is here in the lower part of 
Michigan.  His competitor keeps his price down, which doesn’t help him in maintaining 
his trucks or spending for gas. 
 
UNITED SOILS, INC. – Joe                                                                      (586) 752-7008 
According to Joe, their Company is trying to keep prices at an even level.  Prices might 
go up, if fuel costs keep rising.  But so far they have been able to keep their prices 
steady. 
 
B & W LANDSCAPE SUPPLY – Joe Baker                                              (586) 463-0545 
Joe believes that a small increase in prices would be caused by the fuel cost raising and 
traveling to and from site to site. (Depending where your site is located.) Insurance has 
been steady – no increase there. 
 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the 
offer to renew the contract for Topsoil with the current vendor based on the fact that 
costs of Topsoil are not expected to drop and may increase depending on the gasoline 
market.   
 
 
 
 
CC:  Susan Leirstein 
      File 
 
 







April 26, 2004 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award To Low 

Bidder – Topsoil  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On April 21, 2004, sealed bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year 
requirements of topsoil with an option to renew for one additional year.  After 
reviewing these proposals, City management recommends awarding the contract 
to the low bidder, Sterling Topsoil and Grading, of Sterling Heights, MI for an 
estimated total cost of $16,470.00, at the unit price contained in the attached bid 
tabulation.  Topsoil is purchased on an as needed basis throughout the year 
based upon estimated quantities. 
 
The contract award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly 
executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all 
other specified requirements.                
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating 
budgets for Streets and Water, as monies clear through the balance sheet 
Inventory Account for Topsoil; and also through the Parks and Recreation budget 
for Local Tree Maintenance, #777.7740.010. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
51 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  1 Vendor Walk-In 
  4 Bid Responses Rec’d 
 
 
 
Prepared by Ron Hynd, Landscape Analyst 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-21
Opening Date -- 4-21-04 BID TABULATION
Date Prepared -- 4/23/04 TOPSOIL

VENDOR NAME: * STERLING UNITED GLENCORP B&W
TOPSOIL & SOILS INC INC LANDSCAPE

GRADING INC SUPPLY

Proposal:  TO FURNISH ONE YEAR REQUIREMENTS OF TOPSOIL WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR ONE ADDITIONAL
YEAR

UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE UNIT PRICE
Estimated  Quantities

3,000 Cubic Yards TOPSOIL 5.49$            6.79$             6.90$             7.24$             

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEM: * 16,470.00$   20,370.00$   20,700.00$    21,720.00$   

DELIVERY: Minimum Shipment: 50 CY 20 CY 15 YARDS 50 CU YDS
Within Hours of Phone Release 24 24 24 24

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

2% 15 DAYS

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS NET 30

WARRANTY: N/A BLANK BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Completed Y or N YES YES YES YES

* DENOTES LOW BIDDER

ATTEST:
  Ron Hynd ___________________________
  MaryAnn Hays Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\TOPSOIL ITB-COT 04-21







 
 
 
 
February 23, 2005 
 
 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian Murphy, Asst. City Manager/Services 
  Steve Vandette, City Engineer 

John K. Abraham, Traffic Engineer 
 
SUBJECT:   Agenda Item – Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005 
 
 
 
At the Traffic Committee meeting of February 16, 2005, the following recommendations were 
made for City Council approval: 
 
1. Recommend installing YIELD signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott 

(Item 3). 
  
2. Recommend installing NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING signs on the south side 

of Timberview between Livernois and Millpond (Item 5). 
 
3. Recommend installation of NO PARKING ZONE signs on the east side of Millpond, 50 

feet north and south of Timberview (Item 5). 
 
4. Recommend installation of a STOP sign on Timberview at Millpond (Item 5). 
 
 
JKA/ln 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Traffic Committee\2005 Minutes and Agendas\February 16\TC Recommendations.doc 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
E-06



DRAFT 
 
The Traffic Committee meeting was called to order at 7:30 p.m. in the Lower Level 
Conference Room at Troy City Hall on February 16, 2005 by Charles Solis. 
 
1. Roll Call 
 
PRESENT: Ted Halsey 
 Jan Hubbell 
 Richard Kilmer 
 Richard Minnick 

Peter Ziegenfelder 
 Charles Solis 

 
ABSENT: John Diefenbaker 

Grace Yau, Student Representative 
 

Also present: John Abraham, Traffic Engineer 
 Lt. Scott McWilliams, Police Department 
And Item 3 Paul Harrington, Troy Parks & Rec. 
 Michael Binno, 2100 Brinston 
 Item 4 Robert & Jessica Holm, 555 Randall 
 
2. Minutes – January 19, 2005
 
RESOLUTION #TC-2005-02-1 
Motion by Hubbell 
Seconded by Ziegenfelder 
 
To approve the January 19, 2005 minutes as printed. 
 
YEAS:  6  
 
NAYS:  0 
 
ABSENT: 1 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Motion to Excuse 
 
RESOLUTION #TC-2005-02-2 
Motion by Hubbel 
Seconded by Ziegenfelder 
 
To excuse Mr. Diefenbaker. 
 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES – February 16, 2005  PAGE 2  

YEAS:  6  
 
NAYS:  0 
 
ABSENT: 1 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
3. Install STOP or YIELD sign on Milburn at Brinston 
 

Paul Harrington of Troy Parks & Recreation Department reports that there have 
been many near misses at this three-way intersection.  Brinston runs east off John 
R and ends at Brinston Park. Millburn is a short street running between Prescott 
and Brinston, ending in a “T” at each end. 
 
There is considerable traffic on Brinston going to and from the park, including City 
trucks, and motorists on Milburn often fail to yield to Brinston traffic. 
 
Sight distance studies show that there are no major sight obstructions at this 
intersection.  Milburn carries around 400 vehicles in a day and Brinston carries 
around 1200 vehicles per day. There were no reported crashes from 2000 through 
2003 at this intersection.  There are currently no signs at this intersection,  
 
Mr. Harrington was present at the meeting and mentioned that in summer the 
traffic volume is much higher going to and from the park.  Mike Binno lives at 2100 
Brinston, and he reports that motorists drive too fast on Brinston, often speeding 
up to make the light at the corner of John R.  He would prefer a STOP sign on 
Brinston to slow traffic.  He also reports problems pulling out onto Brinston from his 
driveway. 
 
Lt. McWilliams said that a mid-block STOP sign will not affect speeds on Brinston 
to a large extent.  Motorists will tend to speed up after stopping/slowing down, to 
make up for the time lost at the STOP sign.   
 

Motion by Ziegenfelder 
 
To install STOP signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at Prescott. 
There was no second – MOTION FAILED 
 
RESOLUTION #TC-2005-02-3
Motion by Halsey 
Seconded by Ziegenfelder 
 
To recommend installing YIELD signs on Millburn at Brinston and on Millburn at 
Prescott. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES – February 16, 2005  PAGE 3  

 
YEAS:  6  
 
NAYS:  0 
 
ABSENT: 1 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Halsey requests selective enforcement on Brinston for the speed concerns.  Lt. 
McWilliams realizes this street gets a lot of traffic.  He said he would have the radar trailer 
and laser enforcement on this street.   

 
4. Install STOP sign on Cypress at Randall
 
 Robert Holm, 555 Randall, requests a STOP sign on Cypress at Randall.  There is 

currently a YIELD sign on Cypress where it ends in a “T” at Randall.  Mr. Holm 
indicated that drivers often fail to yield to Randall traffic and there have been many 
near misses at the intersection.   

 
Cypress carries around 600 vehicles per day and Randall carries around 1150 per 
day. There have been no reported crashes in the last three years.  Mr. Holm 
reports that there is usually a commercial van parked on Randall obscuring vision 
to the right and that two cars ended up in his front yard (photo attached) in the last 
two years.  A tree was knocked down and its replacement was also knocked down. 
 
The resident at 608 Randall parks a van in the street, limiting sight distance to the 
right.  When Mr. Halsey checked the area, a commercial vehicle with a trailer was 
parked there.  Maybe the Police Department can request that the resident part 
further down the street.  Lt. McWilliams will check on the distance from the 
intersection where the vehicle is being parked, and talk to the resident.  Mr. Halsey 
inquired about notification of surrounding residents, and the Traffic Engineer said 
that homeowners within a 300-foot radius of the intersection were notified. 
 
Mr. Ziegenfelder inquired about sidewalks.  The traffic engineer verified that 
sidewalks exist on both Randall and Cypress. 
 
Mr. Minnick thinks a STOP sign may not correct the situation; sight obstruction 
may be the problem.  Ms. Hubbell suggested tabling this item until next month 
while the sight obstruction is addressed.  Lt. McWilliams will check and report back 
at the next meeting. 
 

RESOLUTION #TC-2005-02-4 
Motion by Hubbell 
Seconded by Minnick 
 
To table this item until next month to deal with the sight obstruction. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES – February 16, 2005  PAGE 4  

 
YEAS:  6 
 
NAYS:  0 
 
ABSENT: 1 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
5. Install NO PARKING signs and NO STANDING sign near the entrance to 

Westwood Park Subdivision and a YIELD sign on Timberview at Millstone
 
 Richard Minnick, 28 Millstone Drive, requests five additional NO PARKING signs 

and one new NO STANDING sign near the entrance to the Westwood Park 
Subdivision at Timberview and Millstone Drives. 
 
Mr. Minnick reports that there were two recent collisions in this area and he 
believes that parked cars in this area contribute to a very dangerous situation. 
Cars parked in these areas are frequently overflow from nearby churches, not 
residents or guests.  The City has no record of any reported crashes from 2000 
through 2003. 

 
Mr. Minnick provided the attached photograph of the area.  The two red ovals 
indicate the location of the existing NO PARKING signs.  

 
Parking is presently prohibited along the west and south sides of Millstone, but 
visitors frequently park in the areas marked by the two blue rectangles because 
of the lack of signage.  After this matter was brought to the traffic engineer’s 
attention, an additional NO PARKING sign was added on Millstone. 

 
Although it is the parking “allowed” side, parking is prohibited by ordinance in the 
two areas marked by the green rectangles because there is not sufficient 
distance between the crosswalks and the driveways. Nevertheless, vehicles are 
frequently observed parking in these areas.  Installing NO PARKING signs at 
these two locations would improve compliance and facilitate the ticketing of 
violators (some officers have refused to write tickets because of the lack of 
markings or uncertainty as to the required clear distance from the crosswalk).  

 
Mr. Minnick also requests the installation of a NO PARKING sign in front of his 
house (yellow rectangle). There was a recent collision between a vehicle that 
was eastbound on Millstone and the median tree. This is a frequent problem, 
particularly in winter weather because vehicles make a sweeping turn and slide 
over the curbs. A vehicle parked in this location is at risk and impedes the flow of 
traffic around the turn. On many occasions, there are vehicles parked on both 
sides of Millstone at this location, which creates a very hazardous situation.  

 
Mr. Minnick is also requesting the installation of a NO STANDING sign on the 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES – February 16, 2005  PAGE 5  

south side of the Timberview entrance (orange rectangle). He reports that cars 
frequently enter the subdivision to turn around and then remain parked in this 
location to eat lunch or to hold extended cell phone conversations. This is a 
hazard to cars entering from Livernois, particularly if vehicles are queued up on 
Timberview waiting for a chance to enter Livernois. The risk is exacerbated in 
winter when the slight incline on the Timberview entrance makes it difficult for 
vehicles to maintain lane control.  
 
Mr. Minnick also requests the installation of one or more YIELD signs at the 
intersection of Timberview and Millstone Drives. There are none presently and 
the presence of the brick walls along the entrance reduces sight distances, 
increasing the risk of collisions. Last month there was a head-on collision 
between vehicles turning left and right on Timberview.  He also believes 
installing a yield sign on westbound Timberview would caution vehicles entering 
the subdivision to look both ways for traffic before turning either right or left. 
Because of the tight radii, it is generally not possible for opposing traffic to 
proceed through this “T” intersection simultaneously. There is virtually no 
straight-through traffic; it functions as a “Y” intersection.  

 
Installing a second yield sign on northbound Timberview is also suggested to 
resolve the conflict with southbound vehicles on Millstone who are also turning 
onto the Timberview exit.  

 
Lastly, Mr. Minnick would like a review of this area to determine if the painting of 
yellow centerlines on the Millstone curve and in the intersection area would 
improve lane usage and reduce the risk of further collisions.  

 
 The traffic engineer has reviewed all of Mr. Minnick’s requests.  Westwood Park 

subdivision is one of the smaller subdivisions in the area, and is also a “closed 
subdivision.”  Residential streets in the subdivision provide no outlet to traffic and 
all streets carry relatively low traffic volumes.  Based on Mr. Minnick’s concerns, 
the following are placed for the Traffic Committee’s review and recommendation. 

 
NO PARKING on the east side of Millstone, for 50 feet north and south of 
Timberview.  Parking may pose a sight obstruction. 

 
YIELD sign on Timberview entering Millstone.  This would be the signed 
location for the YIELD sign since Timberview ends in a “T” at Millstone. 3-way 
YIELD signs are not a standard application, as it would be just like what 
currently exists, an uncontrolled intersection. 

 
NO STOPPING, STANDING, PARKING signs for the south side of 
Timberview between Millstone and Livernois.  These are normally suggested 
for fire routes, and have not been installed on residential streets for a quite a 
while.  As mentioned earlier, all streets under consideration here are relatively 
low volume. 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES – February 16, 2005  PAGE 6  

 
Timberview runs up hill toward Millstone.  There are brick walls on both sides of 
the street, causing a vision obstruction.  Parking is permitted on the south side, 
and people pull in to have cell phone conversations and lunch, which is a hazard.  
 

RESOLUTION #TC-2005-02-5 
Motion by Halsey 
Seconded by Ziegenfelder 
 
To recommend restricting parking on the south side of Timberview between Livernois and 
Millpond.  

 
YEAS:  5 
 
NAYS:  0 
 
ABSENT: 1 
 
ABSTAIN: 1 (Minnick) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
RESOLUTION #TC-2005-02-6 
Motion by Halsey 
Seconded by Ziegenfelder 
 
To recommend NO PARKING ZONE signs 50 feet north and south of Timberview on 
the east side of Millpond. 
 
YEAS:  5 
 
NAYS:  0 
 
ABSENT: 1 
 
ABSTAIN: 1 (Minnick) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
RESOLUTION #TC-2005-02-7 
Motion by Ziegenfelder  
Seconded by Halsey 
 
To recommend installing a STOP sign on Timberview at Millpond. 
 
YEAS:  5 
 



TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MINUTES – February 16, 2005  PAGE 7  

NAYS:  0 
 
ABSENT: 1 
 
ABSTAIN: 1 (Minnick) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
6. Visitors’ Time
 

No one appeared to address items not on the agenda. 
 
7. Other Business 

 
Mr. Kilmer mentioned a fire lane violation in front of Farmer Jack at Big Beaver and 
John R.  Twice he has seen someone park there around 5:00 p.m. and go into the 
store.  Lt. McWilliams will investigate. 
 
Mr. Halsey reported that he will not be able to attend the March meeting. 
 

8. Adjourn
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:15 p.m. 
 















bittnera
Text Box
E-07











February 16, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director   

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution #2 – Bid Award: 

Lowest Bidders Meeting Specifications - Home Chore Lawn and 
Yard Services 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
On January 25, 2005, bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year 
requirements of lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program. After 
reviewing the proposals, City management recommends awarding the contract to 
the low acceptable bidders meeting specifications for Proposal A- Lawn Care 
Services, G.D.M. Lawn Care and Proposal B- Yard Clean-up, Ground EFX Land 
& Lawn LLC. The cost is based on an average of 28-lawn care visits, and 2 yard 
clean up services per household for an estimated total cost per season of 
$33,810.00 and $9,702.00 respectfully at the following unit prices: 
 
PROPOSAL A:  LAWN CARE SERVICES FOR THE HOME CHORE PROGRAM 

Est. 
No. 

 
Description 

 
Price per Service Call 

   
30 

Lots 
 

Lawn-care service at an average residential City of Troy 
home.  An average residential home lot size is  
60 to 85 feet x 125 feet. 

 
$16.25 

   
40 

Lots   
  Lawn-care service at lots over 85 feet x 125 feet, or corner  

$18.00 
 

 
 
PROPOSAL B:  YARD CLEAN UP FOR THE HOME CHORE PROGRAM 

Est. 
No. 

 
Description 

 
Price Per Service Call 

  W/ 2% Discount 
30 

Lots 
Yard clean up at an average residential City of Troy home.  
An average residential home lot size is 60 to 85 x 125 feet. 

 
$63.70 

 
 

  

40 
Lots 

Yard clean up for lots over 85 x 125 feet, or corner lots  
$73.50 

1 of 2 

bittnera
Text Box
E-08



 
February 16, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Bid Award – Home Chore Lawn and Yard Services 
 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 
 
SUMMARY 
Even though Ground EFX Land & Lawn LLC is not the apparent low bidder for 
Proposal B, Kathy’s Lawn Maintenance bid was unawardable due to major 
exceptions to the proposal such as requesting additional fees for larger lots and 
modification to the City of Troy specifications. 
  
Staff has chosen to award the proposals separately for cost effectiveness. The 
City expects to qualify approximately 70 residents in the home chore program. 
We do not have a waiting list for this program. The program is publicized several 
times throughout the year, with the most recent notice being placed in the 
Summer 2005 edition of Troy Today. 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for lawn and yard services for the Home Chore Program are available 
initially through the Public Works operating budget, then reimbursed by Oakland 
County through the Community Development Block Grant Program. 
 
 
133 Vendors Notified via MITN System 
  15 Bid Responses Received 

 1 Bid did not meet specifications for Proposal B.  
 2 No Bids: (1) Company was not interested at this time; however, wants to remain on the bid 

list. 
  (1) Company could not be competitive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Vicki Richardson, Solid Waste Coordinator 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-58
Opening Date -- 1-25-05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 5
Date Prepared -- 2/15/05 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:
LAND & LAWN LLC

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES DISCOUNT

30 Lawn Care Services at an Average 16.25$       19.25$   18.87$       16.00$    
Lots Residential Lawn-Care services at lots over 60 to 85 ft x 125 ft

DISCOUNT

40 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 18.00$       21.75$   21.32$       19.00$    
Lots or corner lots

1,207.50$  1,418.55$  1,240.00$  
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks -

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP DISCOUNT

30 Yard clea up at an average residential 65.00$        65.00$  63.70$       75.00$    
Lots City of Troy home - average lot size 60 to 85ft x 125 ft

DISCOUNT

40 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 80.00$        75.00$  73.50$       100.00$  
Lots corner lots

5,150$       4,851$       6,250$      
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES NO NO
Date 1/14 and 1/15/05

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime (248)689-9135 (586)634-3710 (248)506-8605
24 Hour (248)561-5839 (586)634-3710 (248)506-8605

TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

NO BIDS:
  Davey Commercial Grounds BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
  Troy Clogg Landscape
ATTEST:
  Vicki Richardson ________________________________
  Cheryl Morrell Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 04-58 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

NET 10 DAYS

GROUND EFX

33,810.00$                      

10,300.00$                       

39,719.40$                 

9,702.00$                   

GDM LAWN CARE

NET 30

BLANK

KDS LANDSCAPE

NET 30 DAYS

BLANK

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

2% DISCOUNT

34,720.00$                  

PRICE PER SERVICE

12,500.00$                  



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-58
Opening Date -- 1-25-05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 5
Date Prepared -- 2/15/05 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME:

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
30 Lawn Care Services at an Average residential 17.00$    16.50$        17.00$    

Lots Lawn-Care services at lots over 60 to 85 ft x 125 ft

40 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 18.50$    19.50$        20.00$    
Lots or corner lots

1,250$     1,275$        1,310$     
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks -

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 50.00$    Spring
30 Yard clea up at an average residential City of 70.00$    70.00$        85.00$    Fall

Lots Troy home - average lot size 60 to 85ft x 125 ft
60.00$    Spring

40 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 80.00$    95.00$        100.00$  Fall
Lots corner lots

5,300$     5,900$        
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES NO YES
Date 1/21 and 1/22/05 1/15/05

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime (248)202-4288 (248)360-5379 (313)274-6873
24 Hour (248)202-4288 (248)366-3154 (313)999-5314

TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 04-58 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

11,800.00$                       10,450.00$                 

NO EXCEPTIONS

PRICE PER SERVICE

NET 30 DAYS

BUMBLE BEE GARDENS

35,000.00$                 

10,600.00$                 

PRICE PER SERVICE

36,680.00$                  

LAZOEN'S

NET 30

BLANK

TRYBUSKI LANDSCAPING

NET 30

BLANK

PRICE PER SERVICE

& LAWN SERVICE, LLC

35,700.00$                       



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-58
Opening Date -- 1-25-05 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 5
Date Prepared -- 2/15/05 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: ADVANCE SERVICES
& SNOW REMOVAL INC

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
30 Lawn Care Services at an Average residential 20.00$        18.50$    26.00$   

Lots Lawn-Care services at lots over 60 to 85 ft x 125 ft

40 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 22.00$        23.60$    19.95$   
Lots or corner lots

1,480$       1,499$      1,578$      
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks -

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
30 Yard clea up at an average residential City of 60.00$        NO BID 64.95$   

Lots Troy home - average lot size 60 to 85ft x 125 ft

40 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 90.00$        NO BID 74.95$   
Lots corner lots

5,400$       4,946.50$  
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES NO YES
Date 1/13/05 BLANK

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime (810)329-3633 (248)969-6092 (586)268-0803
24 Hour (810)217-7258 (248)627-4819 (248)521-2459

TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 04-58 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

41,440.00$                       41,972.00$                 44,184.00$                 

10,800.00$                       9,893.00$                   

BLANK

KEVIN'S LAWN CARE

NET 30 DAYS

BLANK

DREAM GREEN

BLANK

BLANK

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

30 DAYS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-58
Opening Date -- 1-25-05 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 5
Date Prepared -- 2/15/05 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: ABC LAWN &
MAINTENANCE

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
30 Lawn Care Services at an Average residential 19.85$       18.00$    20.00$    

Lots Lawn-Care services at lots over 60 to 85 ft x 125 ft

40 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 24.85$       28.00$    28.00$    
Lots or corner lots

1,589.50$   1,660$      1,720$    
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks -

PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP 
30 Yard clea up at an average residential City of DMS 125.00$  65.00$    

Lots Troy home - average lot size 60 to 85ft x 125 ft

40 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or DMS 195.00$  80.00$    
Lots corner lots

11,550$    5,150$    
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES YES YES
Date 12/1/04 1/24/05 1/26/05

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime (989)777-7602 (248)431-6557 (586)909-3220
24 Hour (989)992-4169 (248)431-6557 (586)764-3805

TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

DMS:
 Kathy's Lawn Mtnce - Proposal B ($9,588) - Reason: Additional fees for larger lots - modify specifications

G:\ITB-COT 04-58 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

44,506.00$                      46,480.00$                 48,160.00$                

23,100.00$                 10,300.00$                

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

LANDSCAPE

NET 20 DAYS

BLANK

KATHY'S LAWN

30 DAYS NET

LISTED IN BID

NORTHERN PINES

BLANK

BLANK

PRICE PER SERVICE

LANDSCAPING



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-58
Opening Date -- 1-25-05 BID TABULATION Pg 5 of 5
Date Prepared -- 2/15/05 LAWN SERVICES/HOME CHORE PROGRAM

VENDOR NAME: JAMES LEAMON
SERVICES, INC

EST NO.

PROPOSAL A: LAWN CARE SERVICES
30 Lawn Care Services at an Average residential 25.00$        22.00$    30.00$    

Lots Lawn-Care services at lots over 60 to 85 ft x 125 ft

40 Lawn-care Services at lots over 85 ft x 125 ft 30.00$        33.00$    33.00$    
Lots or corner lots

1,950$       1,980$      2,220$    
ESTIMATED TOTAL:  - 28 Weeks -

Spring Fall
PROPOSAL B: YARD CLEAN UP ($100 - 1/2 Price if Fall Clean-up done prior yr)

30 Yard clea up at an average residential City of 50.00$        100.00$      120.00$  115.00$  
Lots Troy home - average lot size 60 to 85ft x 125 ft

($120 - 1/2 Price if Fall Clean-Up done prior yr)

40 Yard Clean up for lots over 85ft x 125ft or 60.00$        120.00$      180.00$  130.00$  
Lots corner lots

10,800$    8,650$    
ESTIMATED TOTAL: - 2 Clean-Ups - 

SITE INSPECTIONS: Yes or No YES YES YES
Date NOT GIVEN 1/24/05 1/20-21/05

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

PHONE NUMBERS: Daytime (586)948-3225 (248)852-8200 (313)407-8137
24 Hour (586)980-9557 (248)396-0164 (313)823-0072

TERMS:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Yes or No YES YES YES

BIDDERS QUESTIONNAIRE Yes or No YES YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 04-58 Lawn Care Home Chore Program

54,600.00$                       55,440.00$                 62,160.00$                

11,700.00$                       21,600.00$                 17,300.00$                

BLANK

KINGSPOINTE

2% Net 10; or Net 15

BLANK

ELITE LAWN

NET 30 DAYS

BLANK

PRICE PER SERVICE

IRRIGATION & MTNCE

PRICE PER SERVICE PRICE PER SERVICE

LANDSCAPE

NOT GIVEN











  February 21, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Charles Craft, Police Chief 
  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director  
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award To Low Bidder –  

 Vehicle Graphics  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
On Friday, November 5, 2004, bids were received to provide two-year requirements to 
install and/or purchase vehicle graphic material for the Police, Fire and Motor Pool 
departments with an option to renew for two additional years.  City management 
recommends awarding the contract for Police and Fire to the low total bidder, Majik 
Graphics Inc., of Clinton Township, MI for an estimated annual cost of $14,726.00, at 
unit prices contained in the attached bid tabulation.   
 
In addition, staff recommends rejecting Item 1b., as well as the Graphics Only portion of 
the bid for Motor Pool, Item #3.  Alyko Enterprises LLC was the only bidder to provide a 
price for Item 1b. (1) Police undercover vehicle to be installed with letters and numbers 
only at $360.00 each, which is high; when Majik Graphics will do a complete vehicle for 
$275.00 each.  If an undercover vehicle is purchased during the term of the contract, a 
price quote can be obtained for this one item. 
    
An attempt was made to award the graphics portion of the bid for the Motor Pool 
department (Item 3.), but the low bidder for those items, Sava Graphics never provided 
samples of their work as requested.  Therefore, informal price quotes will be taken for 
vehicle decals following standard purchasing procedures.    
 
SUMMARY 
The contract was awarded on a low total bid basis for consistency, conformity, and 
accurate vehicle identification.  Majik Graphics Inc. has held this contract since 1995.      
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the various Police, Fire and DPW Vehicle Operating Accounts.   
 
56 Vendors Notified via MITN System 

3 Vendor Walk-Ins 
5 Bid Responses Rec’d 
2 No Bids: (1) Company requires a 50% deposit on all jobs over $1,000 to pay for materials. 

(1) Company declined to bid, but requested to remain on the vendor list for future 
bids invitations. 

 
Prepared by: Susan Leirstein, Purchasing Systems Administrator 

bittnera
Text Box
E-09



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME: *

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Police Vehicle Graphics
1.a. 20 ea Police Vehicles 275.00$   5,500.00$  465.00$      9,300.00$    412.00$    8,240.00$   
1.b. 1 ea Police Undercover Vehicle (letter..
1.c. 1 ea Motorcycle -(Gold reflective) 110.00$   110.00$     195.00$      195.00$       270.00$    270.00$      
1.d. 5 ea Screen Change per unit N/A -$           -$             -$          

Sub-Total 5,610.00$  9,495.00$    8,510.00$   

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS
Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor

1.d. 14 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 22.50$     25.00$       38.00$        210.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
1.e. 14 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 35.00$     25.00$       15.00$        180.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
1.f. 24 ea Doors - Front or Rear 38.00$     25.00$       90.00$        180.00$       45.00$      30.00$        
1.g. 12 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 18.00$     18.00$       15.00$        90.00$         16.00$      15.00$        
1.h. 12 ea Vehicle Truck - Letters/Numbers 18.00$     18.00$       15.00$        90.00$         16.00$      15.00$        
1.I. 10 ea Vehicle Roof - Letters/Numbers 24.00$     18.00$       15.00$        185.00$       20.00$      20.00$        
1.J. 12 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 95.00$       250.00$       120.00$      

Sub-Total 5,441.00$  20,202.00$  5,924.00$   

ADDITONAL ITEMS Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor
1.K. 4 ea K-9 Markings 20.00$     10.00$       15.00$        60.00$         18.00$      10.00$        
1.L. 2 ea Motorcycle Tanks 30.00$     15.00$       45.00$        75.00$         68.00$      30.00$        
1.M. 8 sets 12" Roof Numbers (set of 3) 24.00$     18.00$       15.00$        185.00$       20.00$      20.00$        
1.N. 16 ea American Flags 3.25$       -$           5.00$          30.00$         5.00$        2.00$          

Sub-Total 598.00$     2,700.00$    740.00$      

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Fire Vehicle Graphics
2.a. 3 ea Staff/Utility Vehicles 375.00$   1,125.00$  285.00$      855.00$       458.00$    1,374.00$   
2.b. 1 ea Fire Apparatus 820.00$   820.00$     625.00$      625.00$       400.00$    400.00$      
2.c. 1 ea Screen Charge -$         -$           -$           -$             -$          -$            

Sub-Total 1,945.00$  1,480.00$    1,774.00$   

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS
Material Labor Material Labor Material Labor

2.d. 2 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 35.00$     25.00$       15.00$        120.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
2.e. 2 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 44.00$     25.00$       15.00$        120.00$       30.00$      25.00$        
2.f. 2 ea Doors - Front or Rear 44.00$     25.00$       75.00$        120.00$       45.00$      30.00$        
2.g. 2 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 24.00$     15.00$       15.00$        120.00$       16.00$      15.00$        
2.h. 2 ea Vehicle Rear Hatch-Letters/Numbers 24.00$     15.00$       15.00$        120.00$       45.00$      30.00$        
2.I. 4 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 145.00$     7.00$          220.00$       120.00$      

Sub-Total 1,132.00$  2,378.00$    1,062.00$   

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Motor Pool - Graphics Only
3.a. 24 ea Decals 8" - Dept Design 28.00$      672.00$      10.00$        240.00$       23.00$      552.00$      
3.b. 12 ea Decals 8" - Plain 26.00$      312.00$      10.00$        120.00$       16.00$      192.00$      
3.c. 24 ea Decals 16" - Dept Design 46.00$      1,104.00$   16.00$        384.00$       48.00$      1,152.00$   
3.d. 12 ea Decals 16" - Plain 42.00$      504.00$      16.00$        192.00$       41.00$      492.00$      
3.e. 1 ea Screen Charge - Dept Design N/A -$            -$          -$             -$          -$            
3.f. 1 ea Screen Charge - Plain N/A -$            -$          -$             -$          -$            

Sub-Total 2,592.00$   936.00$       2,388.00$   

RECOMMEND REJECTION - ITEM 1b.

RECOMMEND REJECTION - Graphics Only

SAVA GRAPHICS JL GEISLER CORPMAJIK GRAPHICS INC



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME: *

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item           Description Material Material Material
General Decal Costs/Each
4.a. Letters/Numbers 0.45$       0.10$          0.35$        
4.b. Stripes 0.45$       0.10$          0.15$        
4.c. Shield Markings 0.45$       0.15$          0.16$        

5. Computerized "New" Vehicle Design

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: * 14,726.00$ 36,255.00$ 18,010.00$

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N NO YES YES
DATE October 13th Oct 12/ 13

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper
Phone # (586)354-8392 (248)376-7352 (586)574-1800

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

TERMS: NET 30
LIFETIME OF VEHICLE OR

WARRANTY: 10 YEARS

DELIVERY OF DECALS: UPS

EXCEPTIONS: NONE

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES YES

Amendment/Addendum 1 Y or N YES NO YES
Amendment/Addendum 2 Y or N YES NO YES

* DENOTES LOW TOTAL BIDDER

ATTEST:
  Robert Rossman
  MaryAnn Hays Jeanette Bennett
  Linda Bockstanz Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 04-47Vehicle Graphics

BLANK

30-60 DAYS

FIVE YEARS

NET 30

90 DP&L

2-3 WEEKS

BLANK

JL GEISLER CORP

NO Charge NO Charge

8-5pm 8-4:30pm

5 DAYS

MAJIK GRAPHICS INC

Current Contractor

8-5pm Mon-Fri

NO Charge

SAVA GRAPHICS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Police Vehicle Graphics
1.a. 20 ea Police Vehicles 552.00$    11,040.00$ 725.00$        14,500.00$  
1.b. 1 ea Police Undercover Vehicle (letter.. 360.00$    Blank

1.c. 1 ea Motorcycle -(Gold reflective) 552.00$    552.00$      325.00$        325.00$       
1.d. 5 ea Screen Change per unit -$          N/A -$             

Sub-Total 11,592.00$ 14,825.00$  

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS Material Labor Material Labor
1.d. 14 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 40.00$      80.00$        45.00$          50.00$         
1.e. 14 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 30.00$      80.00$        45.00$          50.00$         
1.f. 24 ea Doors - Front or Rear (Front) 45.00$      90.00$        75.00$          97.50$         

(Rear) 55.00$          50.00$         
1.g. 12 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 25.00$      55.00$        25.00$          25.00$         
1.h. 12 ea Vehicle Truck - Letters/Numbers 25.00$      55.00$        25.00$          25.00$         
1.I. 10 ea Vehicle Roof - Letters/Numbers 20.00$      50.00$        50.00$          35.00$         
1.J. 12 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 175.00$      Blank

Sub-Total 11,180.00$ 8,040.00$    

ADDITONAL ITEMS Material Labor Material Labor
1.K. 4 ea K-9 Markings 30.00$      80.00$        15.00$          25.00$         
1.L. 2 ea Motorcycle Tanks 75.00$      100.00$      65.00$          90.00$         
1.M. 8 sets 12" Roof Numbers (set of 3) 25.00$      55.00$        95.00$          45.00$         
1.N. 16 ea American Flags 20.00$      15.00$        25.00$          25.00$         

Sub-Total 1,990.00$   2,390.00$    

Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Fire Vehicle Graphics
2.a. 3 ea Staff/Utility Vehicles 672.00$    2,016.00$   890.00$        2,670.00$    
2.b. 1 ea Fire Apparatus 375.00$    375.00$      1,780.00$     1,780.00$    
2.c. 1 ea Screen Charge -$          -$            N/A -$             

Sub-Total 2,391.00$   4,450.00$    

COST FOR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGED SECTIONS Material Labor Material Labor
2.d. 2 ea Front & Back Quarter Panel -either side 70.00$      80.00$        55.00$          50.00$         
2.e. 2 ea Rear Quarter Panel - either side 70.00$      80.00$        55.00$          50.00$         
2.f. 2 ea Doors - Front or Rear (Front) 85.00$      90.00$        93.50$          97.50$         

(Rear) 68.75$          50.00$         
2.g. 2 ea Vehicle Front - Letters/Numbers 50.00$      100.00$      18.00$          25.00$         
2.h. 2 ea Vehicle Rear Hatch-Letters/Numbers 50.00$      100.00$      45.00$          25.00$         
2.I. 4 ea Labor Cost for removal of decals 175.00$      Blank

Sub-Total 2,250.00$   955.75$       
Item Qty.           Description Unit Price Extension Unit Price Extension
Motor Pool - Graphics Only
3.a. 24 ea Decals 8" - Dept Design 22.00$      528.00$      45.00$          1,080.00$    
3.b. 12 ea Decals 8" - Plain 22.00$      264.00$      35.00$          420.00$       
3.c. 24 ea Decals 16" - Dept Design 52.00$      1,248.00$   65.00$          1,560.00$    
3.d. 12 ea Decals 16" - Plain 52.00$      624.00$      75.00$          900.00$       
3.e. 1 ea Screen Charge - Dept Design -$          -$            N/A -$             
3.f. 1 ea Screen Charge - Plain -$          -$            N/A 0

Sub-Total 2,664.00$   3,960.00$    

ALYKO ENTERPRISES LLC

RECOMMEND REJECTION - Graphics Only - 

RECOMMEND REJECTION - ITEM 1b.

SIGNS & MORE



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-47
Opening Date -- 11-5-04 VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIALS Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 11/22/04 BID TABULATION

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL-- TWO YEAR REQUIREMENTS TO INSTALL AND/OR PURCHASE VEHICLE GRAPHIC MATERIAL FOR
            POLICE, FIRE, AND MOTOR POOL DEPARTMENTS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR TWO YEARS

Item           Description Material Material
General Decal Costs/Each (Non-Reflective) (Reflective)
4.a. Letters/Numbers 1.50$        0.70$            1.75$           
4.b. Stripes 1.50$        1.25$            2.75$           
4.c. Shield Markings 4.00$        1.25$            2.75$           

5. Computerized "New" Vehicle Design

ESTIMATED TOTAL COST: 29,403.00$ 30,660.75$ 

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N YES YES
DATE 10/8 &10/13/04

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs of Oper
Phone # (248)515-3552 (248)250-2100

+$4,500
INSURANCE: Can Meet DO NOT CARRY BUT CAN OBTAIN BLANK

Cannot Meet XX

TERMS: NET 30

WARRANTY: 5 YEARS

DELIVERY OF DECALS: 5 BUSINESS DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

Amendment/Addendum 1 Y or N YES NO
Amendment/Addendum 2 Y or N YES NO

NO BIDS:
  Images Unlimited
  Michigan State Industries

G:ITB-COT 04-47Vehicle Graphics

5 BUSINESS DAYS

BLANK

ALYKO ENTERPRISES LLC

NO Charge

8-5pm

NET 30 DAYS

5YR PARTS & 1YR LABOR

11/3/04

9-5:30pm

SIGNS & MORE

NO Charge









February 28, 2005 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Aggregates 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On April 19, 2004, Troy City Council approved one-year contracts for Aggregates 
with an option to renew for one additional year to the low bidders, Tri-City 
Aggregates, Inc. and Troy Aggregate Carriers Inc. (Resolution #2004-04-215-
E5); and subsequently to United Soils, Inc., as a result of a rescind/re-award, 
which was approved by Troy City Council on June 21, 2004. (Resolution #2004-
06-346)   
 
Tri-City Aggregate and United Soils Inc. have agreed to renew their contracts at 
the same prices, terms and conditions as the original contracts.  (See letters 
attached).  In an effort to reduce or maintain costs, it is recommended that the 
City accept the offers to renew for an additional year through April 30, 2006.   
Since Tri-City Aggregate is the primary industry supplier for items currently 
awarded and escalating fuel costs, a re-bid would result in higher prices. 
 
Troy Aggregate Carriers Inc. does not wish to renew their contract; therefore the 
City will re-bid those items.    
 
SUMMARY 
Tri-City Aggregates, Inc 
4000 tons  22A Road Gravel   $7.03/ton    
2000 tons  Fill Sand    $4.53/ton    
        
United Soils Inc 
  250 tons  60/40 Gravel    $10.92/ton   
        
 
MARKET SURVEY 
The Purchasing Department conducted a market survey and found that all 
suppliers contacted said pricing for material would escalate between 5-40% due 
to increased costs of operations, such as fuel, insurance, etc. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Public Works Operating Budgets. 
 
Prepared by: Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 

bittnera
Text Box
E-10



 
 

   February 28, 2005 
 

TO:      Jeanette Bennett 
      Purchasing Director 
 
FROM:    Linda N. Bockstanz 
      Associate Buyer 
 
RE:      MARKET SURVEY – AGGREGATES  
 
TROY AGGREGATE CARRIERS – John Brewer                                              (586) 446-9200 
John has indicated that aggregates will increase in price because of three major items.  The 
number one major reason is fuel costs that have increased in the last couple of years. 
Second would be availability of the aggregates, and third would be the maintaining of his 
equipment/trucks.  He believes the increase will be anywhere from 40 cents to 60 cents a 
ton. 
 
OSBURN INDUSTRIES INC – Jeff Thomas                                                      (313) 292-4140 
According to Jeff, all aggregate prices will be going up 15 to 20% because fuel costs have 
been rising in the last few years.  He will have to increase his freight charges also to 
accommodate for the increase in fuel costs.  
 
JACKIES TANSPORATION INC. - Russell                                                        (248) 344-0047 
Russell believes there will be an increase of 15 to 40% on all aggregates.  Mainly because of 
fuel costs that have been high for a while now.  Secondly would be the maintaining of the 
Company’s trucks. 
 
AUBURN SUPPLY CO INC – Stephen Messina                                                (586) 731-0150 
Steven told me that aggregates would increase .35 to .50 cents per ton for all aggregates 
and .25 to .40 cents for sand, because of the rise of fuel costs.  Two other reasons are for 
their Company wages (Union Shop) and insurance on their trucks. 
 
J & H TRANSPORTATION - Judy                                                                      (586) 939-1024 
Judy has indicated to me that because of fuel costs that are high, aggregates will increase 
anywhere from 15% to 40%, which will be passed onto the consumer.  Wages and insurance 
are another factor in the increase cost for aggregates. 
 
ELLSWORTH INDUSTRIES – Pat                                                                   (734) 260-0360 
Pat commented that prices would be increasing 15% to 40%, because of the high cost of 
fuel, insurance, and equipment maintenance to their trucks. 
 
RICHMOND TRANSPORTATION – Dan Manchik                                        (586) 727-1627 
Dan told me that aggregates would increase anywhere from 5% to 40% all due to fuel 
increases.  Secondly would be the insurance costs on his trucks. 
 
 

1 of 2 
 



 
February 28, 2005 
 
Re:  Market Survey – Aggregates 
 
 
EDW C LEVY COMPANY – Bob Nob                                                               (313) 429-5389 
Called twice - left 2 messages – no response 
 
SYLVESTER MATERIAL COMPANY – John Hogan                                     (419) 843-2813 
Called twice – left 2 messages – no response 
 
Based upon the above comments, I respectfully recommend that the City accept the offers 
to renew the various contracts for Aggregates to the current vendors based on the fact costs 
for Aggregates will increase 5% to 40%.   
 
CC: Susan Leirstien 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 of 2 
 











  June 14, 2004 
 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Steven J. Vandette, Acting Assistant City Manager/Services 

Timothy Richnak, Public Works Director 
Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 
Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 

 
Subject: Agenda Item:  Rescind Bid Award / Re-Award Contract  

Aggregates, 60/40 Gravel  
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On April 19, 2004, the City Council awarded contracts for Aggregates to various 
low bid suppliers on an item-by-item basis.  Lapeer Sand and Gravel was 
awarded Item 4, 60/40 Gravel at a cost of $10.90 per ton.  After multiple attempts 
by the Risk Management Department to obtain the required insurance certificate 
from Lapeer Sand and Gravel, in accordance with the specifications; Purchasing 
put them on notice to supply the required insurance by June 11, 2004, or be held 
in default with prejudice (letter attached). 
 
City management recommends that Council rescind the award to Lapeer Sand & 
Gravel (Resolution #2004-04-215-E-5), and re-award the contract to the next low 
bidder, United Soils, Inc. at a unit cost of $10.92 per ton for 60/40 gravel or an 
estimated total cost of $2,730.00.   
 
Staff broke the tie bid on Item 4, between United Soils, Inc. and Sylvester 
Material Company by comparing the minimum shipment tonnage between the 
two bidders.  United Soils requires a 30-ton minimum and Sylvester Material 
Company requires a 50-ton minimum.  Since the amount of material estimated is 
minimal, the lower minimum tonnage gives the City more flexibility.   
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds for this material are available through the Public Works operating budgets 
for Streets and Water, as monies clear through the balance sheet Inventory 
Accounts for Aggregates.    
 
 
 



June 7, 2004 
 

Notice to Supply or Default 
ITB-COT 04-13 

   Aggregates 
 
Ms. Judy L. Furgel 
Lapeer Sand & Gravel 
21450 Ryan Road 
Warren, MI  48091 
 
Dear Ms. Furgel, 

 
Please be advised that on Monday, April 19, 2004, the Troy City Council awarded ITB-COT 04-13, 
Aggregates, to your Company, Lapeer Sand & Gravel, contingent upon submission of the 
specified insurance certificate.  Mr. Stephen Cooperrider, City of Troy Risk Manager, recently 
notified the Purchasing Office that the required insurance certificate has not been furnished after 
numerous contacts.  Also, due to conversations with you, he did not feel that it would be 
forthcoming since your company was only awarded Item 4 for 250 tons of 60 / 40 gravel even 
though your bid did not reflect an exception to the quantity or number of items awarded.    
 
Please accept this letter as notice to submit the required insurance certificate in 
accordance with specifications by Friday, June 11, 2004 or be held in default of contract 
with prejudice.  Due to the default, the following steps would be required to be taken by your 
company if your company wishes to again become an active bidder for the City of Troy: 

  
1. After three (3) years have expired (after April 19, 2007) your company will 

be eligible for reconsideration as a bidder for City of Troy bids.  Liquidated 
damages will be assessed against your company and shall consist of the 
difference between the amount quoted in the defaulted contract and the 
next awarded bidder, plus 6% compounded annually. 

 
2. A written request by Lapeer Sand & Gravel is to be provided requesting 

reconsideration  as a bidder for the City of Troy.   
 
3. A statement must be provided by an authorized representative of your 

company that confirms that management will stand behind the integrity of 
bids and proposals submitted to the City of Troy.  The statement is to be 
signed by senior management of Lapeer Sand & Gravel. 

 
If you have any questions, please call the Purchasing Department at (248) 680-7291 or 524-3338.   
 

 
Sincerely, 
 
Jeanette Bennett 
Purchasing Director 
 
CC:  Stephen Cooperrider, Risk Manager 





April 6, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  Gary A. Shripka, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 1 – Award to Low 

Bidders – Aggregates  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On March 24, 2004, sealed bid proposals were opened to furnish one-year 
requirements of Aggregates with an option to renew for one additional year.  
After reviewing these proposals, City management recommends awarding the 
contract to the low bidders, Troy Aggregate Carriers Inc., Lapeer Sand & Gravel 
and Tri-City Aggregate for an estimated total cost of $80,190.00, at unit prices 
contained in the attached bid tabulation.  Aggregates are purchased on an as 
needed basis throughout the year based upon estimated quantities. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Item Est. Qty Description   Price Per     Estimated 
   (Ton)             Ton         Total 
Troy Aggregate Carriers Inc. 
1. 1500  6A Slag    $11.35   $17,025.00 
3. 1000  Pea Gravel   $10.95   $10,950.00 
6.   100  Crushed Concrete 1”-3”  $  8.10   $     810.00 
7.   100  Crushed Concrete 3”-6”  $  9.10   $     910.00 
8.   300  Chloride Sand   $15.55   $  4,665.00 
9.   250  2NS Sand   $  7.40   $  1,850.00 
10.   500  Mason Sand   $  8.15   $  4,075.00 
    Estimated Cost     $40,285.00 
 
Lapeer Sand & Gravel 
4.   250  60/40 Gravel   $10.90   $  2,725.00
    Estimated Cost     $  2,725.00 
 
Tri-City Aggregate 
2. 4000  22A Gravel   $  7.03   $28,120.00 
5. 2000  Fill Sand   $  4.53   $  9,060.00
    Estimated Cost     $37,180.00 
 
    Estimated Total Cost    $80,190.00 
 
 
 
 

 
1 of 2 



April 6, 2004 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Aggregates 
 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for these materials are available through the Public Works operating 
budgets for Streets and Water, as monies clear through the balance sheet 
Inventory Accounts for Aggregates. 
 
 
37 Vendors Notified on MITN System 
  1 Vendor Walk-In 
12 Bid Responses Rec’d 

1 No Bid: (1) Company does not handle the type of product specified, nor can they be             
competitive. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by:  Emily Frontera, Administrative Aide 
 

2 of 2 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-13
Opening Date -- 3/24/04 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/1/04 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: TROY TROY LAPEER TR-CITY

AGGREGATE AGGREGATE SAND & AGGREGATES

CARRIERS INC GRAVEL INC
W/TERMS

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 1500 6A SLAG 11.35$           11.24$           -$                 
2. 4000 22A GRAVEL 7.40$             7.33$             9.90$               7.03$               

3. 1000 PEA GRAVEL 10.95$           10.84$           11.20$             
4. 250 60/40 GRAVEL 11.50$           11.39$           10.90$             

5. 2000 FILL SAND 4.60$             4.55$             6.25$               4.53$               

6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 8.10$             8.02$             -$                 
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" 9.10$             9.01$             -$                 
8. 300 CHLORIDE SAND 15.55$           15.39$           -$                 
9. 250 2NS SAND 7.40$             7.33$             8.85$               
10. 500 MASON SAND 8.15$             8.07$             9.50$               

1% BLANK

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 81,960.00$   81,140.40$   N/A N/A

    ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 40,285.00$   2,725.00$        37,180.00$     

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 50Tons / 40Yds 50 Tons 50 Tons
Within Hours 24 48 48

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 6-5pm 7-6pm BLANK
Emergency Phone #: (810) 614-6473 (586) 754-4574 BLANK

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: BLANK N/30 NET 30 DAYS

EXCEPTIONS: NONE BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:Completed Y or N YES YES YES

NO BIDS:
  Hart Pavement Striping Corp

BOLDFACE TYPE DENOTES LOW BIDDERS

ATTEST: PROPOSAL - One Year Requirements of Aggregates with an Option to Renew for
  Emily Frontera One Additional Year
  Tom Rosewarne
  MaryAnn Hays _______________________________
  Jeanette Bennett Jeanette Bennett

Purchasing Director

G:\ITB-COT 04-13 Aggregates 

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-13
Opening Date -- 3/24/04 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/1/04 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: OSBURN UNITED JACKIES RICHMOND
INDUSTRIES SOILS INC TRANSPORT TRANSPORT

INC INC

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 1500 6A SLAG 11.68$           N/A 12.45$             11.45$           
2. 4000 22A GRAVEL 9.05$             7.44$               8.10$               8.25$             
3. 1000 PEA GRAVEL 11.10$           11.29$             11.85$             11.05$           
4. 250 60/40 GRAVEL 12.95$           10.92$             12.25$             12.75$           
5. 2000 FILL SAND 6.65$             5.75$               5.15$               4.94$             
6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 9.39$             10.66$             10.45$             9.65$             
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" 12.35$           15.99$             NO BID NO BID
8. 300 CHLORIDE SAND 21.00$           19.99$             NO BID NO BID
9. 250 2NS SAND 8.55$             9.80$               8.30$               8.35$             
10. 500 MASON SAND 10.09$           11.30$             9.20$               9.75$             

0% N/A 0% BLANK

    ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 97,014.00$   N/A N/A N/A

       ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: -$              -$                -$                -$             

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 50 Tons 30 Tons 50 Tons 50 Tons
Within Hours 48 24 24 24

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 6-5pm 8:30-5pm 6-6pm 6-6pm
Emergency Phone #: (313) 363-0080 BLANK (248) 941-2946 (586) 727-1627

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: NET 30 DAYS NET 30 DAYS 30 DAYS NET 10TH

EXCEPTIONS: 3X6 CRUSHED CONCRETE BLANK BLANK BLANK
WOULD LIKE TO SUB W/

4X8 LIMESTONE

CHLORIDE SAND TO BE

MIXED AT 8.7 GAL AT

26% CAL CHLORIDE VS.

36% REQUESTED.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:Completed Y or N YES YES YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 04-13 Aggregates 

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-13
Opening Date -- 3/24/04 BID TABULATION Pg 3 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/1/04 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: AUBURN EDW C LEVY J&H SYLVESTER
SUPPLY COMPANY TRANSPORTATION MATERIAL
CO INC INC COMPANY

EST PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON TON TON

1. 1500 6A SLAG 12.55$           11.58$             -$                  NO BID
2. 4000 22A GRAVEL 8.10$             9.39$               10.15$              NO BID
3. 1000 PEA GRAVEL 12.55$           12.45$             12.85$              11.05$           
4. 250 60/40 GRAVEL 12.55$           13.00$             -$                  10.92$           
5. 2000 FILL SAND 6.25$             6.30$               6.50$                NO BID
6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 12.50$           NO BID 10.00$              NO BID
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" N/A NO BID 12.00$              NO BID
8. 300 CHLORIDE SAND N/A NO BID -$                  NO BID
9. 250 2NS SAND 8.90$             8.65$               8.50$                NO BID
10. 500 MASON SAND 10.05$           10.89$             13.00$              NO BID

BLANK 0% BLANK N/A

    ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: N/A N/A N/A N/A

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: -$              -$                -$                 -$             

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 33 Tons 50 Tons 25 Tons 50 Tons
Within Hours 24 24 12 24

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 6-6pm 7-5pm 6-6pm 6-5pm
Emergency Phone #: BLANK N/A (810) 533-4090 392-2568

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: NET 30 NET 30 DAYS 30 DAYS NET NET 30 DAYS
MORTAR SAND SUB

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK MASON SAND BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:Completed Y or N YES YES YES YES

G:\ITB-COT 04-13 Aggregates 

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-13
Opening Date -- 3/24/04 BID TABULATION Pg 4 of 4
Date Prepared -- 4/1/04 AGGREGATES

VENDOR NAME: ELLSWORTH ELLSWORTH
INDUSTRIES

W/TERMS

EST PRICE/ PRICE/
ITEM QTY/TONS DESCRIPTION TON TON

1. 1500 6A SLAG 12.37$           12.00$           
2. 4000 22A GRAVEL 9.36$             9.08$             
3. 1000 PEA GRAVEL 12.97$           12.58$           
4. 250 60/40 GRAVEL 12.91$           12.52$           
5. 2000 FILL SAND 6.47$             6.28$             
6. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 1" - 3" 9.50$             9.22$             
7. 100 CRUSHED CONCRETE, 3" - 6" 10.75$           10.43$           
8. 300 CHLORIDE SAND 21.80$           21.15$           
9. 250 2NS SAND 9.60$             9.31$             
10. 500 MASON SAND 10.14$           9.84$             

3%

    ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL ALL ITEMS: 101,167.50$ 98,132.48$   

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: -$              -$              

MINIMUM ORDER REQUIREMENTS 50 Tons
Within Hours 48

CONTACT INFO: Hrs of Operation: 24 Hours
Emergency Phone #: (313) 218-4790

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX
CANNOT MEET

TERMS: NET 30

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:Completed Y or N YES

DISCOUNT IF AWARDED ALL ITEMS







 
February 24, 2005  
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item: Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of 

Bids – Flynn Park Sports Lighting  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On Wednesday, February 2, 2005, bid proposals were received for the 
replacement of the existing sub-standard ball diamond lighting system at Flynn 
Park. City management recommends that the bids to replace the ball diamond 
lights at Flynn Park be rejected. 
  
BACKGROUND 
Four of the five bidders submitted bids meeting minimum specifications. After 
visiting the site, one bidder was given approval to bid an alternate system that 
deviated from the specifications, involving the use of an integral ballast system; 
rather than the specified remote ballast system. As this product had been used in 
other Troy facilities, the alternate was considered acceptable.  However, an 
addendum should have been issued to allow other vendors the ability to bid a 
product with a lower-cost integral ballast system.  
 
52 Vendors Notified via the MITN System 
   1 Vendor Walk-In 
   5 Bid Responses Rec’d 
   2 No Bids: Both companies’ schedules would not allow performance of the specifications. 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 

bittnera
Text Box
E-11



Opening Date -- 2/2/05 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-43
Date Prepared -- 2/24/05 BID TABULATION Pg 1 of 2

FLYNN PARK SPORTS LIGHTING
--RECOMMEND REJECTION--

VENDOR NAME: CUSTER G&B TILLMAN
ELECTRIC INC ELECTRICAL CO ELECTRICAL

SERVICES INC

CHECK #: #8187 #6649 #291554493
CHECK AMOUNT: $5,000.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00

PROPOSAL:   TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO REMOVE EXISTING LIGHTING AND
 INSTALL A NEW SPORT LIGHTING SYSTEM ON FOUR BALL DIAMONDS AT FLYNN PARK

LIGHTING SYSTEM FOR FOUR BALL DIAMONDS

Quoting on Lighting Systems: Sherman Poles
Manufactured by: Musco Lighting System

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: NO QUOTE 772,800.00$           
ALTERNATE PROPOSAL:  SAME AS ABOVE EXCEPT USE THE EXISTING WOODEN POLES

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 239,000.00$             283,000.00$        469,850.00$           
Quoting on Lighting Systems: Hubbell Lighting Inc Musco Lighting Musco Lighting
Manufactured by: Hubbell Musco Musco

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: MARKED AS Attachment #1 "A"

CONTACT INFORMATION: HOURS 7am-4pm 7am-5pm
PHONE (248)851-8757 (734)777-9154

COMPETION DATE: Shall Commence 14 Working Days 5 Working Days 10 Working Days
Completion

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes Yes
Date 1/12/05 1/18/05 1/14/05

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX XX
CANNOT MEET

25th each month
W/I 30 Days of 30 days from 50% upon arrival

PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Invoice Date bill date of Lighting System
45 Days

TERMS: 1% 10, Net 30 30 Days Upon Completion
1 Year from

WARRANTY: As Specified completion 1 Yr Parts/Labor
Due to availability of

EXCEPTIONS: Integral Ballast product, we do not Blank
Fixtures approved believe we can meet this date

1/11/05
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y/N Yes Yes Yes

AMENDMENT/ADDENDUM 2 Y/N Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS:
 MTI Lighting Specialists Inc
 Sky Electric Inc

_______________________________
ATTEST: Jeanette Bennett
  Jeffrey Biegler Purchasing Director
  Charlene McComb
  Linda Bockstanz G:ITB-COT 04-43 Flynn Park Lighting

April 1, 2005



Opening Date -- 2/2/05 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 04-43
Date Prepared -- 2/24/05 BID TABULATION Pg 2 of 2

FLYNN PARK SPORTS LIGHTING
--RECOMMEND REJECTION--

VENDOR NAME: MCNULTY ALPHA
ELECTRIC INC ELECTRICAL CO

CHECK #: #4437587220 #013098422
CHECK AMOUNT: $5,000.00 $5,000.00

PROPOSAL:   TO FURNISH ALL LABOR, MATERIALS, AND EQUIPMENT TO REMOVE EXISTING LIGHTING AND
 INSTALL A NEW SPORT LIGHTING SYSTEM ON FOUR BALL DIAMONDS AT FLYNN PARK

LIGHTING SYSTEM FOR FOUR BALL DIAMONDS

Quoting on Lighting Systems: Pro-Tech Lighting Concrete Poles w/Fixtures
Manufactured by: General Electric Musco Lighting

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 607,000.00$             798,732.00$        
ALTERNATE PROPOSAL:  SAME AS ABOVE EXCEPT USE THE EXISTING WOODEN POLES

COMPLETE FOR THE SUM OF: 542,000.00$             662,595.00$        
Quoting on Lighting Systems: Pro Tech Lighting
Manufactured by: GE Sportslighting Musco Lighting

SCHEDULE OF VALUES: MARKED AS Schedule of Value See Attached

CONTACT INFORMATION: HOURS 7am-4pm
PHONE (810)359-5451 (586)630-1951

COMPETION DATE: Shall Commence 7 Working Days 10 Working Days
Completion

SITE INSPECTION: Y/N Yes Yes
Date 1/26/05 1/27/05

INSURANCE CAN MEET XX XX
CANNOT MEET

Net 30 Days
PROGRESS PAYMENTS: Per Month of Invoice

TERMS: Blank Blank

WARRANTY: Blank Blank
Musco Lighting Fixture & Poles

EXCEPTIONS: N/A Complete for the sum of: $814,952.00

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y/N Yes Yes

AMENDMENT/ADDENDUM 2 Y/N Yes Yes

G:ITB-COT 04-43 Flynn Park Lighting

April 1, 2005









bittnera
Text Box
F-02



















































TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
DATE: March 1, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Request to Use Veterans’ Plaza for National Day of Prayer Event   
 

 
The City has received a request to allow the use of Veterans’ Plaza for a 

“National Day of Prayer- Troy Judeo-Christian observance” on May 5, 2005, from 
12 pm to 1 pm.  The Troy Veterans’ Plaza has been used for City sponsored 
events, and other events that are in observation of national holidays, such as 
Memorial Day, Police Memorial Day, and Veterans’ Day. It has been used in the 
past for the National Day of Prayer (a national holiday), but it has never before 
been expressly requested as an exclusive Judeo-Christian observation.  In his 
proclamation for National Day of Prayer 2004, President George W. Bush states:   

 
I ask the citizens of our Nation to give thanks, each according to his 
or her own faith, for the freedoms and blessings we have received 
and for God’s continued guidance and protection.  I also urge all 
Americans to join in observing this day with appropriate programs, 
ceremonies, and activities.   
 
In light of this purpose, the limitation of a National Day of Prayer-Troy to a 

Judeo-Christian observation on municipal property necessarily implicates First 
Amendment concerns.  According to the First Amendment of the U.S. 
Constitution:   

 
Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of 
religion, or prohibiting the free exercise thereof; or abridging the 
freedom of speech, or of the press; or the right of the people 
peaceably to assemble, and to petition the Government for a 
redress of grievances.      
 
The first determinative factor is to decide whether the denominational 

celebration of National Day of Prayer will occur on a designated public forum.  If 
municipal property is defined as a public forum, then the governmental entity 
must allow the use of the property for religious purposes, just as civic and other 
organizations are able to use the property.   Although restrictions cannot be 
based on the content of the message, the municipality can impose time, place, 
and manner restrictions on the use of a public forum.   

   
The City of Troy has not officially designated the Troy Veterans’ Plaza as 

a public forum, and therefore has not yet adopted time, place and manner 
restrictions on the use of the forum.  Upon information and belief, the Troy 
Veterans’ Plaza has been used only in connection with the recognition of a 
national holiday, and has not been authorized for other uses.  However, the 
events in the past at the Troy Veterans’ Plaza have not all been City sponsored 

bittnera
Text Box
F-03



events.  For example, the Troy Veterans’ Committee has organized past 
Veterans’ Day celebrations.  Based on this, there is a strong argument that the 
Troy Veterans’ Plaza is a public forum, which should be available for all 
organizations to use equally.  Under this scenario, there would be a First 
Amendment right to have an exclusively Judeo-Christian celebration of the 
National Day of Prayer.  This is true for all speech, even when it may be 
considered offensive to some of the diverse citizenry of the City of Troy.   Once 
City Council allows the Veterans’ Plaza to be used in an exclusive fashion, it 
loses all ability to prohibit similar requests to use the property, even if these 
requests are made by organizations that may be offensive to some, such as the 
Nazi Party.   

          
If City Council determines that the Troy Veterans’ Plaza is a public forum, 

and can be used for an exclusive Judeo-Christian celebration of the National Day 
of Prayer, then it is essential that there be no endorsement of religion by the City, 
which is prohibited under the First Amendment to the U.S. Constitution.  This 
would preclude City resources from being used for any non-City sponsored event 
at the Troy Veterans’ Plaza.  In the past, City staff has assisted in past 
celebrations on the Troy Veterans’ Plaza by providing podiums, microphones, 
sound systems, chairs, and other miscellaneous assistance.  However, if 
Veterans’ Plaza is a public forum, available for all to use, then City resources 
should not be used, especially for an exclusive Judeo-Christian event.  In 
addition, government officials, including City Council members, should be 
cautious to avoid allegations of government endorsement of religion.  Active 
participation by City Council members in an exclusively Judeo-Christian event on 
City property may lead to allegations that the City has unlawfully endorsed 
religion.   

 
As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please let me 

know.  
 
 
  







TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 

Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
John Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/ Finance & Administration  
Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services  
Carol Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
Carolyn F. Glosby, Assistant City Attorney  

DATE: February 23, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Revisions Concerning Sanctuary Lake Municipal Golf Course  
 

 
 

 
Pursuant to the Agreement- Food Service at Sanctuary Lake Golf 

Course, Emerald Services I, L.L.C., our sub-contractor, is required to 
apply for a liquor license with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission.  
The proposed Addendum to the Agreement (Food Service at Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Course) clarifies the expectations and limitations that will 
accompany this anticipated liquor license.  Most notably, it delegates all 
responsibility for the liquor license to Emerald Services, and requires 
compliance with all liquor laws and regulations.   

 
In connection with the Addendum to the Agreement, we have also 

prepared proposed amendments to Chapter 30, which extend the 
regulations at the Sylvan Glen Municipal Golf Course to the Sanctuary 
Lake Golf Course.   

 
It is our recommendation that City Council approve both the 

Addendum to the Agreement- Food Service and Sanctuary Lake Golf 
Course, and also the proposed amendments to Chapter 30.      

 
As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please 

let us know.          
     
  
 
    

bittnera
Text Box
F-04



Draft 4 – 2/28/05 

 1

CITY OF TROY 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND 
CHAPTER 30 OF THE CODE 

OF THE CITY OF TROY 
 
The City of Troy ordains: 
 
Section 1.  Short Title 
 
This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 30, 
of the Code of the City of Troy.  
 
Section 2.  Amendment 
 
Chapter 30, of the Troy City Code, shall be amended as follows: 
 
 

CHAPTER 30 
 

TROY MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE(S) (SYLVAN GLEN) 
 

1. 1. The operation of Municipal Golf Courses is It is hereby determined to be 
desirable and necessary for the public health, safety and welfare of the City of 
Troy.   

2. There are two such Municipal Golf Courses in the City of Troy- Sylvan Glen 
Municipal Golf Course (“Sylvan Glen”), operated by the City of Troy; and the , 
that the Troy Municipal Golf Course (Sylvan Glen) the Troy Sanctuary Lake 
Municipal Golf Course (“Sanctuary Lake”), which is  be operated by the said City 
of Troy as lessee and agent of the Municipal Building Authority of Troy, on a 
public utility rate basis in accordance with the provisions of the Building Authority 
Act, 1948  Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan 31), (MCL 123.951 et. seq.),, 1933, as 
amended. 

 
 
23.  Whenever the words "Golf Course" are referred to in this Chapter, they shall be 

understood to mean either the complete Troy Sylvan Glen Municipal Golf Course 
(“Sylvan Glen”) or Sanctuary Lake, or both , including all appurtenances thereto 
and including all extensions and improvements thereto, or which may hereafter 
be acquired, as same  Sanctuary Lake is leased by the City of Troy from the 
Municipal Building Authority of Troy pursuant to a certain Contract of Lease 
dated June 23, 1970  July 31, 2001 (sometimes hereinafter referred to as the 
"Lease").    

 
Whenever the words "revenues" and net revenues" are used in this Chapter, they 
shall be understood to have the meanings as defined in the Revenue Bond Act, 
Section 3, Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, (MCL 141.103), as amended. 

 
34. The operation, maintenance, alteration, repair and management of the Golf 

Course shall be under the supervision and control of the City Council, subject to 



Draft 4 – 2/28/05 

 2

the terms of the Lease. The Council may employ such person or persons in such 
capacity or capacities as it deems advisable to carry on the efficient management 
and operation of the Golf Course and may make such rules, orders and 
regulations as it deems advisable and necessary to assure the efficient 
management and operation of the Golf Course. 

 
4. Rates to be charged for service furnished by the Golf Course and the use 

thereof, shall be as the same may be from time to time established by resolution 
of the City Council,; provided, however, for miscellaneous or special services for 
which a special rate shall be established, such rates shall be fixed by the City 
Council. 

 
5. No free service shall be furnished by said Golf Course to any person, firm or 

corporation, public or private, or to any public agency or instrumentality. 
 
6. Permitted uses of the Golf Course, and rates for services furnished by the Golf 

Course may, from time to time, be established by resolution.  The rates shall be 
fixed, and revised from time to time as may be necessary.  The rates to be 
charged for services furnished by the Golf Course established shall be in an 
amount which is estimated to be sufficient to provide for the following:   forfor a,)   
the payment of the expenses of administration and operation; b.), maintenance 
such expenses for maintenance of the said Golf Course which as are necessary 
to preserve it in the same in good repair and working order; c.), to provide for the 
timely payment of the owing contractual obligations of the City to the Municipal 
Building Authority of Troy, pursuant to the aforesaid Lease between said 
Authority and the City of Troy;  as the same become due, and to provide for  d.) 
such other expenditures and funds for said the Golf Course as this Chapter may 
require. Such rates shall be fixed and revised from time to time as may be 
necessary to produce these amounts. 

 
7. The fiscal year for the Golf Course commences on July 1.  shall be operated on 

the basis of an operating year commencing on July 1 and ending on the last day 
of June next following. 

 
8. The revenues of the Golf Course shall be accounted for in separate enterprise 

funds at the City of Troy. set aside, as collected, and deposited in a separate 
depository account. 

 
9. The Golf Course is not a public park, and is The Golf Course is not subject to the 

rules and regulations governing alcoholic beverages in public parks, as set forth 
in Chapter 26 of this Code. 

 
10. 10. The City’s sub-contractor has the ability to sell up to two beers per golfer, 

which the golfer can then take onto the Golf Course for consumption, as long as 
the following conditions are satisfied:   

a. The sub-contractor has the exclusive right to sell food and beverages on 
the Golf Course, pursuant to a lease or other agreement with the City, 
and the sub-contractor is in compliance with the terms of the lease or 
other agreement.   

b. The sub-contractor has received a license to sell the alcohol from the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission, and is compliant with the 



Draft 4 – 2/28/05 

 3

Administrative Rules and Regulations, and federal, state, and local laws 
concerning the sale of alcohol.   

c. No sales of alcohol can be sold on the Golf Course proper. 
  

11. Alcoholic beverages may be sold by the Golf Course restaurant lessees, shall be 
restricted to two beers per golfer, sold only to golfers for consumption on the Golf 
Course, and shall be sold from the Clubhouse only with no sales being allowed 
on the golf course proper, under provisions established by City Council the 
Recreation Department and incorporated in the lLease, and provided the 
restaurant lessees has have secured the necessary licenses for such sales from 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission. 

 
 
Section 3.  Savings 
 
All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred, 
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved.  Such proceedings may 
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such 
proceedings were commenced.  This ordinance shall not be construed to alter, 
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted 
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this 
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the 
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all 
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for 
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in 
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the 
commission of such offense. 
 
Section 4.  Severability Clause 
 
Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held 
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in 
full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Effective Date 
 
This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon 
publication, whichever shall later occur. 
 
This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County, 
Michigan, at a regular meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big 
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the _______ day of _____________, ____. 
 
 
                    ______________________________ 
      Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
                                    ______________________________ 



Draft 4 – 2/28/05 

 4

                                     Tonni Bartholomew. City Clerk    
 
 



 

 1

 
CHAPTER 30 

 
MUNICIPAL GOLF COURSE(S)  

 
1 The operation of Municipal Golf Courses is hereby determined to be desirable 

and necessary for the public health, safety and welfare of the City of Troy.   
 

2. There are two such Municipal Golf Courses in the City of Troy- Sylvan Glen 
Municipal Golf Course (“Sylvan Glen”), operated by the City of Troy; and the   
Troy Sanctuary Lake Municipal Golf Course (“Sanctuary Lake”), which is 
operated by the City of Troy as lessee and agent of the Municipal Building 
Authority of Troy, in accordance with the provisions of the Building Authority Act, 
1948   Public Acts of Michigan 31), (MCL 123.951 et. seq.),, as amended. 

 
3.  Whenever the words "Golf Course" are referred to in this Chapter, they shall be 

understood to mean either Sylvan Glen or Sanctuary Lake, or both, including all 
appurtenances thereto and including all extensions and improvements thereto, or 
which may hereafter be acquired, as Sanctuary Lake is leased by the City of Troy 
from the Municipal Building Authority of Troy pursuant to a certain Contract of 
Lease dated July 31, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as the "Lease").    

 
Whenever the words "revenues" and net revenues" are used in this Chapter, they 
shall be understood to have the meanings as defined in the Revenue Bond Act, 
Section 3, Act 94, Public Acts of Michigan, 1933, (MCL 141.103), as amended. 

 
4. The operation, maintenance, alteration, repair and management of the Golf 

Course shall be under the supervision and control of the City Council, The 
Council may employ such person or persons in such capacity or capacities as it 
deems advisable to carry on the efficient management and operation of the Golf 
Course and may make such rules, orders and regulations as it deems advisable 
and necessary to assure the efficient management and operation of the Golf 
Course. 

 
5. No free service shall be furnished by said Golf Course to any person, firm or 

corporation, public or private, or to any public agency or instrumentality. 
 
6. Permitted uses of the Golf Course, and rates for services furnished by the Golf 

Course may, from time to time, be established by resolution.  The rates shall be 
fixed, and revised from time to time as may be necessary.  The rates to be 
charged for services furnished by the Golf Course shall be in an amount which is 
estimated to be sufficient to provide for the following:   

 
a) payment of the expenses of administration and operation;  
b) maintenance expenses for the Golf Course which are necessary to 

preserve it in good repair and working order;  
c) timely payment of the owing contractual obligations of the City to the 

Municipal Building Authority of Troy, pursuant to the aforesaid Lease 
between said Authority and the City of Troy;     

d) such other expenditures and funds for  the Golf Course as this Chapter 
may require.  



 

 2

 
7. The fiscal year for the Golf Course commences on July 1.   
 
 
8. The revenues of the Golf Course shall be accounted for in separate enterprise 

funds at the City of Troy.  
 
9. The Golf Course is not subject to the rules and regulations governing alcoholic 

beverages in public parks, as set forth in Chapter 26 of this Code. 
 
10. The City’s sub-contractor has the ability to sell up to two beers per golfer, which 

the golfer can then take onto the Golf Course for consumption, as long as the 
following conditions are satisfied:   

 
a. The sub-contractor has the exclusive right to sell food and beverages on 

the Golf Course, pursuant to a lease or other agreement with the City, 
and the sub-contractor is in compliance with the terms of the lease or 
other agreement.   

b. The sub-contractor has received a license to sell the alcohol from the 
Michigan Liquor Control Commission, and is compliant with the 
Administrative Rules and Regulations, and federal, state, and local laws 
concerning the sale of alcohol.   

c. No sales of alcohol can be sold on the Golf Course proper. 
  
 
 



ADDENDUM TO THE AGREEMENT  
FOOD SERVICE AT SANCTUARY LAKE GOLF COURSE 

 
 This Addendum is entered into between the City of Troy, (“City”) and 

Emerald Services I, L.L.C. (“Operator”), on this ________ day of 

____________________, 2005.   This Addendum is incorporated by reference 

into the Agreement- Food Service At Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, which was 

executed by the parties on August 30, 2004.   

 WHEREAS, under the State of Michigan’s liquor laws and regulations, 

applicants for a liquor license must demonstrate the ability to comply with and 

enforce the liquor laws and conditions of a liquor license from the State of 

Michigan; and  

WHEREAS, in most cases, this requires a possessory interest over the 

property that is licensed by the Michigan Liquor Control Commission; and  

WHEREAS, the City is not willing and/or able to relinquish its possessory 

interest over the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, but has sub-contracted with 

Operator, who has the exclusive right to conduct the sale of food and beverages, 

including alcoholic beverages, at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  This exclusive 

right to sell food and beverages applies to the Club House at Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course, as well as the Outside Grill and Beverage Cart; and  

WHEREAS, in order to facilitate Operator’s application for a liquor license, 

the parties need to set forth the rights, responsibilities, and liabilities of the 

Operator concerning the exclusive right to conduct the sale of food and 

beverages, including alcoholic beverages;  

 



NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:   

1. City grants Operator the limited use of the Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course, which includes the Outside Grill and Beverage 

Cart, for the purpose of controlling and monitoring the 

consumption of alcohol on the premises.   

2. Although Operator is not the owner of the Sanctuary Lake 

Golf Course, Operator agrees to apply for a liquor license 

with the State of Michigan, and agrees to be bound by all the 

terms and conditions required by the Michigan Liquor 

Control Commission.  This includes, but is not limited to, 

compliance with the rules and regulations of the Michigan 

Liquor Control Commission, and all federal, state, or local 

laws concerning the sale of alcohol.   

3. Operator agrees to assume the responsibilities of a liquor 

licensee at Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, and agrees to be 

responsible for all sanctions and/or penalties assessed for 

alleged violations of the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission’s Administrative Rules and Regulations and/or 

federal, state, or local laws concerning the sale of alcohol at 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.  This includes the assumption 

of a licensee’s responsibility for the actions of Operator’s 

employees, agents, or representatives who sell alcohol.   



4. Operator agrees that there shall be no sales of alcohol on 

the Sanctuary Lake golf course proper, but that Operator, if 

licensed to do so by the Michigan Liquor Control 

Commission, may sell up to two beers per golfer at the Club 

House or the Outside Grill, which the golfer can then take 

onto the golf course for consumption.    

5. City agrees to provide Operator with a motorized golf cart, at 

no charge, for operation by Operator’s employees on the 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course, in order to facilitate monitoring 

of alcohol consumption.  Operator agrees to coordinate its 

operation of the golf cart with the City’s Director of Golf 

Operations, and understands and agrees that the City may 

provide back up security to monitor alcohol consumption on 

the Sanctuary Lake Golf Course.   

6. Operator recognizes and agrees that operation and control 

of normal golf course activities lies exclusively with the City, 

except as otherwise provided in the agreement between the 

parties.  

7. Operator agrees to indemnify and hold the City harmless 

from any and all claims arising out of the sale of alcoholic 

beverages.  

 

 



WITNESSES:     CITY OF TROY 

________________________  By:  ____________________________ 
   Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 

________________________ By:  _________________________ 
 Tonni Bartholomew, City Clerk 

 
 
 
WITNESSES:  EMERALD FOOD SERVICE I, L.L.C. 
 
_________________________ By:  ____________________________ 
 
 
_________________________ Its:  ____________________________ 
 



Date: March 3, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From: Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director 
 Mark Stimac, Building and Zoning Director 
 Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 
Subject: AGENDA ITEM – ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 

215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to 
Accessory Buildings and Definitions and Provisions – Schedule a Joint 
City Council and Planning Commission Special Meeting March 28, 2005 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends that City Council schedule a Joint City Council and 
Planning Commission Special Meeting on March 28, 2005 at 7:30 p.m. at the 
Fire/Police Training Center, 4850 John R, Troy, Michigan. 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
City Council adopted a resolution at the December 6, 2004 meeting that referred this 
item back to the Planning Commission.  The issues identified include garage door 
height, number of detached buildings, greenhouses and footprint ratios of attached 
accessory structures.  The Planning Commission effectively resolved the issues related 
to greenhouses and the number of detached buildings.  However, the Planning 
Commission has not developed a recommendation related to garage door heights and 
foot print ratios.   
 
At the February 22, 2005, Planning Commission Special/Study Meeting, John Szerlag, 
City Manager, moderated an interest-based approach to identify the interests of both 
the Planning Commission and City Management as relates to accessory 
structures/garage door heights.  A Planning Commission majority maintained the 
opinion that an 8-foot height limit should be included in a recommendation to City 
Council, while City Management maintained the opinion that there should not be a 
specific limit on accessory structures/garage door heights.  The purpose of the study 
session was to identify interests and further determine if there could be a unified 
recommendation.  Unfortunately, a unified recommendation was not formulated. 
 
City Management suggested to the Planning Commission that a Joint City Council and 
Planning Commission Special Meeting be scheduled to determine the interests of the 
City Council.  The purpose of identifying the interests of City Council is to provide 
direction to both the Planning Commission and City Council.  This will be used in the 

bittnera
Text Box
F-05



process of formulating a ZOTA 215-A recommendation to City Council, including 
size/footprint of accessory structures, garage door heights and related issues.  The 
interest-based approach will use John Szerlag, City Manager, as moderator and Peggy 
Clifton, Human Resource Director as the moderator’s assistant.  Then City Council, 
Planning Commission and City Management will provide input through this approach.  
City Management will be represented by John Lamerato, Assistant City 
Manager/Finance; Doug Smith, Real Estate and Development Director; Mark Stimac, 
Building and Zoning Director; and Mark F. Miller, Planning Director. 
 
 
 
cc: File/ ZOTA 215-A 
 
 
Prepared by:  MFM 
 
 
G:\ZOTAs\ZOTA 215 Accessory Structures in R-1\ZOTA 215 A Joint CC PC meeting.doc 
 
 
 
 



 
March 1, 2005 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
From:  John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance 

Brian Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Agenda Item:  2005 Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival Schedule/Fees 
 
Recommendation 
Staff recommends City Council approve the requests of the Troy Daze Advisory 
Committee for the 2005 Magic of Fall/Troy Daze Festival schedule and fees.   
 
Background 
Attached please find correspondence from Bob Berk, Troy Daze Chairman and Jim 
Cyrulewski, Festival Committee Chairman outlining details of the festival to be held 
September 15 - 18, 2005.  The Troy Daze Advisory Committee is in the planning 
process for the 2005 Troy Daze festival.   
 
Fees 
Each year the Troy Daze Advisory Committee evaluates the fees for the festival and 
makes adjustments based on expenses.  For 2005, the committee recommends 
increasing fees in the following categories: 
 
Parking 
Booths Food Vendor, Business in/outside tent, Community Group 

in/outside tent 
5k race  Early and late registration 
Magic Cauldron  Game tickets  
 
Details regarding the increases are included in the attached memo. 
 
Schedule 
The attached schedule shows no changes for the 2005 festival. However, the 
committee is considering some reductions due to budget constraints. 
 
Budget/Operating Revenues and Expenditures 
The projected year-end operating budget for Troy Daze: 
 Revenues     $ 162,620  

Expenditures           175,585 
 
The proposed 2005-2006 operating budget: 
 Revenues     $ 157,100 
 Expenditures        175,675 

bittnera
Text Box
F-06



 
In 2004, the City contributed approximately $68,000 to the festival. The 2005 budget will 
reflect no more than $51,000 cost to the City. The 2004-05 projected year end budget 
does not include police, fire and community affairs wages and benefits, or banner costs 
estimated at $35,000. The proposed budget for 05-06 includes wages for these 
departments but not benefits estimated at $6500. The revenues include the $10,000 
cash contribution the City makes to the budget. 
 
As you can see, the committee has made considerable decreases to budget expenses. 
It is anticipated that with the decrease in expenses and the proposed fee increases the 
festival will continue its history of fall magic in Troy. 
 
 
 





















March 1, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Mission, Vision and Values for Troy Employees 
 
 
 
A special/study meeting has been called to discuss a mission statement for City Council 
which essentially will complement our goals.  To assist Council in its deliberations which 
will begin on May 24, 2005, delineated below you’ll find the mission, vision and values 
statement for Troy employees. 
 
Mission Statement 
 
Provide public service to people in a friendly, professional manner so they appreciate 
the experience and can expect to be served that way again. 
 
Vision Statement 
 
To that end, we strive to be: 
 

• Externally focused on our customers 
• Professional and courteous in our treatment of others 
• Aggressive in our efforts to improve service delivery by using the best means 

available 
• Concerned about the professional growth of coworkers  

 
Values Statement
 
We value honesty, courtesy, responsiveness, diversity, lifelong learning, ethical 
behavior, quality, cooperation, accessibility, dedication, loyalty, and excellence. 
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\03.07.05 – Mission, Vision and Values for Troy Employees 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02a



  March 2, 2005 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: John M. Lamerato, ACM / Finance & Administration   

Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
James A. Nash, Financial Services Director 

 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item - Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Process 

Award – Audit Services 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
On February 4, 2005, three (3) proposals were received to provide audit services 
for the fiscal years ending June 30th 2005, 2006, and 2007, with a three (3) year 
option to renew.  City management recommends that a contract be awarded to 
Doeren Mayhew of Troy, Michigan, the highest scoring respondent, as a result of 
a best value process for an estimated annual cost of $55,695.00. The award is 
contingent upon vendor submission of proper contract and proposal documents, 
including insurance certificates and all specified requirements. 
 
 
SELECTION PROCESS 
 
The best value approach leading to this award recommendation is based upon 
the vendor offering the best combination of a variety of factors.  Three staff 
members independently evaluated proposals of the bidders meeting minimum 
requirements.  The Staff Committee reviewed the firms using pass/ fail criteria, 
weighted criteria, scripted interviews, and pricing.  References were contacted 
and asked scripted questions. These factors are documented in the attached 
Executive Summary. 
 
 
SUMMARY 
 
After completing the evaluation process, Doeren Mayhew received the highest 
weighted score from the committee.  Accordingly, it is the recommendation of the 
committee to award the audit services contract to Doeren Mayhew. 
 
 
BUDGET 
 
Funds for the audit are available in the various operating accounts for Finance, 
DDA, Block Grant Administration, and Brownfield Redevelopment. 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02b



PROPOSED - STANDARD PURCHASING RESOLUTION 8 
 
RESOLVED, That a three-year contract to provide Audit Services for years 2005, 
2006, and 2007 with an option to renew for three additional years is hereby 
awarded to Doeren Mayhew of Troy, Michigan, the lowest bidder with the highest 
score, as the result of a Best Value process at an estimated annual cost of 
$55,695.00, as outlined in the tabulation opened February 4, 2005, a copy of 
which shall be attached to the original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is contingent upon contractor 
submission of proper contract and proposal documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements.   
 
 



 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

AUDIT SERVICES 
 

STATISTICS: 
 7 Request for Proposals or Notices were sent by email or fax 
 3 responses were received 
 Doeren Mayhew was rated the most qualified firm by receiving the highest score 

 
FINAL SCORING: 
The final score for each qualified Short-listed bidder from Phase 2 will be determined as 
follows:   
   40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)    = 
       30% x Evaluation Score (100 pt. Base)   =  
     20% x Oral Presentation Score (100 pt. Base) = 
    10% x Other (100 pt. Base)      = 
                                 100 90% Final Weighted Score 

 
The following bidders submitted a proposal and received the indicated final scores: 
COMPANY  SCORE 
Doeren Mayhew 66 
The Rehmann Group 51 
 
BIDDER NOT MEETING SPECIFICATIONS: 
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP was disqualified for the following: 

 
 VK&C did not have Michigan governmental experience listed 
 The only Michigan staff listed did not have municipal experience 
 VK&C made an assumption in their RFP that the City would supply draft financial 

statements.  This assumption was in conflict with a specification requiring preparation, 
editing, and printing of reports 

 
REASONS FOR NO BID RESPONSES: 
PriceWaterhouseCoopers LLP respectfully declined to bid but requested to remain on our bid list. 
Plante Moran, PLLC expressed numerous reasons for not bidding, which include:  1) Troy was not upset 
with the current auditing firm and probably would stay with them; 2) large emphasis on fee; 3) for the 
effort, they probably would not get it; 4) they are a premier firm and could not receive enough points to 
make that apparent; 5) they are very busy at audit time but could do the work if requested. 
Wolinski & Company, CPA, PC, during the process, Ms. Houghton mentioned that they would not be 
submitting a RFP because, since the Enron scandal, regulatory agencies are trying to crack down on 
firms and require them to separate consulting from CPA services.  Wolinski & Co. does more consulting. 
KPMG – did not respond to voicemail – earlier had refused to provide email address. 
 
Attachments: 
Evaluation Process 
Weighted Scoring Summary 
 
G:/Best Value SR8 – RFP – Audit Services – Exec Sum RFP-COT 04-60.doc 



EVALUATION PROCESS:   
 

AUDIT SERVICES 
      SELECTION PROCESS  Page 1 of 2 
 
CRITERIA FOR SELECTION 
The City Committee reviewed the proposals using the following criteria: 
 
A. Compliance with qualifications criteria  
B. Completeness of the proposal 
C. Correlation of the proposals submitted to the needs of the City of Troy 
D. Any other factors which may be deemed to be in the City’s best interest 
E. Evaluation Process 
 
Phase 1:  Qualifications Evaluation. 
 
A designated member of the Committee reviewed all responses and determined if that company met 
the minimum established criteria.  A standardized form was used for all firms.     
(Evaluation Criteria Sheet attached) 
 
Phase 2:  Weighted Evaluation Process. 
 
Those firms that passed the initial pass/ fail phase, were independently rated by each member of 
the Evaluation Committee using a standardized weighted score sheet.  The rating forms were turned 
into Purchasing who then calculated the weighted scores for the final score indicated on the 
Executive Summary.  The scores of the three Committee Members were averaged into one score for 
each bidder for this phase of the process. 
 
Phase 3:  Oral Presentation 
 
Both firms were invited to interview with the Evaluation Committee.  A scripted format was used to 
ensure fairness to both firms.  Each Committee member completed his or her Interview Form 
independently without discussion.  The forms were turned into Purchasing to calculate the scores 
for the final score reported on the Executive Summary.  The scores of the three Committee Members 
were averaged into one score for each bidder for this phase of the process.   
 
Phase 4:  “Other” Points 
 
The Committee decided to eliminate this phase of the process therefore no “Other” points were 
awarded.   
 
Phase 5:  Price   
 
Points for price will be calculated as follows: 
 
CALCULATIONS: 
1.   The proposals shall be arranged from lowest proposal to highest proposal 
2.   High Proposal (-) Low Proposal = Range 
3.   A mean or average will be calculated from the data, as well as the variance and standard 

deviation.  This information will be used to compare and interpret the measures of location and 
variability within the population.  Points will be given based upon the number of standard 
deviations that the bid price is from the mean or average or similar process depending upon the 
population. 

  
 



              AUDIT SERVICES 
      SELECTION PROCESS  Page 2 of 2 
 
 
Phase 6:  Final Scoring and Selection 
 
The highest final weighted score will be the firm recommended to the Troy City Council for Award. 
 
   40% x Price Score (100 pt. Base)  = 
       30% x Evaluation Score (100 pt. Base)  =  
     20% x Oral Presentation Score (100 pt. Base) = 
    10% x Other (100 pt. Base)   = 
                                     100% 90% Final Weighted Score 

 
 
Note:    The City of Troy reserved the right to change the order or eliminate an evaluation phase if 

deemed in the City’s best interest to do so. 



 
WEIGHTED RATING 

     AUDIT SERVICES 
 
 
 
WEIGHTED EVALUATION – Rating Non-Mandatory Requirements: 
 
Raters: 
 

1 2 3 AVERAGE 

Vendors: 
 

    

1.  Doeren Mayhew 
 

82 61 65 69.34 = 69 

2.  The Rehman Group 
 

91 82 64 79.0 

 
INTERVIEW SCORING:  
 
Raters: 
 

1 2 3 AVERAGE 

Vendors: 
 

    

1.   Doeren Mayhew 
 

59 83 79 73.67 = 74 

2.   The Rehman Group 
 

85 93 76 84.67 = 85 

 
 
FINAL SCORING: 
 
 Score 

Price Score 
40% of Total 

Score 
Weighted Score 
30% of Total 

Score  
Interview Score 
20% of Total 

FINAL 
SCORE 
Max. = 90 

 
Categories: 
 

 
Price  

 
Weighted 

 
Interview 

 

1. Doeren Mayhew 
 

75 x .40 = 30 69 x .30 = 20.7= 21 74 x .20 = 14.8 = 15 66 

2. The Rehman Group 
 

25 x .40 = 10 79 x .30 = 23.7= 24 85 x .20 = 17 51 



50,000.0
52,000.0
54,000.0
56,000.0
58,000.0
60,000.0
62,000.0
64,000.0

COSTS

Doeren
Mayhew

The
Rehmann

Group
VENDOR

AUDIT SERVICES

Vendor Cost
Mean



AUDIT SERVICES
ANALYSIS

STANDARD
VENDOR COST MEAN DIFFERENCE D2 VARIANCE DEVIATION POINTS

Doeren Mayhew 55,695.0        59,758         4,062.50         16503906.25 -1 75
0 (Mean) 50

The Rehmann Group 63,820.0        59,758         (4,062.50)        16503906.25 +1 25

119,515.0$    33,007,813 16503906.25 4062.50

G:\EXCEL LIST: StandardDeviationAuditServices02-05.xls



CITY OF TROY RFP-COT 04-60
Opening Date -- 2-4-05 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL Page 1 of 1
Date Prepared -- 2/24/05 AUDIT SERVICES

VENDOR NAME:

PROPOSAL: Audit Services for the City of Troy for fiscal years 2005, 2006, 2007 ending June 30th with an Option
to Renew for three additional fiscal years

FIRM QUESTIONNAIRE: Y or N YES YES

PROPOSAL A: City of Troy Audit
All-Inclusive Maximum Price for 2005 Audit 

Annual Cost: 45,840.00$    57,000.00$   

Staff - Hours & Hourly Rates Y or N YES YES

Federal Programs - Annual Cost: 3,585.000$    INCLUDED
Out of Pocket Expenses: None None

PROPOSAL B: Downtown Development
All-Incusive Maximum Price - DDA Audits for 2005

Annual Cost: 2,345.00$      3,070.00$     

Out of Pocket Expenses: None None
Staff - Hours & Hourly Rate Y or N YES YES

PROPOSAL C: Brownfield Redevelopment
All-Incusive Maximum Price - BRA Audits for 2005

Annual Cost: 1,950.00$      1,800.00$     

Staff - Hours & Hourly Rate Y or N YES YES
Out of Pocket Expenses: None None

PROPOSAL D: Local Development Authority
All-Incusive Maximum Price - Smart Zone Audits for 2005

Annual Cost: 1,975.00$      1,950.00$     

Staff - Hours & Hourly Rate Y or N YES YES
Out of Pocket Expenses: None None

ESTIMATED GRAND TOTAL: 55,695.00$    63,820.00$   
INSURANCE: Can Meet YES YES

Cannot Meet

TERMS: BLANK BLANK

EXCEPTIONS: BLANK BLANK

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Y or N YES YES

DMS:
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP ($45,000)
  Reasons: No Michigan municipal experience listed; and draft financial statements are not available, but the responsibility of the auditor.
NO BIDS:
PriceWaterhouseCoopers

ATTEST: ____________________________________
 Aileen Bittner Jeanette Bennett
 Laura Fitzpatrick Purchasing Director
 Jeanette Bennett

G:\RFP-COT 04-60 Auditing Services

DOEREN MAYHEW THE REHMANN GROUP



 
       RE: RFP-COT 04-60 
       Audit Services  
     
            February 14, 2005 

 
Mr. John Knepel, CPA 
Virchow, Krause & Company, LLP 
115 S. 84th Street, Suite 400 
Milwaukee, WI  53214 
 
Dear Mr. Knepel, 
 
On behalf of the City of Troy, I would like to thank you for participating in the Request for Proposal for 
Audit Services.  At this time we would like to notify you that during Phase I of the Selection Process 
(Qualifications Evaluation), the Selection Committee eliminated your firm from further consideration for the 
following reasons:   
 
1. Question 3 requests a list of governmental audit clients.  Question 5 requests information on the 

staff assigned to the City of Troy account.  Although your company has municipal references, 
they are all in Wisconsin.  Correspondingly, staff with municipal experience assigned to the City 
account is located in Wisconsin.  The only listed Michigan staff member assigned to the City’s 
account does not have any municipal experience indicated.  The Selection Committee was 
specifically looking for firms with Michigan audit experience for the following reasons: 
 Act 51 Highway Tax receipts, expenditures, reporting requirements 
 DDA, Brownfield Redevelopment, and LDFA (SmartZone) statutes 
 Deficit fund balance reporting issues 
 State Construction Code Act 
 Allowable Investments 

 
2. Question 11 requests information on your firm’s Audit Approach.   In your proposal, you state 

“Our proposal and estimated hours schedule are prepared under the assumption that City’s 
records will be ready to be audited… In addition, draft financial statements will be 
available.”  This assumption does not comply with the intent of the Report Preparation 
specification included in the document on page 4 of 16 of the Request for Qualifications/ 
Proposal, under Section V, Item B. Report Preparation: “Report preparation, editing, and printing 
shall be the responsibility of the auditor”.  

 

 
If you have any questions concerning the Request for Proposal, the process, or would like further 
information, please call the Purchasing Department for assistance at (248) 680-7291.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
Jeanette Bennett 
Purchasing Director 



March 1, 2005  
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/ Services 
  Jeanette Bennett, Purchasing Director 
  Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item – Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise 

Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Parks and Recreation Department recommends approval of a one-year 
contract renewal option for Landscape Maintenance Services for the Downtown 
Development Authority and Civic Center with Torre & Bruglio, Inc., for an 
estimated total cost of $209,014.00. All terms, conditions, and unit pricing will 
remain the same as for the 2004 season and will expire December 31, 2005. 
 
In addition, staff requests the approval of annual flowers for the section of 
landscaped medians on Big Beaver, from I-75 to Rochester Road and on the 
Rochester Road medians adjoining Big Beaver Road at an additional cost of 
$29,764.00 for a total cost for this contract for the 2005 season of $238,778.00 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
On April 8, 2002, the Troy City Council approved a contract to provide three – year 
requirements of upgraded landscape maintenance services for the Troy Civic Center 
and the Downtown Development Authority areas within the Big Beaver corridor. The 
contract includes an option to renew for two (2) additional one-year periods to Torre & 
Bruglio, the highest scoring bidder as a result of a best value process. 
{Resolution#2002-04-213}.   
 
ADDITIONAL ANNUALS 
Last year, the medians on Big Beaver Road from I-75, east to Rochester Road 
were landscaped with a design of evergreen and deciduous trees, shrubs, and 
daylilies. The landscape design also called for the use of annual flowers at 
various point throughout the design to provide constant color and uniformity with 
other medians in Troy that contain annual flower plantings. While the bulk of the 
plant material for the project was installed through contract to be completed by 
the end of the calendar year of 2003, the installation of annuals were scheduled 
to be included with the rest of the annual flower planting in the spring by the 
landscape maintenance contractor, Torre & Bruglio, Inc. 
 

1 of 4 

bittnera
Text Box
G-02c



March 1, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 2 of 4 
 
Since the medians from I-75 to Rochester Road, had not previously been 
planted, the Torre & Bruglio landscape bid did not contain a cost for the 
additional annuals. Last year’s cost for the additional annuals exceeded the 10% 
built into the contract for additional work and item was therefore taken to City 
Council for approval. Council denied the request and no annuals were planted on 
the newly planted medians from I-75 to Rochester Road in 2004. 
 
Annual flowers are planted every spring at the entrances of parks and 
cemeteries, in planter beds at City Hall, Library, Aquatic Center, Community 
Center, Museum, Fire Stations, Nature Center, and numerous landscaped 
medians throughout the City, including Big Beaver from I-75 west to Coolidge. 
The following municipal areas contain seasonal plantings of annual flowers: 
 
Parks: 
Beach Road Park           Jaycee Park 
Beaver Trail Park     Raintree Park 
Boulan Park     Redwood 
Brinston Park      Robinwood Park 
Firefighters Park     Sylvan Glen Lake Park 
Flynn Park 
  
Municipal Facilities:   
City Hall      Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 
Community Center     Union Corners Cemetery 
Family Aquatic Center    Crooks Road Cemetery 
Lloyd A. Stage Nature Center   Beach Road Cemetery 
Fire Stations      Perrin Cemetery 
Museum 
   
Landscaped Medians:  
Big Beaver, I-75 west to Coolidge   Corporate Drive and Crooks Road 
Coolidge at Big Beaver    Tower Drive at Crooks Road 
Crooks Rd. at Long Lake    Long Lake, Corporate to Abington 
Coolidge Rd. at Long Lake    John R Road, 15 Mile to14 Mile 
Corporate Drive at Long Lake  14 Mile Road, I-75 to Executive 
 
The addition of annual flowers to the newly landscaped section of Big Beaver 
medians east of I-75 will complete the intended landscape design and tie 
together the new landscape with existing established plantings on Big Beaver, 
west of I-75, and the Civic Center. Annual flowers provide a much-needed splash 
of color in the spring and throughout the summer. They are an integral part of our 
municipal landscape and elicit many positive comments from residents and 
visitors alike. 
 



March 1, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 3 of 4 
 
LEVELS OF MAINTENANCE 
The areas covered by this contract with Torre & Bruglio receive the highest level 
of service of any landscaped medians in Troy. The DDA median design includes 
a number of annual flowerbeds to provide visual interest and color. Large 
expanses of grass, trees, and some shrubs comprise most of the other 
landscaped medians in Troy. Annual beds are included at some major 
intersections. The level of service of those medians is generally lower than that 
provided by Torre & Bruglio for the DDA medians, since many do not contain 
irrigation, require only mowing.  
 
The maintenance of those medians is administered through a separate contract 
with another vendor. City Parks and Recreation personnel currently maintain all 
flowerbeds other than those on the DDA medians and Civic Center site. 
 
Cost savings could be realized on the maintenance of the DDA medians and 
Civic Center site by reducing the level of service, eliminating annual flowers, 
cutting back on irrigation, or converting flower beds to turf. However, a reduction 
in service level at these locations will result in a corresponding reduction in the 
overall appearance and appeal of the landscape. 
 
SUMMARY 
Torre & Bruglio, Inc. has agreed to renew the contract landscape maintenance 
services for the Civic Center and Downtown Development Authority landscaped 
medians for the 2005 season under the 2004 unit pricing as follows: 
 
Landscape maintenance services      $151,814 
Annual flowers, including installation      $  57,200 
          $209,014 
 
Additional annual flowers, including installation for 
Big Beaver (DDA) medians, I-75 to Rochester Rd. 
not planted previously       $  29,764 
               ESTIMATED TOTAL FOR 2005   $238,778 
 
Torre & Bruglio has done an exceptional job of providing superior landscape 
maintenance for the City of Troy. Staff recommends exercising the first of two (2) 
one-year options to renew the contract, and also requests approval of annual 
flower installation in the DDA median landscaping east of I-75. 



March 1, 2005 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Landscape Maintenance Services 
Page 4 of 4 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
Due to utilizing the best value process in evaluating the request for proposal, a 
market survey was not deemed necessary, since price in only one aspect of the 
criteria used in making the award.  Quality is a major component of this contract 
and Torre & Bruglio has been able to consistently deliver quality services. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds are available in the Parks and Recreation operating budget for the 
renewal of this contract for the 2005 season.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by: Jeff Biegler, Superintendent of Parks 



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   January 19, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on January 19, 2005 at 7:00 PM at City 
Hall in the Council Board Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Maniesh Joshi called the meeting 
to order at 7:02 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Juliana D’Amico  
Catherine Herzog 
Maniesh Joshi (co-chair) 
Rishi Joshi (co-chair) 
Jessica Kraft 
Monika Raj 
Manessa Shaw  
Nicole Vitale 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Emily Burns (in the process of resigning) 
Min Chong 
Andrew Kalinowski 
YuJing Wang (excused – called) 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Mayor Louise Schilling, Guest Speaker 
Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 

                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2005-01-001 
  
 Moved by D’Amico 
 Seconded by Herzog 
 RESOLVED, That the minutes of 12/15/04 be approved with changes 
 Yes: All - 9 
 No: None  
           Absent: 4 – Burns, Chong, Kalinowski, Wang 
           MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. Attendance Report: To note and file 
4. Guest Speaker: Mayor Louise Schilling 
5. City Event: 2005 Community Kaleidoscope: reminders to volunteers 
6. CCPTF Update from TYC Representative CCPTF Member Catherine Herzog – City Council 

resolution re: Proposed Minor League Baseball Stadium 
7. Vacant Seat/Membership: 

Vote to recommend [to City Council] a student to fill vacant seat.   
Recommendation will be forwarded to City Council in February.   
Also, looking ahead: Succession Plan for Seats to be Vacated 5/05 Due to Graduations 
(at least 8 seats will be vacated): 
 Jan, Feb, March: City accepting applications; TYC to promote 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01a



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   January 19, 2005 
 
 

 2

 April 27th TYC Meeting: TYC interview applicants and recommend students for 
appointment 

 May: Send recommendations to City Council 
 May 25th TYC Meeting: New members attend meeting with outgoing members 
 August: Terms officially begin for new members 
 Late 2005 or sometime in 2006: TYC Alumni invited to visit a TYC meeting and 

share how their involvement in local government impacted their college 
experiences 

 
Resolution # TY-2005-01-002 

  
 Moved by D’Amico 
 Seconded by Bozimowski 

RESOLVED, That Karen Wullaert is recommended for appointment to fill the vacant seat 
on the Troy Youth Council. 

 
 Yes: All - 9 
 No: None  
           Absent: 4 – Burns, Chong, Kalinowski, Wang 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 

Resolution # TY-2005-01-003 
  
 Moved by Raj 
 Seconded by R. Joshi 

RESOLVED, That Anna Qiu is recommended as the alternate for appointment to fill the 
vacant seat on the Troy Youth Council. 

 
 Yes: 2 – D’Amico, Raj 
 No: 7 – Bozimowski, Herzog, M. Joshi, R. Joshi, Kraft, Shaw, Vitale 
           Absent: 4 – Burns, Chong, Kalinowski, Wang 
           MOTION FAILED 
 
  

Resolution # TY-2005-01-004 
  
 Moved by Herzog 
 Seconded by Vitale 

RESOLVED, That Jennifer Cui as the alternate for appointment to fill the vacant seat on 
the Troy Youth Council. 

 
 Yes: 7 - Bozimowski, Herzog, M. Joshi, R. Joshi, Kraft, Shaw, Vitale 
 No: None  
 Abstain: 2 – D’Amico, R. Joshi 
           Absent: 4 – Burns, Chong, Kalinowski, Wang 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 

  



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – FINAL MINUTES   January 19, 2005 
 
 

 3

8. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification for 
December and January Meetings 

 
 Resolution # TY-2005-01-05 
 
 Moved by D’Amico 
 Seconded by Shaw 

RESOLVED, That members Maniesh Joshi (December) and YuJing Wang (January) are 
excused. 

 
 Yes: All - 9 
 No: None  
           Absent: 4 – Burns, Chong, Kalinowski, Wang 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 

Youth Council Comments 
 

 
 

8. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED February 23rd 7:00 P.M. 

@ CITY HALL 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:39 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Rishi Joshi, Co-chair 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



FINAL 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, January 25, 2005 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:30 pm. 
 
Present: 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Marilyn Musick 
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski     

Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart (absent)  
Bob Preston (absent) 

 
Resolution # TD-2005-01-001 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the November 23, 2004 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved.  Motion approved. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Tabled 
2. Performance Report 

 
Resolution # TD-2005-01-002 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
RESOLVED that the report be approved as submitted. Motion Approved. 

    
Resolution # TD-2005-01-003 
 
Moved by Kessie Kaltsounis, Seconded by Bill Hall   
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.  Motion approved. 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 7:45 pm.   
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Robert Berk, Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary

bittnera
Text Box
J-01b



TROY DAZE MINUTES - FINAL        
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, January 25, 2005 at the 
Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:45 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 

Present:
Mike Gonda  
JoAnn Preston 
Cele Dilley  
Bill Hall  
Kessie Kaltsounis  
Bob Berk  
Jim Cyrulewski  
Marilyn Musick  
Sandy Macknis  
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski  
Tom Clark  
Tarcisio Massaini  
Jefrey Super  
Tom Tighe 
Doris Schuchter 

Tim McAvoy 
Dan O’Brien  
Padma Kuppa 
 
 
City Staff Present: 
Jeff Biegler    
Bob Matlick  
Tonya Perry  
Gerry Scherlinck  
Cindy Stewart  
Laura Fitzpatrick 
 
 
 

 
Minutes 
Motion to approve the minutes from November 23, 2004. 
 
Moved by Jim Cyrulewski, Seconded by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski.  Motion approved. 
 
Treasurer’s Report 
As of 12/31/04 
Revenue: $134,807.06 ($168,657.06 w/corporate sponsor $ given to City) 
Expenditures: $171,643.49 
 
Not much activity 
Operating supplies 
Education & Training 
 
Receive and file Treasurer’s Report 
 
D.  Correspondence 

1. Meeting Notice 
2. Application Community Kaleidoscope 
3. Letter to TYA – Student Nominee 
4. Note to Pepsi re: demographics 

 
E.  Events Chairperson Report



 
1. Budget review – revenues and expenses after committee looks at proposed budget and 

makes suggestions, Advisory Committee will meet to make decisions 
 
City expressed concern that expenses do not increase this year – last three years festival 
has not broken even.  Deficit numbers are not what City wants. 
 
Corporate Sponsor dollars down in 2004/2005. 
 
Expenses 
 
Operations/Equipment 
-reduce golf carts by $1000 
(eliminate some flat beds) 
 
Operations/Supplies 
Reduce signs for Corporate Sponsors by $1,100. 
 
Miscellaneous 

 Eliminate schedule of events trifold $800 
 Signage $600 
 Art flats $500 
 
 Events 
 Craft Show Advertising $200 
 Talent Shows  $300 
 Magic Cauldron $500 
 Mr. Troy  $100 
 Volunteers (reimbursement of food coupons)  $300 
  
 Entertainment  $4000 
 
 Parade  $1900 
 
 EthniCIty  $1500 
 
 Still have a $15,000 deficit 
 

If Delphi is out – will we still have fireworks? NO.  The event must pay for itself. 
 

Advisory Committee must meet and make hard decisions. 
 
Parade is a $15,000 event – does stop people coming into park, takes dollars away from vendors, 
food, carnival rides.  From a business standpoint, might be an event to look at cutting or changing 
location.  Takes a large number of volunteer manpower to run parade. 
 
Option to move parade route.  Scale it down, lower expenses. 
 
Other ideas to cut costs 



 MFEA Conf $5,000 
 Polo shirts $2,000 
 
Idea to increase fees – parking, booths 
3 day vs. 4 day festival 
Thursday is a trial run day for Operations Committee.  Makes things run smoother. 
 
Need to do a budget analysis. Net cost expenses on project.  Meet with Parade Committee. 
 
Hold Miss Troy Pageant on Thursday evening to reduce costs at Community Center 
 
Volunteer t-shirts 
 
Fireworks 
 
More people in the parade than watching parade. 
 
Police are under same pressures $28,000 overtime, $42,000 with benefits 
All personnel costs that need to be reduced. 
 
Advisory Committee Special Meeting 
 
If increase booth fees by 10%, add $2,000 
 
Tabled rest of discussion until end of meeting. 
 
Alliance Mobile Health Funding – new expense based on their participation. 
 
Line item - $5000 cost for 2004 festival might be reduced by half 
  
 
F.  New Business 

None 
 
G.  Old Business 

1. Storage Trailer – sold for salvage $250.00 
 
2. Meeting with EIA Committee – JoAnn Preston met with committee and suggested to      

them their booth was not up to their standards.  They would like to bring in more groups, 
demos for groups not having booth space, but demo in middle of Ethnicity tent.  Cooking, 
games, music, juggler, etc.  JoAnn Preston’s volunteers can’t handle this. 

 
3. Suggestion List – tabled 

 
4. Action Items – tabled 

 
5. Operations Meeting Review – next meeting 

 



6. Corporation Sponsor Committee Review – all packets out to previous sponsors.  New 
potential sponsors will now be tapped. 

 
7. Volunteer Committee Review – Wednesday, February 9th, 7:00 p.m. 

 
8. Request Memo Review – ready with a few minor corrections 

 
9. See Memo Review minor changes 

 
Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis. Motion approved. 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 8:55 p.m.   
 



 
FINAL 

TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE (Reconvened) 
 

A meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, January 25, 2005 at the Troy 
Community Center. Meeting was reconvened at 9:00 pm. 
 
Present: 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Marilyn Musick 
Cecile Dilley  
Kessie Kaltsounis 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski     

Cindy Stewart 
Bill Hall 
Mike Gonda 
Gerry Scherlinck 
Jeff Biegler

 
Resolution # TD-2005-01-004 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski, Seconded by Kessie Kaltsounis 
RESOLVED that the meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee be reconvened.  Motion 
approved. 
 
Look at some big ticket items – get to a number we can live with, then have another meeting 
of Advisory Committee to finalize. 
 
Bottom line livable but not optimal 
 
Currently we sell ride tickets @ $.50.  Increase to $1.00? 
 
$47,593 income from rides 
 
Add 10% to Booth Revenue + 2000 
 
Corporate Sponsors we are losing 
 $5000 Delphi 
 $5000 Pepsi 
 
Parking Increase –  
Discussion for $5/day all 4 days 
$5 for Friday, Saturday, Sunday 
 
Expenses of electrical expenses 
 
Look @ EthniCity, Parade, Pageant, Fireworks, Senior Sensation 
Look @ value – revenues and expenses 
 
Proposal for study session to look at all events before February 22nd Meeting. 
 
Possible dates – Tuesday, February 8th, 7:30 p.m. location to be announced 
(Need flip charts) 
     
Resolution # TD-2005-01-005 



Moved by Marilyn Musick, Seconded by Cecile Dilley   
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee is adjourned.  Motion approved. 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 10:11 pm.   
 
 
_____________________________ 
Robert  Berk, Vice Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 
 

 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by 
Chair Strat at 7:30 p.m. on February 1, 2005, in the Council Board Room of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Lawrence Littman Gary Chamberlain 
Robert Schultz Lynn Drake-Batts 
Thomas Strat Fazal Khan 
David T. Waller Mark. J. Vleck 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-02-013 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Members Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan and Vleck are 
excused from attendance at this meeting for personal reasons.  
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent:  Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

3. BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) REPORT 
 
Chair Strat reported on the January 18, 2005 BZA meeting. 
 
Variance Request – Mike Elias, 5991 Livernois 
 
The BZA granted a variance for relief of the Zoning Ordinance to construct a new 
gasoline/convenience store to replace the existing facility.   

bittnera
Text Box
J-01c



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

4. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – Accessory Buildings 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the four issues related to the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment:  (1) garage door height, (2) foot print ratios, (3) number of detached 
buildings, and (4) greenhouses.  Public Hearings on the proposed text are 
scheduled for the February 8, 2005 Planning Commission Regular Meeting and the 
February 28, 2005 City Council Regular Meeting.   
 
Garage Door Height 
Garage door heights were discussed at length.  The recommendation of the 
Planning Commission remains that the garage door height should be limited to 8 
feet for both attached and detached garages.  The members feel strongly that the 
Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) is the appropriate body to address requests above 
the 8-foot limit.   
 
It was determined that the Planning Department would (1) draft the appropriate 
proposed amendment language; (2) develop rationale that the BZA is the 
appropriate channel for requests above the 8-foot limit; and (3) clarify City 
Management position on the matter.   
 
Foot Print Ratios 
Foot print ratios were discussed at length.  It was determined that the Planning 
Department would prepare illustrations that demonstrate 70% of the residential 
ground floor area and 50% of the total residential floor area. 
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Minnick is the president 
of Westwood Park Subdivision Homeowners Association.  Mr. Minnick said that 4 
out of 51 homes in his subdivision and a total of 803 existing homes in Troy would 
become non-conforming should the City use the 50% of the residential ground floor 
area formula.  He said the City is overreacting to the handful of complaints received 
on the Alpine monster garage.  Mr. Minnick expressed concerns with respect to (1) 
rebuild, (2) insurance rates, and (3) resale.  He referenced a home in his 
subdivision that has 8 cars parked in the driveway every night, and asked the 
Commission to think about that during its consideration of limiting the size of a 
garage.  Mr. Minnick said his garage looks the same from the street, but is deeper.  
He questioned the rationale of the City in limiting the garage size when in essence a 
deeper garage could be an addition, such as a family room.  Mr. Minnick strongly 
urged that a percentage higher than the proposed 50% of the residential ground 
floor area be considered.  
 
Rod Davies of 3245 Talbot, Troy, was present.  Mr. Davies, owner of a small 
farmhouse with a detached garage and barn, questioned if he would be permitted to 
construct the same structures should they be destroyed, and if he would be required 
to go before the BZA. 
 
Mr. Miller replied that Mr. Davies would be required to go before the BZA should the 
accessory structures exceed the residential square footage limitation that would be 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

set by the City.  Mr. Miller told Mr. Davies to contact the Planning Department to 
discuss specifics on the matter. 
 
Number of Detached Buildings 
The number of detached buildings was discussed.  It was determined to maintain 
the previous recommendation of 2 detached accessory structures and 3 accessory 
supplemental buildings.  Further, it was determined to provide City Council with the 
appropriate justification and illustrations that would demonstrate its 
recommendation.   
 
Greenhouses 
The Planning Department will make the appropriate changes as recommended by 
City Management and provide the draft text for review.  Mr. Motzny recommended 
that the Zoning Ordinance reflect the definition of a greenhouse; i.e., greenhouses 
would be permitted for recreation and pleasure only and not for commercial 
purposes.   
 
 

5. REZONING REQUEST (Z 699) – Proposed Briggs Crossing Condominium, West 
side of Rochester Road, South of Trinway, Section 10 – From R-1C (One Family 
Residential) to R-1T (One Family Attached) 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the proposed rezoning application.  At its January 24, 2005 
Regular Meeting, City Council expressed concern regarding the depth of the parcel 
in relation to the depth of the area classified as Medium Density Residential in the 
Future Land Use Plan. 
 
The petitioner, Fred Binder of 5215 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Binder 
said he met with City staff to discuss alternative development plans, and it was 
determined that a mix of site condominiums and single family homes would not be 
feasible.  Mr. Binder said he is a novice developer and assured the Commission 
that he would hire an experienced developer should the rezoning be approved.  He 
thanked the Planning Department and Doug Smith for assisting him in this 
endeavor.   
 
The Planning Commission reviewed the conceptual site plan provided by the 
petitioner.   
 
Mr. Schultz briefly discussed the liability of a condominium development with 
respect to private roads.  He said a potential problem could arise should the 
development be mixed with condominium and single family homes.  Mr. Schultz 
referenced setback requirements for existing condominium developments 
(Fairways, Maya Meadows, Fountain Park, and the undeveloped parcel on the north 
side of Lamb Road) and said the 570-foot setback for this particular parcel appears 
reasonable.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Chair Strat said it would be extremely difficult to have both condominiums and 
single-family homes under one umbrella because they are different.  
 
The Planning Commission determined that the rezoning application is consistent 
with the depth of the Medium Density Residential classification shown on the Future 
Land Use Plan.   
 
The Planning Department will prepare a report stating specific reasons and 
justification for the Planning Commission recommendation to approve the proposed 
rezoning.   
 
 

6. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, 76 units/lots proposed, South side of Square Lake Road, West side of 
John R, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 

7. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, 24 units/lots proposed, South of Square Lake Road, East side of 
Willow Grove, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Agenda items #6 and #7 involve two parcels in close proximity to each other with the 
same applicant.  They were therefore discussed at the same time. 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the three major issues discussed at the January 11, 2005 
Regular Meeting and the January 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting:  (1) vehicular 
connection; (2) drainage; and (3) extension of Hopedale sewer main over City 
property.   
 
The petitioners, Dale Garrett and Joel Garrett of Ladd’s Inc., Troy, were present.   
 
Vehicular Connection 
The Planning Commission reached consensus and were in agreement with the 
Planning Department’s recommendations on vehicular connection. 
• In Oak Forest South, provide a future road connection to the north, to the east of 

unit 18, as shown on the petitioner’s alternate layout. 
• In Oak Forest, provide a future road connection to the north in Oak Forest, to the 

east of unit 47, as shown on alternate layout. 
• In Oak Forest, provide a future road connection to the north, just west of the 

John R entry drive, as shown on the alternate layout. 
• Provide a future walkway connection to the south in Oak Forest, between units 

28 and 29, as shown on the alternate layout.   
 
Don Edmunds of 1304 Player Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Edmunds is president 
of Golf Trails Subdivision Homeowners Association.  Mr. Edmunds said he is 
personally opposed to interconnectivity to Willow Grove and to the two subdivisions.  
He expressed concerns that the proposed Oak Forest South development would 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

increase vehicular traffic considerably and that the safety of school children would 
be jeopardized.   
 
Drainage 
Dale Garrett provided a brief history of the regional detention area and proposed 
linear park with respect to their contributions and involvement with the City.  
 
Chair Strat expressed his satisfaction in the memorandum provided by the City 
Engineer stating the proposed development would not be permitted to cause or 
exacerbate drainage problems on abutting properties, and that the required 
improvements would have the effect of improving drainage in the area.  He asked 
the petitioner to use more creativity in the development of the retention area and 
encouraged the petitioner to avail themselves of storm water management 
seminars.   
 
Extension of Hopedale sewer main over City property 
The petitioners said they would provide sanitary sewer service to the units on the 
east side of the drain from the sewer main on the west side of the drain, thereby 
eliminating the need for an easement over City property. 
 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 212) – Restaurants in the R-C 
(Research Center) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Savidant provided a review of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment 
that was discussed in concept at the September 28, 2004 Special/Study meeting.   
 
Discussion on the draft amendment included the following:   

• Definitions of fast food and full service restaurant. 
• Definitions of drive-up window, drive-through window and to-go doors. 
• Requirement of Special Use Approval. 
• Parking. 
• Comparison of current outdoor restaurant/dining. 
• Screening. 
• Setbacks from residential districts. 
• Dumpster locations. 
• Typographical corrections. 

 
The Planning Department will incorporate appropriate text revisions for further review 
at a future study meeting. 
 
 

9. ORDINANCE AMENDMENT DISCUSSION – Additional Retail Along Major 
Thoroughfares in the M-1 (Light Industrial) Zoning District 
 
Mr. Miller reported that retail use in the M-1 Light Industrial District is limited to only 3% 
of the total gross floor area of the industrial building, up to a maximum of 500 feet.  He 
said the Planning Department has been approached by a potential property owner 
who would like to set up a business in a vacant Maple Road building that includes a 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

warehouse distribution center and office with retail in the front.  Mr. Miller said 
alternative uses could provide short-term and long-term solutions along the Maple 
Road Corridor.   
 
The following questions were discussed.   
 
• Given the significant number of vacant buildings on Maple Road in the M-1 

District, is permitting a greater proportion of retail in industrial buildings 
appropriate? 
The Planning Commission agreed retail in industrial buildings would be 
appropriate.   

 
• Is there a maximum size or proportion that is appropriate; for example, 25%? 

The Planning Commission agreed to review this item further to determine an 
appropriate maximum size or proportion. 

 
• Is stand-alone retail appropriate along Maple Road?  On properties that do not 

front on Maple Road? 
The Planning Commission agreed to review this item further.   

 
• Are there additional standards that need to be applied to properties that 

incorporate retail uses?  For example, must front on a major thoroughfare? 
The Planning Commission agreed to review this item further to determine the 
additional standards that should apply to the retail uses.   

 
Arie Leibovitz of Ari-El Enterprises, Inc., 29548 Southfield Road, Southfield, was 
present.  Mr. Leibovitz said he would like to use the Beauté Craft Building located at 
600 W. Maple as a distribution center with retail in the front.  Mr. Leibovitz said the 
building has good curb appeal and shows well from the front.  He would most likely 
request some parking in the front of the building only to make it convenient for the 
retail use.  Mr. Leibovitz believes this type of use would rejuvenate the Maple Road 
Corridor and said he is encouraged by the Planning Commission’s direction in this 
matter.  
 
 

10. REVIEW OF FEBRUARY 8, 2005 REGULAR MEETING 
 
There was discussion on the Public Input Meeting for the proposed Planned Unit 
Development project (PUD 4) located on the north side of Big Beaver Road between 
Alpine and McClure.  The meeting is scheduled on February 8, 2005, at 7:30 p.m. in 
the Troy Community Center.  Several members of the Planning Commission stated 
they felt slighted that the Public Input Meeting was scheduled on the same evening as 
the Planning Commission Regular Meeting.   
 
Mr. Miller explained the purpose of the Public Input Meeting.  He said he would 
contact the Community Affairs office to see if it is possible to videotape the Public 
Input Meeting so members of the Planning Commission could view the tape should 
they not be able to attend.  Mr. Miller assured the members that scheduling conflicts 
would be avoided in the future.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

Chair Strat asked the timeframe when the proposed Zoning Ordinance Text 
Amendment for commercial vehicle variances would be considered. 
 
Mr. Miller said a Public Hearing is required and the proposed language would be 
provided for review at the February 22, 2005 Special/Study meeting.   
 
There was discussion on the protocol of the Planning Department to review 
applications, and the time needed to prepare and deliver meeting packets.  
Planning Commission members expressed their desire to receive meeting packets 
prior to the Friday before the meeting.  This would allow them more time to review 
the applications before the meeting.   
 
The Planning Commission agreed that it would be appropriate to revise the Zoning 
Ordinance relating to the 30-day deadline for applications to be reviewed and 
placed on the following month’s regular business meeting agenda for action.  The 
Planning Department will draft a proposed Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment that 
would eliminate the 30-day deadline and would allow the Planning Department to 
place items on the agenda at their discretion.   
 
Chair Strat said he would like to see relationships improve between the Planning 
Commission and City Council and City departments.   
 
 

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

GOOD OF THE ORDER 
 
Mr. Waller encouraged everyone to read Mayor Schilling’s State of the City Address.  He 
said the Mayor’s message was clear that she wants this community to move forward.  Mr. 
Waller referenced Cindy Kmett’s article in the Troy Somerset Gazette.   
 
Mr. Schultz commented that additional retail on major roads is a critical matter.  He 
suggested that local mail be used for the delivery of the meeting packets.  Mr. Schultz 
echoed the comments of Mr. Waller about the Mayor’s speech.  He said the Mayor has 
charted a great course for 2005 and beyond.  Mr. Schultz asked if it would be possible to 
get copies of the drain map and subdivision maps of the City.    
 
Mr. Miller encouraged members to register for the American Planning Association National 
Conference in San Francisco.   
 
Chair Strat said he would be happy to represent the Planning Commission at the American 
Planning Association National Conference.   



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 1, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-02-014 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That Thomas Strat represent the Troy Planning Commission at the American 
Planning Association National Conference in San Francisco, and further that authorization 
be granted for reimbursement of the trip.   
 
Yes: All present (5) 
No: None 
Absent:  Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat said he would like study sessions to be conducted on an informal, working 
relationship basis.  The major items he would like to address are (1) a redraft of the Zoning 
Ordinance; (2) a redraft of the Future Land Use Plan; and (3) the Maple Road Corridor 
Study. 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 11:05 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\02-01-05 Special Study Meeting_Final.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Strat at 7:30 p.m. on February 8, 2005, in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Gary Chamberlain 
Lynn Drake-Batts 
Fazal Khan 
Lawrence Littman 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 8:05 p.m.) 
David T. Waller (arrived 7:32 p.m.) 
Wayne Wright 
 
Also Present: 
Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-02-015 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Khan 
 
RESOLVED, That Member Vleck is excused from attendance at this meeting for 
personal reasons. 
 
Yes: Chamberlain, Khan, Littman, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: Drake-Batts 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 8:05 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Chair Strat said Mr. Vleck indicated he would be late for the meeting.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts said there have been a lot of absences lately and Mr. Vleck is 
president of another organization that holds meetings on Tuesday nights.   
 
 

2. MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-02-016 
Moved by:  Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the January 25, 2005 Special/Study Meeting minutes as 
published. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Yes: Khan, Schultz, Strat, Waller, Wright 
No: None 
Abstain: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Littman 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 8:05 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

TABLED ITEMS 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING – PROPOSED REZONING (Z 695) – Proposed Becker Overflow 

Parking Area, South side of Henrietta, East of Rochester Road, Section 27 – From R-
1E to P-1 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
rezoning.  He reported the petitioner submitted the plans at a late date and the 
Planning Department did not have sufficient time to review the plans.  It is the 
recommendation of the Planning Department to postpone the item to the March 8, 
2005 Regular Meeting.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
No one was present to speak. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Resolution # PC-2005-02-017 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the rezoning request for the Proposed Becker Overflow Parking 
Area, located on the south side of Henrietta and east of Rochester Road, Section 
27, from R-1E to P-1, be continued at the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 8:05 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 3 - 
 

5. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, 76 units/lots proposed, South side of Square Lake Road, West side 
of John R, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 

6. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, 24 units/lots proposed, South of Square Lake Road, East side of 
Willow Grove, Section 11 – R-1C (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Miller addressed agenda items #5 and #6 at the same time.  He reported the 
petitioner delivered plans late last Friday, after the Planning Commission meeting 
packets were prepared.  The Planning Department did not have the opportunity to 
review the plans.  Mr. Miller reported the petitioner noted some misrepresentations 
on the plans and would like to correct them.  It is the recommendation of the 
Planning Department to further review the proposed developments at the February 
22, 2005 Special/Study Meeting and to postpone both proposed developments to 
the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting.  
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Don Edmunds of 1304 Player Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Edmunds, president of 
the Golf Trails Homeowners Association, read a communication on behalf of the 
residents addressing their concerns as relates to the proposed Oak Forest South Site 
Condominiums.  The communication was forwarded to the Planning Department and 
Planning Commission prior to tonight’s meeting and a copy is attached and made a 
part of the minutes. 
 
Mr. Motzny addressed the one concern relating to the paving of Willow Grove.  He 
advised Mr. Edmunds that the Planning Commission does not have the authority to 
require a developer to pave a road if the road is outside of the proposed development. 
 
Mr. Edmunds said it is understood that the developer cannot be forced to pave Willow 
Grove, but the residents are putting the request in front of him.   
 
Chair Strat noted that the petitioner is not present to address the concerns and, as a 
courtesy, it would be appropriate to provide him that opportunity.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain referenced a legal matter that took place in another city.  A 
developer was forced by the city to pave a road that was not contiguous to the 
development, and court action was taken and won by the developer.  Mr. 
Chamberlain said the court case established a standard in the State of Michigan 
that a city could not ask a developer to pave property that is not contiguous to the 
proposed development.   
 
The floor was closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 4 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-02-018 
Moved by: Chamberlain 
Seconded by: Wright 
 
RESOLVED, That the Preliminary Site Plans (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family 
Residential Development) as requested for Oak Forest Site Condominium and Oak 
Forest South Site Condominium, be tabled to the March 8, 2005 Regular Meeting. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 8:05 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 

7. SITE PLAN REVIEW (SP 913) – Proposed National Electrical Contractors 
Association Corporate Office Bldg., South of Big Beaver, West side of Bellingham, 
Section 26, R-C (Research Center) District 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the Planning Department report for the proposed 
site plan.  Mr. Miller noted that a cross access easement is provided to the south.  
He suggested that consideration be given to the provision of a cross access 
easement to the north also, noting that the property to the north is currently vacant 
and in the same zoning district.   
 
Mr. Miller reported that it is the recommendation of the Planning Department to 
approve the site plan as submitted with three conditions:  (1) that the site plan clarify 
there are 11 greenbelt trees; (2) that a 24-foot wide cross access easement is 
provided to the south; and (3) that the petitioner address the changes as suggested 
by the Landscape Analyst.   
 
Dennis DeWulf of DeWulf Associates, LLC, 27206 Harper Avenue, St. Clair Shores, 
was present to represent the National Electrical Contractors Association.  Mr. 
DeWulf said he is in agreement with the comments of the Landscape Analyst and 
the appropriate revisions would be made.   
 
Mr. Khan brought attention to the fact that the civil engineering drawings submitted 
were not sealed by the surveyor or engineer, but by the architect.   
 
Mr. DeWulf replied that he sealed the plans in order to meet the Planning 
Department submission deadline.  He indicated that the engineer had no concerns 
with his sealing the plans.   
 
Chair Strat addressed the infringement and liability issues related to improperly 
sealing documents.  The members agreed to accept the plans as sealed because 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 5 - 
 

the requirement is fairly new to the Site Plan submittal process.  Chair Strat asked 
the Planning Department to administratively verify that plans are properly sealed.   
 
Mr. DeWulf thanked the Commission and said the point is well taken.   
 
Mr. Wright asked the petitioner if he would be willing to provide a cross access 
easement to the property to the north.   
 
Mr. DeWulf said he has no problem providing a cross access connection to the 
north as long as the site plan approval process would not be stalled.  He asked if 
the easement could be provided without modifying the site plan.   
 
Mr. Miller responded in the affirmative.  He suggested that a good location for the 
access to the north would be next to the dumpster on the northwest corner.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-02-019 
Moved by: Littman 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, as requested for the Proposed 
National Electrical Contractors Association Corporate Office Building, located south of 
Big Beaver and west of Bellingham, located in Section 26, within the R-C zoning 
district is hereby granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Eleven (11) greenbelt trees to be indicated on the site plan. 
2. Provide a 24-foot wide cross access easement connection with the property to 

the south. 
3. Provide a 24-foot wide cross access easement connection with the property to 

the north. 
4. Revise the Preliminary Landscape Plan by changing selected species and or 

size of plant material as indicated in Landscape Analyst’s comments. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
No: None 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 8:05 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENTS 
 

8. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-A) – Article 04.20.00 and 
Articles 40.55.00-40.59.00, pertaining to Accessory Building Definitions and 
Provisions. 
 
Mr. Miller reviewed the four issues related to the proposed zoning ordinance text 
amendment:  (1) garage door height, (2) foot print ratios, (3) number of detached 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 6 - 
 

buildings, and (4) greenhouses.  Mr. Miller reported that City Management is in 
agreement with the recommendations of the Planning Commission with the 
exception of the 8-foot limitation placed on the height of a garage door. 
 
Garage Door Height 
The recommendation of the Planning Commission is to limit the height of a garage 
door to 8 feet.  Mr. Miller reported on the research conducted by the Planning 
Department on recreational vehicles with respect to types and heights.  City 
Management recommends that there be no height limit on a garage door because a 
practical difficulty would be placed on residents who own recreational vehicles.   
 
Foot Print Ratio 
Mr. Miller said the direction from the Planning Commission at their last meeting was 
to consider a ratio of 70% of the first floor residential floor area of the principal 
structure.  City Management recommends 75%, for the ease of computation.  Mr. 
Miller reported that 99.27% of existing homes would meet the standard should the 
75% ratio be used, and 150 structures would become non-conforming.  Mr. Miller 
said City Management views the foot print ratio as a community value.   
 
(Mr. Vleck arrived at 8:05 p.m.) 
 
Number of Detached Buildings 
Mr. Miller illustrated various examples of different types of houses with the proposed 
allowable number of accessory buildings; i.e., 2 detached accessory structures and 
3 accessory supplemental structures.  He noted that all the buildings would be used 
in computing the maximum size.  City Management agrees that the recommended 
limitation for detached buildings is reasonable.  
 
Discussion points regarding limitation of garage door height: 
• Consideration to linear dimensions of recreational vehicles as well as height 

dimensions. 
• Limitation on square footage only could result in monster garage identical to 

Alpine garage. 
• Preservation of residential environment. 
• Original intent of City Council and City Management. 
• Discrimination or devaluation of adjacent property. 
• Door height limitation on side entrance garages in relation to interior and corner 

lots. 
• Designation of date to exempt existing structures that meet all building 

specifications and built prior to (designated date). 
• Provide to members the complete text proposed in City Management and 

Planning Commission versions.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 7 - 
 

PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
Victor Lenivov of 1929 Hopedale, Troy, was present.  Mr. Lenivov addressed his 
concerns should he, or other residents who own older homes on larger lots, wish to 
split the property.  The Assessing Department told Mr. Lenivov that a lot split 
request could be denied should any accessory structure remain in a setback or 
exceed the lot coverage.  He asked the Planning Commission to consider text 
language that would not negatively impact owners of large lots with respect to lot 
splits.  Mr. Lenivov addressed community values.  He said the 75% rule would 
impact only 8%, but noted those 150 homes that are currently in conformity would 
be impacted.  Mr. Lenivov questioned the necessity of the zoning ordinance revision 
as a result of one monster garage.   
 
A brief discussion followed on lot splits.  It was agreed to review potential lot splits 
as relates to the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment at a later date. 
 
Dick Minnick of 28 Millstone, Troy, was present.  Mr. Minnick is President of 
Westwood Park Homeowners Association.  Mr. Minnick noted that his comments 
are based on the last published version of the proposed change.  Mr. Minnick said 
he bought a builders spec house in 1999 that has an attached garage of 
approximately 950 square feet.  The garage would be a non-conforming structure 
should the proposed ordinance limit attached garages to 50% of the ground floor 
living area.  Mr. Minnick said 4 of the 51 Westwood Park homes would become non-
conforming, along with a total of 803 homes in Troy.  Mr. Minnick expressed the 
following concerns:  (1) Mr. Minnick said at the last Planning Commission study 
meeting, the City Attorney alluded that the objective of the zoning ordinance 
revision is to eliminate non-conforming structures, and Mr. Miller explained a 
number of restrictions placed on non-conforming structures.  Mr. Minnick said his 
house is not a problem, and asked why the City would want to tear it down.  (2) Mr. 
Minnick said insurance is a significant issue.  He said a house cannot be insured 
separately from an attached garage.  He cited many references on the Internet 
where insurance companies have denied claims for destroyed buildings when it was 
determined that they were non-conforming structures and could not be legally 
rebuilt.  Mr. Minnick said his insurance policy states that all claims could be rejected 
should any immaterial information about his house be withheld.  Mr. Minnick’s 
attorney said it would be in his best interest to notify the insurance company should 
the garage become non-comforming.  (3) Mr. Minnick said the resale factor of his 
home would be negatively affected.  He would be legally required to disclose the 
non-conformance to all prospective buyers.  Mr. Minnick said he fully supports an 8-
foot garage door height limit as relates to establishing new community values and 
the preservation of the residential character for subdivisions.  He mentioned that his 
neighbor is totally within his legal rights to park his 8 cars in his driveway every 
night, but he would like to see him have a larger garage to house the number of 
vehicles and keep them under cover.  Mr. Minnick thinks the proposed ordinance is 
overly restrictive and would place an unwarranted financial burden on too many 
Troy homeowners.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 8 - 
 

Mr. Miller explained that the house portion would remain conforming should the 
maximum size be exceeded, and only the attached garage would become legally 
non-conforming.  Mr. Miller explained that the Zoning Ordinance does not contribute 
to its survival; it does not eliminate it; it just does not allow non-conformities to have 
long-term survival.  Mr. Miller stated that a homeowner could improve the house, 
but the non-conformity of an attached garage would have limits on what a 
homeowner could repair within one year.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts offered an alternate option to using the residential floor area 
formula.  She suggested that every house be entitled to one 1.5-car garage and be 
allowed to add an additional bay for each bedroom.  
 
Jerry Bloom of 3320 Essex, Troy, was present.  Mr. Bloom addressed the alternate 
option proposed by Ms. Drake-Batts and said a definition of “bay” might preclude 
what the Commission is trying to accomplish.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Chair Strat said he thinks the direction from City Council is to put a Band-Aid on the 
current Zoning Ordinance to eliminate monster structures similar to Alpine.  He said 
it is impossible to solve all conditions and the City must generalize.   
 
Mr. Vleck thinks the Zoning Ordinance is too restrictive.  He said the structures that 
would become non-conforming should be identified and researched to determine if 
they are actually problems in the residential neighborhoods, and size and height 
restrictions determined accordingly.  Mr. Vleck indicated he is not in favor of the 8-
foot garage door height limit. 
 
Mr. Chamberlain suggested that a date be appointed that would exempt structures 
built prior to that date.   
 
Resolution # PC-2005-02-020 
Moved by: Khan 
Seconded by: Waller 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpone Agenda Items # 8, 9 
and 10 to the February 22, 2005 Special/Study Session for the following reasons:  
 
1. To allow time for further review and incorporation of additional information.  
2. To incorporate data received from the Public Hearing. 
3. To provide complete text proposed in City Management and Planning 

Commission versions. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 9 - 
 

Yes: Chamberlain, Drake-Batts, Khan, Schultz, Strat, Vleck, Waller, Wright 
No: Littman 
Absent: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Littman stated that the matter was studied previously and the proposed 
revisions and recommendations reached by the Planning Commission were 
forwarded to City Council.  He addressed the issue of revisiting the matter over and 
over.   
 
 

9. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-B) – Article 04.20.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 40.66.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Definitions 
 
Refer to item # 8, Resolution # PC-2005-02-020. 
 
 

10. ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (ZOTA 215-C) – Article 43.74.00, 
Article 40.65.02 and Article 44.00.00, pertaining to Commercial Vehicle Parking 
Appeals 
 
Refer to Item # 8, Resolution # PC-2005-02-020. 
 
 

REZONING REQUEST 
 

11. REZONING APPLICATION (Z 699) – West side of Rochester Road, South of 
Trinway, Section 10 – R-1C to R-1T 
 
Mr. Miller presented a summary of the rezoning application and recommendation 
made by the Planning Commission at their December 14, 2004 Regular Meeting.  
Mr. Miller addressed the concerns expressed by some members of City Council at 
its January 24, 2005 Public Hearing.  He further reviewed the determinations made 
by the Planning Commission when they revisited the proposed rezoning at their 
February 1, 2005 Special/Study Meeting. 
 
The petitioner, Fred Binder of 5215 Rochester Road, Troy, was present.  Mr. Binder 
said he is in agreement with the proposed resolution drafted by the Planning 
Department.   
 
Chair Strat opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
The floor was closed. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 10 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2005-02-021 
Moved by: Wright 
Seconded by: Schultz 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that the R-1C to R-1T rezoning request, located on the west side of 
Rochester Road and south of Trinway, within Section 10, being approximately 2.74 
acres in size, be granted, for the following reasons:  
 
1. The rezoning application is consistent with the Future Land Use Plan. 
2. The rezoning application is compatible with adjacent land uses and zoning 

districts. 
3. The depth of the parcel (570 feet) is less than the depth of other parcels 

fronting on Rochester Road that were recently rezoned to R-1T.  Specifically, 
these parcels include Maya’s Meadows in Section 14 (617-foot depth).  The 
Fairways in Section 11 (1221-foot depth) and the undeveloped parcel on the 
north side of Lamb Road in Section 14 (670-foot depth).  

4. Retaining a portion of the property as R-1C would result in a small parcel that 
would be difficult to develop under R-1T provisions.  Furthermore, it is not 
desirable for a site condominium development and a traditional condominium 
development to share a street.  

 
Yes: All present (9) 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
GOOD OF THE ORDER 

 
Mr. Vleck questioned the status of the proposed zoning ordinance text amendment relating 
to trade, industrial arts or dance schools in the M-1 zoning district (ZOTA 201).  Mr. Vleck 
asked that the Building Department advise the public that a potential text amendment is 
under review.  He is concerned that the City is turning away prospective businesses.   
 
Mr. Miller said he understands the Building Department is not pursuing the violation given 
to the dance school in the M-1 zoning district.  Mr. Miller said he does not know if or how 
the Building Department informs the public about the potential text amendment.    
 
Chair Strat asked that the Planning Department advise City staff of the intentions of the 
Planning Commission.  He indicated he would not want the City to be turning away 
prospective businesses either.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 11 - 
 

There was a brief discussion on the proposed Planned Unit Development (PUD 4), The 
Monarch, located on the north side of Big Beaver Road between Alpine and McClure 
Roads.  Mr. Miller said the Public Input Meeting being held tonight might still be session.  
Mr. Savidant is at the Public Input Meeting to take notes and to answer any technical 
questions relating to the Zoning Ordinance.  He explained that the purpose of the meeting 
is to provide an opportunity for the developer, neighboring residents and property owners 
to exchange ideas and concerns related to the proposed development.  Mr. Miller said the 
complete PUD application was received by the Planning Department just prior to the 
beginning of the New Year.  He said the Planning Department, appropriate City 
departments and the Planning Consultant are in the process of a first-cut review of the 
proposal.  It is projected that the proposal will be an agenda item on the next study 
session.   
 
There was a discussion on the procedure followed in forwarding Planning Commission 
recommendations to City Council for action.  Discussion points were: 
 
• Cooperation between City Management and Planning Commission to eliminate two 

versions of a recommendation. 
• Solving any disagreement relating to agenda items prior to Public Hearing.   
• Appropriate staff person to meet with Planning Commission, discuss pros and cons and 

reach a consensus. 
• Improve communication with City Management. 
• Provide fair and accurate information to City Management. 
• Importance of Planning Commission recommendation to City Council. 
• Recognition of public reaction to two versions of a recommendation.   
• State law empowerment to Planning Commission to advise City Council. 
• Presentation order of recommendations to City Council; i.e., City Management version 

before Planning Commission version.   
 
Mr. Chamberlain said recently he received an e-mail message from a citizen of Troy 
relating to the monster garage matter.  Mr. Chamberlain is unsure how the citizen received 
his home e-mail address.  He addressed the fact that e-mail addresses are provided to the 
Planning Department with the understanding that the information is confidential, and he 
would hope that it is not a practice of City Management to release confidential information 
to the public.  Mr. Chamberlain said the City should provide computers and home e-mail 
accounts to Planning Commission members should they want City business conducted via 
e-mail.   
 
Several members disclosed that they have received City-related messages on their home 
e-mail accounts.  
 
Mr. Wright said he has never had a problem with the City giving away private information.  
He said he gets an occasional phone call, but he attributes that to the fact that his name is 
listed in the phone directory.  Mr. Wright said he thinks the administration has always kept 
their word that any information provided them is confidential and for private use.   
 
Ms. Drake-Batts disagreed.  She said she received a telephone call at work, and she had 
changed jobs three months before and nobody knew where she was working.  Ms. Drake-
Batts said that someone is giving out the information.  She said she does not want to be 
called at work.   
 
Mr. Schultz said he has no reason to assume, or does he have no doubt that the City has 
not given out confidential information.  Mr. Schultz said if he receives City-related 
messages from someone who has no right to his e-mail account, he would simply report 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL FEBRUARY 8, 2005 
  
 
 

 - 12 - 
 

them as a spam generator.  Mr. Schultz said he would not accept messages on his home 
account regarding City business other than from officials of the City.  Mr. Schultz 
referenced the e-mail account set up through the City’s website as the appropriate means 
to contact the Planning Commission.   
 
Mr. Miller clarified that the City’s website provides two general accounts for the public to 
access should they wish to reach any member of the Planning Commission.  He said the 
messages are received at the desk of one of the department’s planners.  Any message 
received is copied and forwarded to the members.   
 
Mr. Miller made a note that Mr. Schultz did not receive copies of the drain map and 
subdivision maps, as he requested.   
 
 
 
 
ADJOURN 
 
The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission was adjourned at 9:05 p.m. 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Thomas Strat, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2005 PC Minutes\Final\02-08-05 Regular Meeting_Final.doc 





TROY DAZE MINUTES - FINAL       
 
A special meeting of the Troy Daze Committee was held Tuesday, February 8, 2005 at the 
Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:30 pm. 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
Present:

Mike Gonda 
Bob Preston 
JoAnn Preston 
Cele Dilley 
Bill Hall 
Kessie Kaltsounis  
Bob Berk 
Jim Cyrulewski 
Marilyn Musick 
Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 

 
 
 
 

 
 
  
 
  

   
City Staff Present:

Jeff Biegler    
   Gerry Scherlinck 
   Cindy Stewart  
         
Pre-meeting with City Manager.  He expressed concern with less revenue coming into City 
and increase in expenses. 
 
Across the board, all departments need to make cuts including non-profits – we work with 
(TYA, Boys & Girls Club, Coalition) asking for 25% reduction including Troy Daze Festival. 
 
Limit direct City expenses – no fireworks, reroute parade.  This will reduce staff time putting 
up barricades, manning special events. 
 
GS - Staffing changes he can make to reduce costs 

• Fireworks eliminate staff  
• 5K/10K turned into 5K only   
• Less people, less staff for parade if route changed.   
• Less people at events such as senior sensation. 

 
BB - What was number you told us for staffing changes? 
 
GS - 20 people on duty for parade could be 10.  Reduce 6 people for fireworks 
If we don’t charge for parking on Thursday, we do not need 3 officers for Explorers.  
 
10-15% ($4600) estimate for police staffing reductions 
 
CD - If eliminate parade, would that solve our fiscal problems? 
 
GS - It would help. 
 
BB - Troy Daze banners? $4500 to put up and take down along Big Beaver Road. 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01e



Question is – are they necessary?  An item to look at. 
 
BB - If we do not have fireworks how many hours/dollars would we reduce Parks/DPW time? 
 
JB - Could be only 30 hours ($1000 + benefits) we can look at overall hours.  DPW had 68 
hours ($1500 plus benefits) OT for putting up taking down barricades. 
 
CD - If had corporate sponsor for fireworks, can we add back in? 
 
BB - Only if sponsor stepped up with additional $ to cover staffing 
 
CD - Does the parade seems like an event we might be able to cut? 
 
KK - Would like to save it if we can.  If 2000 people are in it, must be important to them 
 
CD - But are they bringing in revenue? 
 
CW - Yes, if they pay to park or buy food, drink.  Is set up on OT? 
 
JB  -Only 9 hours OT 
 
BB - Signage? Volunteers do most of that. 
 
BB - Flooring is expensive. 
 
JC - It is nice, but have done without in the past. 
 
BB - Can you get us a cost for labor? 
 
JB - Yes 
 
KK - But are we still ADA compliant? 
 
JB - Did not use it two years ago.  Only when heavy rains. 
 
Other items we can cut? 
 
Dressing room trailers – already gone 
 
So far we’ve cut approximately $7100 plus walkways   
 
Already cut MFEA costs in half. 
 
Reduced Magic Cauldron, golf cart #, shirts, Mr. Troy, Signage, EthniCity, Talent Shows, 
Entertainment 
 
If we slice a lot off the top will people notice?  Will it affect the quality or eliminate one or two 
larger events to cover costs. 
 
Increase in revenue will help us. 
 



CD 
    REVENUE     EXPENSES 
$11,485 big tent/booth rentals  $7000 tent cost 
$5900 food vendors    ??? Elec/generators 
Just raising booth rentals 10% won’t make big profit. 
 
JC - Ways we can increase Revenues include parking and ride tickets 
 
Only one amusement company bid on RFP.  He’ll increase revenues from 35% to 40%if sign 
3 year contract will give $3000 for festival improvements and or publicity. 
 
Do we need all the shuttles?  People like it.  It’s what makes the festival special. 
 
Would rather increase parking fees or sell pre-advance sales 
 
Tough on Treasurer to have one dollar bills.  But can’t raise $ by too much too soon.  
Currently $5/weekend – raise to $7/weekend? 
 
RESOLUTION 2005-01-06 
 
Motion by CD/KK to increase $7 for parking T-F-S-S (begins 4 pm on Thursday) 
 
Yeas:  All (unanimous) 
Nays:  None 
 
MG - Recommend we cut parade costs and staffing costs by moving route 
 
BB - Look at list of all events and might want to make other cuts 
 
Events 

• Classic Car Show 
Rev  $320 
Exp*  0 
*Some expenses for trophies but that is a line item for all events 

 
• Craft Show (not held 2004) 

Rev  $2280 
Exp  $229 
In shared tent.  Does make money. 
Net  $2050 

 
• Cutest Toddler 

Rev  $1606 
Exp  $207 
Net  $1399 

 
• Entertainment 

Rev  $12,000 
Exp  $  7,730 
Net  $  4,270 



 
• EthniCity 

Rev  $1,500 
Exp  $5,236 
Net  ($3,736) 

 
• EthniCity 

Rev  $1,500 
Exp  $1,161* 
Net  $349 

 
*If remove $4175 cost for entertainment since receive $8000 from Comcast for outdoor stage 
 
Did cut EthniCity entertainment from $4500 to $3000 in proposed budget 
 

• Fireworks – eliminated 
Rev  $5000 
Exp  $5000 

 
• Magic Cauldron Crafts 

Rev  0 
Exp  $988 
Net  ($988) 

 
• Magic Cauldron Entertainment 

Rev  $2,500 
Ticket     $476 

$2,976 
Exp  $1,679 
Net  $1,296 

 
• Miss Troy 

Rev  $1,205 
Exp  $2,365 
Net  ($1,160) 

 
Could raise fees for entrants 
Reduced food to 0 and reduce gift certificates by $20.  Used to do Miss Troy on Friday Night 
at Boulan School.  Could bring in people to festival. Could increase costs in parking if held on 
Thursday. 
 

• Mr. Troy 
Rev  $100 
Exp  $875 
Net  ($775) 

 
$3000 in kind corporate sponsor for tuxedos 
Brings people into the Festival 
 
 



• New Car Auto 
Rev  $1200 
Exp  0 
Net  $1200 

 
Might need to recruit help to run event 
Some concern 
 

• Opening Ceremonies 
Rev  0 
Exp  $300 (Comm chorus) 
Net  ($300) 

 
• Photo Contest 

Rev  in kind 
Exp  0  
Net – 

 
Need a chairperson 
Dual-purpose tent -  if don’t have photo contest, could get smaller tent 
 

• Senior Sensation 
Rev  $1,250 plus in kind 
Exp  $2,716 
Net  ($1,466) 

 
Would DTE be ok with sponsoring another event? 
 

• Special Children & Adults 
Rev  $1500 plus in kind 
Exp  $661 
Net  $839 

 
All pizza this year 
 

• Student Art 
Rev  $1,250 
Exp  $175 
Net  $1,075 

 
• Teen Event 

Rev  0 
Exp  $600 

 
Less police help since changed from Battle of Bands to concert.  See if Youth Council would 
like to coordinate this event. 
 

• Shuttles 
Sally Lou can’t commit until they name her successor. 

Rev  $2,000  (SOC-in past) 



Exp  $2,380  (plus tent to cover carts) last year 15-16 shuttles 
Net  ($380) 

 
Jim’s company might give cash donation 
 

• 5K 10K Race – change to 5K 
Rev  
Exp $1,587 (police) 

Now should break even – we get 15% of net 
5K race could happen on Sunday before festival and run through the park in 2006.  Less 
expense overall. 
 

• Parade 
Rev  $1,000 
Exp  $12,839* 
Net  ($11,839) 

 
Prizes  $3,100  $2,000 
Bands  $3,000  $3,000 
Balloons  $5,250  $3,000 
Floats  $500     $500 
U  $700       $700 
Misc     $289                   $300 

 
2005 Budget $9500 

 
If route changes, decrease police costs by $2000 
 
Also would keep Crooks Road entrance open to collect parking fees 
 
Limit size of entrants to make it Troy Specific (Troy Bands, organizations) 
 
Charge fee for politicians idea - $50 per person or other groups 
 
Suggest to chairpersons 

• Raise revenues 
• Decrease expenses 
• Change route to decrease police staffing 

 
$6,000 Police 
$2,500 Regular and OT Staffing, show fence, flooring and barricades 
$4,500 parade costs 

     $2,700 Senior Sensation 
        $800 Miss Troy 
 
   $16,500 
   +17,000  cut from 2004 budget @January 25th Meeting 
   $33,500 
 
When will event chairpeople know of budget cuts? (April) 



Should be soon so they can work on budgets.  Bog Berk will email all chairpeople. 
 
CD - Any other ideas or ways we can increase revenue? 
 
Board member bought 6 walking balloons for $260, but they need to purchase 6 more to use 
the discount 
 
RESOLUTION 2005-01-07 

 
Motion we allocate $5000 total for expenses for parade by Mike Gonda. 
Seconded by Bob Preston. 
Yeas:  CD, BH, BP, MG, MM 
Nays:  JC, KK, CW 
MOTION CARRIED 5-3 
 
Discussion 
 
Kessie thinks $7000 would be more fair.   
 
CW - Won’t be able to do this at $5000. 
 
GS - Must cut police overtime costs.  Chief would like overtime costs cut by 50%.  We would 
be fine if we do new route, shorter length for parade.   
 
MG - New route increases parking revenues 
 
Route change would decrease costs of PD by $4500 
 
Procedure to select/recommend new people and retain people for both Advisory Committee 
and Troy Daze Committee. 
 
Promotions to recruit new people (press release, flyer @ festival) 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 8:55 p.m.   



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft February 9, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees was held on 
Wednesday, February 9, 2005, at Troy City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd., Troy, MI.   
The meeting was called to order at 12:15 p.m. 
 

 
TRUSTEES PRESENT: Mark Calice  
 Michael Geise 
 Thomas Houghton, Chair 
 John M. Lamerato 
 David A. Lambert 
 William R. Need 
 Steven A. Pallotta 
 John Szerlag  
 
ALSO PRESENT: Laura Fitzpatrick 
   
 
 
MINUTES 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 02 - 005 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the minutes of the January 12, 2005 meeting be approved.  
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
OTHER BUSINESS – ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE CHAIRMAN 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 02 - 006 
Moved by Szerlag 
Seconded by Calice 
 
RESOLVED, That the Board elect Thomas Houghton as Chairman and Steven A. Pallotta 
as Vice chairman. 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01f



EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT SYSTEM BOARD OF TRUSTEES MINUTES –Draft February 9, 2005 
 
 

 2

INVESTMENTS 
 
Resolution # ER – 2005 – 02- 007 
Moved by Pallotta 
Seconded by Lambert 
 
RESOLVED, That the following investments be purchased and sold: 
Purchase:  $5,000 Ford Motor Credit, 5% due 2/20/08; 5,000 shares Kimeo; 3,000 shares 
Lowe’s; 10,000 shares Oracle; 5,000 shares O’Reilly Automotive. 
Sell:  Lancaster Colony; Liberty Media International; Liberty Media International A; 
Matthews International; Medco Health Solutions and sell Alliance Technology Fund and 
Purchase shares of Seligman Communication & Info Mutual Fund. 
 
5,000 shares Goldman Sachs; 5,000 shares Hartford Financial Services; 5,000 shares 
Honeywell International; 5,000 shares Independent Bank Corp; 5,000 shares Jack Henry 
and Associates 
 
Yeas:  All 7 
 
 
The next meeting is March 9, 2005 at 12:00 p.m. at City Hall, Conference Room C, 
 500 W Big Beaver, Troy, MI. 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 1:00 p.m.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
JML/bt\Retirement Board\2005\2-09-05 Minutes_Draft.doc 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

The Chairman, Matthew Kovacs, called the meeting of the Board of Zoning Appeals to 
order at 7:30 P.M. on Tuesday, February 15, 2005 in Council Chambers of the Troy City 
Hall. 
 
PRESENT:  Kenneth Courtney 
   Christopher Fejes 
   Marcia Gies 
   Michael Hutson 
   Matthew Kovacs 
   Mark Maxwell 
   Wayne Wright 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
   Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
   Pamela Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF JANUARY 18, 2005 
 
Motion by Gies 
Supported by Courtney 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of January 18, 2005 as written. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Fejes, Gies, Hutson, Kovacs, Maxwell, Courtney 
Abstain: 1 – Wright 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES AS WRITTEN CARRIED  
 
ITEM #2 – RENEWAL REQUESTED.  NINO SALVAGGIO INVESTMENT CO. OF 
TROY, 6835 ROCHESTER ROAD, for relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high 
landscaped berm in lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south 
and west sides of the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting renewal of relief granted by this 
Board to provide a landscaped berm in place of the 6’ high masonry-screening wall 
required along the south property line and the west boundary line.  This relief has been 
granted on a yearly basis since 1995.  This item last appeared before this Board at the 
February 2002 meeting and was granted a three-year renewal at that time.  This 
renewal was granted based on the fact that the property to the west was approved for 
the development of a 50 plus townhouse community and the approval of a site plan for 
new development on the south.   The development to the west has commenced and is 
about 20% occupied.  The previously approved development to the south has not 
commenced.  Other than that, the conditions remain the same and we have no 
complaints or objections on file. 
 
 

 1

bittnera
Text Box
J-01g



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kirk Taylor, President of Nino Salvaggio’s was present.  Mr. Taylor stated that there 
is a 50’ E-P Zone next to the developed property on the west side and would like to see 
a permanent variance be granted on that side.  On the south side of the property, the 
development that was proposed did not include the property that the kennel is on and 
this property is landlocked, which would prevent further development in this area.  Mr. 
Taylor asked if this variance could also be made a permanent variance. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if the development on the west side was complete, although 
occupancy was not complete.  Mr. Taylor said that was correct. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Maxwell 
 
MOVED, to grant a three-year (3) renewal to Nino Salvaggio Investment Co. of Troy, 
6835 Rochester Road, relief of the Ordinance to maintain a 6’ high landscaped berm in 
lieu of the 6’ high masonry screening wall required along the south and west sides of 
the property. 
 

• In 2008, a new public hearing will be held, as occupancy should be complete in 
the developments surrounding this property. 

• A new public hearing will determine if these variances can be made permanent. 
 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT RENEWAL OF VARIANCE FOR THREE (3) YEARS CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  TIM JUDY, 2352 LANERGAN, for relief of the 
Ordinance to construct a family room addition on the rear of his home, which will result 
in a 40’ rear yard setback where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard 
setback in R-1B Zoning. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to construct 
a family room addition on the rear of his home, which will result in a proposed 40’ rear 
yard setback.  Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B 
Zoning. 
 
Mr. Judy was present and stated that he and his wife have five children and basically 
they have run out of room.  They have looked into the possibility of moving, and 
although they have looked at approximately 45 homes they have found that new 
construction is too expensive, and homes that are affordable would put them in the 
same situation they are in now.  They would like to keep their children in the same 
schools.  Mr. Judy also said that they feel this is the best location for the addition as the 
house is set backwards on the lot and if they went off of the family room and kitchen 
 

 2



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #3 – con’t. 
 
area the setback would be reduced even more.  Mr. Judy said that they had considered 
putting the addition on the back of the garage, however, with seven people in the home, 
they would like to retain the option of adding another garage at some later date.  In 
addition, they would like to put a basement under this addition. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if they had discontinued looking at other houses.  Mr. Judy said that 
his sister-in-law is a realtor and she sends them regular e-mails showing what is 
available.  Mr. Judy indicated that when he finds something that is affordable there is no 
difference in the size of the homes, and new construction is not affordable. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Motion by Maxwell 
Supported by Wright 
 
MOVED, to grant Tim Judy, 2352 Lanergan, for relief of the Ordinance to construct a 
family room addition on the rear of his home, which will result in a 40’ rear yard setback 
where Section 30.10.02 requires a 45’ minimum rear yard setback in R-1B Zoning. 
 

• Irregular shape of lot creates a hardship. 
• Variance would not be contrary to public interest. 
• Variance would not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  All – 7 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #4 – INTERPRETATION REQUEST.  MR. & MRS. GEORGE REED & MR. 
THOMAS KRENT, 3129 ALPINE, regarding the issuance of a building permit to 
construct a garage at 3129 Alpine. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioners are appealing the issuance of a building permit 
to construct a garage a 3129 Alpine.  In support of that appeal they are requesting 
interpretation of Sections 1.30.00, 2.30.00, 2.50.02, 4.20.01, 4.20.03, 4.20.65, 4.20.71, 
4.20.139, 10.10.00, 3.40.03 and 40.57.02 of the Troy Zoning Ordinance as they apply to 
that structure.  The permit for this structure was issued in 2003 because the structure 
was found to be in compliance with the requirements of the Troy Zoning Ordinance.  We 
have included all information provided by the applicants in support of their request 
however, without any specific information on the basis for their appeal of these sections, 
we are unable to provide a response at this time. 
 

 3



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kovacs expressed concern about the lack of information provided by the petitioner 
and asked if additional information had been received.  Mr. Stimac explained that the 
petitioner had delivered a disc that contains numerous pictures and a reference to other 
sections, however, nothing else was received.  Mr. Stimac also indicated that Mr. 
Kingsepp would probably use this disc as well as others during his presentation. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that the petitioners are asking the Board to interpret a number of 
sections of the Ordinance but they have not provided any information as to how they 
have interpreted these sections of the Ordinance and what result they would like to see.  
Mr. Kovacs also stated that Mr. Piscopo has not been able to see any of the petitioner’s 
evidence and City Staff has not been able to prepare a rebuttal for the objections to the 
interpretation of these sections and asked if any other Board members had a problem 
with this item. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that he is not sure exactly what the Board is dealing with.  Mr. 
Courtney also said that he had looked at the building and did not like it either, but was 
not sure if this building was put up according to the Ordinance which section of the 
Ordinance it would violate. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he personally would like to see more data and how the petitioner 
feels that this structure does not meet the requirements of the Ordinance.   
 
Mr. John Kingsepp, representing the petitioners was present.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he 
had informed the assistant City Attorney that he would be providing by disc and laptop 
the background for this petition, but not his argument and she agreed that this would be 
fine.  Mr. Kingsepp said that they are objecting to the Building Department Official’s 
decision to issue a Building Permit for this structure.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he planned 
to show a presentation with simulations regarding this structure.  Mr. Kovacs said that 
he is concerned because the property owner in this case does not have any idea what 
would be presented tonight.  Mr. Kingsepp said that the property owner is not the 
applicant, the real interested party is the City and their interpretation.  Mr. Kingsepp also 
said that if the owner of the property came forward and said he did not have enough 
information regarding this petition, the matter could be postponed until he felt he had 
enough information; however, Mr. Kingsepp was not aware of anything in the Ordinance 
that states he had to supply the owner with this information.    
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he is looking for an interpretation of these issues and is concerned 
that the homeowner does not have any knowledge of this hearing.  Mr. Kovacs then 
said that even though Mr. Kingsepp said this issue doesn’t involve the homeowner, 
ultimately the structure is the homeowner’s and he would be affected.  Mr. Kingsepp 
said that he would not predict the outcome of this hearing and would suggest that if any 
member of this body feels the homeowner should present their case, he would be 
willing to postpone this request until another meeting.   Mr. Kovacs said that he just 
wants to make sure that this Board is fair to everyone. 

 4



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Motzny said that the Board has the discretion  to postpone this matter if they feel 
additional information is needed, however, he would suggest that the Board listen to the 
presentation and make a decision after this presentation. 
 
Mr. Maxwell asked if this Board was being asked to provide an interpretation of the 
various sections of the Ordinance that were used to grant this Building Permit.  Mr. 
Motzny said that this question would be better directed to the petitioner, although, Mr. 
Motzny said that he understands the petitioners believe the Building Permit was issued 
incorrectly based on the interpretation of the Ordinance.  Mr. Maxwell then asked if this 
Board had the power to rescind this Building Permit.  Mr. Motzny said that it was within 
this Board’s power to determine that the Building Official made a decision to issue a 
Building Permit that was in violation of the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that officially the Board does not have the power to rescind the permit.  
The Board does have the power to find that the permit was issued contrary to the 
provisions of the Zoning Ordinance.  On that finding, it is the Building Official’s 
responsibility to enforce this decision and take whatever steps are necessary to make 
sure that this building would comply with the Ordinance.  Mr. Motzny said that this 
interpretation was correct. 
 
Mr. Courtney stated that the booklet he was given did not define any of the sections the 
petitioners mentioned.  Mr. Kingsepp stated that the information was on a disc, but Mr. 
Courtney said that he did not have the ability to look at a disc.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the petitioner stated that he does not have to show any of his 
material to the homeowner and Mr. Kovacs asked for an interpretation on this statement 
by City staff.  Mr. Motzny said that there is no requirement under the Ordinance that the 
petitioner provide any of his information to the homeowner, as long as the petitioner’s 
information is provided to members of the Board. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that this Building Permit was issued in the summer of 2003 and the 
building is complete.  Ordinance 43.55.00 states that “….any person or entity affected 
by the decision of Director of Building and Zoning may appear at the hearing in person 
or by a representative …..” and in Mr. Hutson’s opinion means that this appearance 
would be done at the time the permit is issued and not after completion of the 
construction.  Mr. Hutson also said that perhaps this item should be presented in Circuit 
Court.  Mr. Kingsepp said that this was a good observation, but that he has to go 
through the administrative process as suggested by case law.  The appeal taken under 
the City’s Ordinances and under the State Enabling Act allows him to go to Circuit 
Court.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that according to the Ordinance there was no hearing on 
this matter, the Building Permit was issued and the residents were not aware of what 
was going up until it was already in the process of being done.  The residents 
approached City Council as they felt this was the proper procedure and since no 
occupancy permit has been issued, the residents have the right to object.  Mr. Hutson  

 5



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
also said that they should have come to the Board of Zoning Appeals first.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that this was not true as it should have been the owner of the property 
who would have had to appear before this Board. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he wished Mr. Kingsepp to make his presentation and said they 
may not open it up to a Public Hearing.  Mr. Kovacs also said that he did not want to 
hear anything regarding the debris in the yard and some of the other things in the yard 
of this property.  Mr. Kovacs said that this would not be a complaint fest and further 
stated that anyone that speaks on this item would have to limit their comments only to 
the structure itself. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that he had spoken to their clients and told them that they should be 
very succinct and very pointed regarding the issue itself, which is the size of the 
structure.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that the site is depicted in the CD Rom.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that he did not want this to be a catfight between neighbors and Mr. Kingsepp 
agreed with this statement. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that he felt that any type of commercial activity at this site would also 
be relevant to this hearing.  Mr. Kovacs said that this would be considered more a use 
violation and is not based on the structure.   Mr. Maxwell said that he thinks this issue 
would be relevant to this hearing.  Mr. Courtney also said that there are a number of 
people who do believe he is using this as a commercial site, but does not believe that is 
something this Board can address.  Mr. Kovacs also said that it is up to the Building 
Department to make sure he is in compliance with the code. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that in the presentation there is a demonstration simulating the size 
of the structure and what it could be used for as to the interior.  The purpose of that has 
a direct connection to the definitions in the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs cautioned the Board as to what they are to understand and what they are 
here to interpret. 
 
Mr. Courtney asked if there were some recommendations made to change the 
Ordinance to not allow this size structure to be built in a residential area.  Mr. Stimac 
said that there are Public Hearings that have been conducted in front of the Planning 
Commission proposing revisions to the Zoning Ordinance relating  to the size of 
accessory buildings both attached and detached.  Those Public Hearings were held and 
a recommendation was made to City Council as a result of those Public Hearings, City 
Council referred it back to the Planning Commission for further study on specific items, 
which was held on February 7, 2005.  Mr. Stimac said that he thought the new 
recommendations would be going back to City Council in March. 
 
Mr. Wright said that at the Planning Commission meeting of February 7th, the item was 
postponed as the Planning Commission is committed to the maximum height of 8’ for a  

 6



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
garage door height, which was questioned by Council.  There was a difference between 
the recommendations of the Planning Commission and City staff’s recommendations 
and Mr. Wright said that they were quite sure they would be able to bring this before 
Council some time in March. 
 
Mr. John Kingsepp began his presentation and said that this a very unusual request.  
This locale consists of single-family residences and 3129 Alpine is the residence that 
has the 6000 square foot garage that is in question.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he 
thought a proposed development of condominiums on the corner had been approved 
and was also a single-family development.  This area is geared toward family living.  
The application applied for in July 2003, contains reference to an addition and a 6000 
square foot attached garage.  Mr. Kingsepp stated that this is the applicant’s description 
of what that structure was going to be.  The Building Department stated that this 
structure would have to meet all codes and inspections.  The Building Permit spoke in 
the context of a garage.  This word is defined in the Zoning Code.  The applicant 
forwarded a supplemental explanation August 2003, using the adoptive word garage so 
that he may park his equipment and/or his commercial vehicle.  This is what the 
applicant intention was.   
 
The locale of the particular structure shows storage in one area, materials in another 
area, storage beside the building, and no indication of a single commercial vehicle.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that he did not know if the structure was being constructed to store that, 
but he did not construe that to mean equipment for the business that is being 
constructed from this site.  Mr. Kingsepp showed pictures depicting the height of this 
structure as compared to people.  There are two (2) doors on the garage, one a 
pedestrian door, about 8’ tall, and the other door is 14’ high.  In most communities the 
height of a garage is 14’, in this case the door is 14’ high.  Mr. Kingsepp showed 
pictures taken in the inside with a number of vehicles inside and also shows an 
appliance being stored inside.  The area around this home is serene and 
unencumbered by large buildings.  The City Assessor reviewed this area and stated that 
it has some of the largest attached garages in the community.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that the structure in question is constructed by Star Building 
Products, which builds warehouses, airplane hangers, shopping centers and industrial 
buildings.  This company does not build garages that would be able to be attached to a 
single-family residence.  Mr. Kingsepp went on to say that these are commercial 
structures.  In this particular structure, 6000 square feet, two 18-wheelers as well as 
twenty-two (22) full-size pickup trucks would fit inside.  The structure itself is 3.78 larger 
than the main residence on the site, which is a single-family residence.  Mr. Kingsepp 
had pictures of similar buildings in Troy, which are in Light Industrial Zoning Districts, 
not Residential Zoning.   Statement of applicant indicated an attached garage, and Mr. 
Kingsepp said this is not an attached garage, but a commercial sized building that can 
accommodate equipment and certainly more than one commercial vehicle.   
 

 7



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
The opportunity now exists for this type of construction to be attached to other homes in 
Troy as long as the lot size can accommodate it.  This is the result of this type of 
intrusion.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he cannot determine anywhere in the City Code 
that this is what the City wants.    
 
Mr. Kingsepp showed pictures of attached garages and pointed out the relationship of 
the size of the attached garages as compared to the homes.  Mr. Kingsepp pointed out 
the compatibility between these garages and the homes they are attached to.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp pointed out the size of this structure compared to other structures in this 
area.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he thought the interpretation of the Ordinance in this 
case might have been misconstrued.   
 
Section 01.30.00 – Greater Restrictions.  Mr. Kingsepp paraphrased this Section to say 
that greater restrictions being imposed where applicable. 
 
Section 04.20.01 – Accessory Building.  Something subordinate and use of that which is 
incidental to the main building.  Mr. Kingsepp said that in his opinion a 6000 square foot 
attached garage is not a subordinate building.  3129 Alpine is a single-family residence. 
 
Section 04.20.03 – Accessory Use.    Use is subordinate to the main use.  This is a 
single-family residence to which is attached a mammoth structure. 
 
Section 04.20.39 – Dwelling Unit.  A residential structure designed for the occupancy of 
one family. 
 
Section 04.20.71 – Home Occupation. …. within the walls of the dwelling unit, not 
visible or noticeable in any matter or form outside the walls of the dwelling.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that he believes the home occupation in this case is an office located 
within the home, and does not believe that a office located in the home requires the 
6,000 square foot structure. 
 
Section 10.10.00 - Intent .  R-1A through R-1E are to be most restricted of the 
Residential areas as to use.  To promote the area, to keep the consistency – not to 
create extraordinary large attachments. 
 
Section 40.55.00 – Accessory Buildings and Structures.  Mr. Kingsepp feels that this 
clarifies home occupation as they must be compatible with a residential parcel and 
compatible with the surrounding area,  maintain the residential character of area and 
avoid the reduction of property values.  Building devoted primarily to home occupation 
and business, which in this case is an office.  Secondary and clearly incidental to the 
principal building on the parcel of land. 
 
 

 8



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp went on to define certain terms in the Ordinance.  Garage – A building of 
not less than 180 square feet designed for the periodic parking or storage of one or 
more private motor vehicles.  Garage is also defined as an accessory building for 
parking or storage of not more than the number of vehicles as may be required in 
connection of the permitted use of the principal structure.  Mr. Kingsepp queried the 
Board as to whether this definition was ambiguous.  Mr. Kingsepp went on to define 
other terms used such as attached, incidental, garages, etc.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp went on to say that he used our Code to demonstrate that there are 
sections of the Code that clearly describe and define this particular structure.  The 
interpretation that you have is quite clear based on the Code.  The appeals are made by 
any person or entity affected by a decision of the Director of Building and Zoning.   
 
Mr. Kingsepp went on to say that a significant section of the Code is Section 43.75.00, 
Interpretation.    “The Board has the power to determine that a use or combination of 
uses of land and structures be permitted if the provisions of this Chapter are not precise 
enough to determine the legality of the use or the combination of uses”.  The residents 
of this community have the right to rely on the training, experience and background of 
the administration to interpret the Ordinances that exist to their benefit.  They have the 
right to rely upon the plain and ordinary meaning of those Ordinances.  Mr. Kingsepp 
said that they had tried to show that the Ordinances are clear and plain given the 
description of the owner of 3129 Alpine as to what he intended to construct.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that the key phrase was 6000 square feet.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that 
he felt it was up to the Building Official to deny this request and tell the petitioner to 
come before the Board of Zoning Appeals.  At that time this Board would have known 
exactly what he was proposing and could have placed conditions on this request.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that the residents had to come before this Board instead.  Once the door 
is closed, Mr. Kingsepp questioned how the Ordinance would be enforced as to the use 
of this building.    Mr. Kingsepp also said that the wording in the Ordinance should have 
been used to make sure this building was a “garage”, a “subordinate building”. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp further stated that the City Assessor went out and filed a report with City 
Council indicating that the property values in this area would be depreciating because of 
the size of this structure.  The Assistant City Attorney, when asked if the City could 
expend public funds to abate the hideous appearance of this structure, used the term 
“garage” and concluded because it was a private garage public funds could not be 
used.    Members of the City Council exclaiming that this is a commercial structure and 
as long as there is no legislation that prohibits this, this type of structure could be in 
every other residential district. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp also said that this is a situation that interpretation of the Ordinance is not 
reconciled with the terms of the Ordinance.  If the Board determines that the Building 
Permit was issued and if it is found that the interpretation of the Ordinance was incorrect 
the Board can declare.  The owner of the property can then make an appeal and if the  

 9



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Court sustains the decision of this Board, he would have no claim against the City.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that he believes the interpretation does not reconcile with the definitions 
of the Ordinance.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that the public has the right to rely on the 
clear, unambiguous meanings of the Ordinance.   
 
Mr. Maxwell asked Mr. Kingsepp to comment on the structural attachment of this so-
called attached garage.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he was unable to comment.  Mr. 
Maxwell asked if this was a stand-alone building that would remain if the house were 
removed.  Mr. Kingsepp said he used the words that the applicant used at the time he 
applied for the Building Permit.  If it is not covered by the Ordinance, the owner should 
have come before this Board.  Mr. Kingsepp also said that he did not know how to 
define it.  Mr. Maxwell said that this Board may have to be interpret the definition as to 
attached. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked Mr. Kingsepp’s if it was part of his testimony that this was not an 
attached garage.  Mr. Kingsepp stated that he thought it was an attached garage. 
  
Mr. Courtney said that if he interprets each section to mean exactly what they say, what 
would Mr. Kingsepp want from him.  Mr. Kingsepp said that if you believe any of the 
sections he provided and if he believes that the definitions in the Ordinance are clear, 
he wants the Board to determine that the Building Permit was issued improperly 
because it did not meet the interpretations within the Ordinance as they arose from a 
description from the applicant as to what he wanted to do.  Mr. Kingsepp does not 
believe that there is anything in the Ordinance with the definitions used that would allow 
for a 6000 square foot structure.  Mr. Courtney asked what would give him the right to 
determine that the Building Official made an error in issuing a Building Department.  Mr. 
Kingsepp that the Board has the right to interpret the wording in the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Kingsepp also said that the members of the Board should ask administration to show 
how the permit was issued based on the wording in the Ordinance.  Mr. Courtney said 
that he feels that each section means exactly what it says.  Mr. Kingsepp said that not 
all situations could be covered in the original Ordinance and therefore Boards were 
created to allow for these variances. 
 
Mr. Wright said that in talking about attached garages, it has a 30’ common wall.  Mr. 
Wright also said that he believes the structure in question is totally independent, and the 
homeowner just happened to put it next to the house.  Mr. Kingsepp said that if this is 
one of the interpretations that has to be made under the existing Ordinance now, it is 
better made until legislation comes into play by an application of this body, and not by 
an interpretation by the Building Department that the residents in the community have 
difficulty understanding and interpreting. 
 
Mr. Kingsepp said that as a matter of disclosure, Mr. Kingsepp and Mr. Hutson are very 
good friends and as a matter of fact are godparents to each other’s children.  Mr.  
 

 10



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Kingsepp and Mr. Hutson both said it would not affect any matters brought forth at this 
time.   
 
Mr. Kovacs said that the Board has heard evidence by the petitioner that the Building 
Department had issued a permit for a structure that did not meet the requirements of the 
Ordinance.  Mr. Kovacs asked Mr. Stimac if he wanted to prepare something in rebuttal 
as to why this permit was issued.  Mr. Stimac stated that the permit was issued for this 
structure as it did comply with the Zoning Ordinance.  Having the opportunity to hear Mr. 
Kingsepp’s presentation, providing additional information would require some time to 
put together a response.  In addition, Mr. Kingsepp has also drawn on other parts of the 
Ordinance that were not identified earlier so the Building Department would like the time 
and opportunity to reply.  Mr. Stimac also said that after hearing Mr. Kingsepp’s 
presentation, he still did not believe there was anything presented that proved that this 
structure did not comply with the Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Kovacs also asked that if there had been any type of similar situation and if there 
had been any legal precedents set regarding an interpretation of the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Motzny said that there is no legal precedent exactly on point, but there are cases where 
the Court has decided the issue of whether a BZA has properly interpreted the decision 
of a Building Official and each case is different.  There are cases out there, but not 
exactly the same. 
 
Mr. Hutson said that this was a good presentation but asked if Mr. Kingsepp could 
summarize in writing his arguments and points in the working of the Ordinance.  Mr. 
Kingsepp said that would not be a problem.  Mr. Hutson also asked if there is a burden 
of proof standard for a BZA such as by the preponderance of the evidence clear and 
convincing.  Mr. Kingsepp said that there is case law that says on interpretation it is not 
clear and convincing, it is by the preponderance of evidence but Mr. Kingsepp also said 
that he believes that case law is somewhat weak on interpretation.  Mr. Kingsepp also 
said that he would try to furnish some authority. 
 
Mr. Motzny also said that there is very little case law on what the actual burden of proof 
is, but as with any decision this Board makes he would say that if it rules in favor of the 
applicant or denies the applicant, this Board’s decision must be based on substantial, 
competent and material evidence on the record. 
 
Ms. Gies asked if there was a maximum size for garages.  Mr. Stimac said that there is 
no minimum size for a garage and it is his opinion that there is no language in the 
Ordinance that establishes the maximum size of a garage other than the setbacks on 
the property and the lot coverage on the property.  There are also height restrictions 
that are in regards to an attached garage.  With regards to a detached garage, the 
Zoning Ordinance states that a detached accessory structure cannot exceed ½ the 
ground floor area of the main building or 600 square feet whichever is greater.  Further 
it provides that all of those buildings have to be in the rear yard and cannot take up  

 11



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
more than 25% of the rear yard.  Ms. Gies asked if this structure had met all of those 
requirements.  Mr. Stimac said this structure was reviewed as an attached garage and it 
did meet all setback requirements in the R-1B Zoning District and was not more than 
30% of the lot coverage.  Ms. Gies asked if an attached garage had a maximum size 
allowance.  Mr. Stimac stated that in his opinion there was no language in the Zoning 
Ordinance that restricts the size of an attached garage. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he believes the petitioner’s case is that based upon his 
interpretation of the Zoning Ordinance there is a maximum size allowed for an attached 
garage, and the petitioner wants the Board to also determine what that maximum size is 
for an attached garage.  Mr. Kovacs apologized to the members in the audience for the 
length of the meeting, but also stated he wants to make sure they are totally fair to all 
parties concerned.  Mr. Kovacs said that he would like to give Mr. Stimac time to reply 
to this presentation and in his opinion he would like to give the property owner the 
opportunity to also hear this presentation.  Mr. Courtney said that the property owner 
should be notified about these proceedings.  Mr. Stimac said that the property owner at 
3129 Alpine was notified about this hearing.  Mr. Stimac also said that he did not believe 
this Board could compel the property owner to attend a hearing.  Due to the fact that 
there were a large number of people in the audience, Mr. Stimac asked that the Public 
Hearing be opened, which would allow him to get all of the facts and then come back 
with an appropriate response. 
 
Mr. Kovacs opened the Public Hearing. 
 
Ms. Betty Reed of 3147 Alpine was present.  Ms. Reed stated that she lives right next 
door and would like to see this Board right a wrong that was done by the Building 
Department.  After objections from neighbors the City Council ordered City 
management to negotiate with Mr. Piscopo, however negotiations broke down because 
Mr. Piscopo’s demands were too unreasonable.  One of Mr. Piscopo’s demands was 
that City lease a commercial building for him to park his vehicle in.  Both residents and 
non-residents believe that this is a commercial building and not a garage.  This includes 
Mayor Schilling and Councilwoman Stine have stated publicly that they believe this is a 
commercial building in a residential area.  Mr. Licari, the City Assessor, in a letter to the 
City Manager has stated that this garage has the potential to affect the value of the 
neighboring homes by as much as 10% and possibly more.  Realtors have advised 
residents that it could reduce the number of potential buyers interested in homes in this 
neighborhood by as much as 90%.    The homes are the only financial security for the 
future and to allow the City of Troy to take away part of the value of our homes is 
unbelievable and unacceptable.  Should the City allow one person in the neighborhood 
to decrease property values of most of the surrounding neighbors.  If this building 
remains it will not only decrease property values but will also affect the quality of living.  
The harmony and integrity of the neighborhood has been destroyed by the City’s 
blunder.  What is the purpose of having Ordinance’s if they are not interpreted properly?   
 

 12



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Mr. George Reed, 3147 Alpine was present.  Mr. Reed stated that he and his wife as 
well as other neighbors have been told by realtors that property values could drop as 
much as 25% because of the monster garage.  Mr. Reed also said that it would be more 
difficult for them to sell their homes.  One realtor had told Mr. Reed that this structure 
gives the area a commercial appearance and homes in close proximity to commercial 
areas sell for less than homes that are in residential areas.  It is a certainty that buyers 
given a choice would prefer to live in a strictly residential area rather than a commercial 
area.  A second realtor informed Mr. Reed that it would be harder to sell a home in this 
area to a family looking for a clean quiet area.  The properties in this area would more 
likely be sold to an investor looking for rental property or a homeowner looking for 
properties that would sell under market value.  Buyers are looking for homes that are 
strictly residential not with business properties located next door.  Three other realtors 
that live on Alpine have also concurred with these statements.  Mr. Reed again pointed 
out that Mr. Licari reinforces these statements by saying that this structure could affect 
the value of the homes in this area by 10% or more.  Mr. Licari also said that this 
situation does not exist anywhere else in Troy.  Never in the past has the construction of 
a garage caused so much attention including at least 15 news articles and television 
reports.   Mr. Reed stated that this structure is a concern not only to the residents of this 
area, but is also a concern to residents in other areas of Troy.  Most of the residents of 
Troy are aware of the monster garage and are interested in the outcome of this hearing.  
Many neighbors have experienced disgust and anguish with City staff regarding this 
structure.   
 
Jeanne Stine, 1915 Boulan was present.  Ms. Stine said that she was not going to 
address the points in the Ordinance as she felt that Mr. Kingsepp had done an excellent 
job.  Ms. Stine said that the entrance to this sub has not become an invitation to blight 
as the first thing you see is the wall of corrugated steel.  As you proceed further into the 
sub, which contains only five streets, you will find seven (7) sites that have commercial 
vehicles.  Underlying theme seems to be that if the garage is OK, why not other related 
items and this area has become a dumping ground.  Ms. Stine invited Mr. Szerlag to 
come and look at what was going on and his first comment was “… this is Appalachia”.  
Ms. Stine said that she is addressing this Board not as a member of Council but as a 
resident of this subdivision and is speaking regarding the concerns of the neighbors.  
Ms. Stine said this is a very close-knit group and they all watch out for each other.  Ms. 
Stine said that the construction of this industrial warehouse is very devastating to the 
people in this subdivision.  A neighbor so impacted by the construction of a garage next 
door, so as to suffer severe emotional distress, lack of enjoyment of their own back 
yard, depreciation of property value and disinheritance of Troy’s quality of life. At least 
three members of City Council stated that nothing like this could happen in Troy and a 
mistake had been made.  The Rivards who lived next door at 3109 Alpine for twelve 
years enjoyed their homestead and neighborhood until this monster garage was put up.  
Think of waking up to the pall of corrugated steel 150’ deep along your side yard.  It is 
inconceivable.  The fact that the Rivard family no longer suffers the pain of the 
warehouse next door makes no difference to the rest of the neighborhood except for the  

 13



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
fact that they have lost a good neighbor.  The garage remains an embarrassment to the 
subdivision and the entire community.  It is her understanding that this Board has some 
power and discretion to make this right.  Ms. Gies asked Ms. Stine since she was 
involved right when the project started, why the City did not come out at the beginning.  
Ms. Stine said that she thought Mr. Szerlag thought it would be stopped, but when it 
was brought up at the next Council meeting, it was made known to Council and those in 
the audience that according to Mr. Stimac the Ordinance had been followed and Mr. 
Szerlag stated that there had been no mistake made. 
 
Steven Japar, 4518 Whisper Way was present.  Mr. Japar commended the petitioner on 
his presentation as he thought it was excellent and feels that something should be done 
about this situation.  Mr. Japar said that he thinks it should be pretty clear that if 
someone was going to put up a 6,000 square foot building on residential property, that 
there would be some impact to the surrounding property.  Mr. Japar also said that he 
wondered why the Building Department would allow this to proceed knowing what kind 
of impact it would have and why there was not a procedure in place that would not have 
allowed this permit to be awarded.  Secondly, Mr. Japar, said that regarding Ms. Reed’s 
statement about negotiations between the City and owner of the property, it points out 
very clearly what the intentions of the owner of the property were when he asked them 
to lease a commercial building for his use. 
 
Walenda Green, 6811 Livernois was present.  Ms. Green stated that she lives on the 
north end of Troy and works with contractors every day.  Ms. Green stated that this is 
definitely not an attached garage, but an attached commercial building.  Ms. Green 
watched this structure go up from the very beginning and there is no way that it can be 
construed as an attached garage.  People on the north end of Troy also believe this 
building is an eyesore and are concerned that a similar structure could show up on this 
side of Troy.  Ms. Green stated that she could up a large building on her property but 
would not do that because of the impact to her neighbors.  Ms. Green also said that she 
did not believe this structure could be considered attached as there is only a small area 
that attaches the structure to the home.  Ms. Green said she does not believe this is a 
normal attached garage.  Anywhere outside of the City people consider this a monster 
garage.  Ms. Green also said since he does not have an occupancy permit, she did not 
believe that anything should be able to be stored in the structure.  Mr. Kovacs said that 
the Board is not there to make a judgment on that issue, but Ms. Green could file a 
complaint with City staff during normal business hours.  Ms. Green said that the Mayor 
and City Manager stated in the newspaper on Sunday that they would like to keep Troy 
a premier City and they are becoming a premier City.  Ms. Green also said that a 
mistake had been made and it is time to fess up to that mistake.  This should have 
never been allowed.  The Mayor states that first they must protect the integrity of the 
neighborhood and this eyesore does not protect the neighborhood. 
 
Eugene West, 3205 Alpine was present.  Mr. West said that he is a car collector and 
has a detached garage and it is a garage.  There is no way that a commercial building  

 14



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
in a residential neighborhood can be construed as a garage.  The Building Department 
made a mistake and now the residents are expected to live with that mistake.  Mr. West 
said that living in Troy he never expected to be screwed over by the City and in allowing 
this commercial building to be built on the property has cost him money in the value of 
his home.  This is not a garage.     
 
Peter Bamford, 3244 Alpine was present.  Mr. Bamford said that he is a realtor that in 
his professional opinion the property values have diminished with this structure in the 
area.  Mr. Bamford also pointed out that one of the Ordinances that was brought up 
indicates that if a structure is put up on the property, should be such that it does not 
diminish the value of the property and this structure does that. 
 
Dennis Rivard, 2774 Portage Trail was present.  Mr. Rivard said that he formerly lived at 
3109 Alpine and the garage was put up 10’ from his property line and moved because 
of this structure.  Mr. Rivard said that a project like this should have gone through the 
variance process and would like the Board to consider whether they would have 
approved this for a variance.  If not, Mr. Rivard believes a permit never should have 
been issued.  Mr. Rivard said that Section 40.57.04 states that an attached garage can 
be no larger than 50% of the square footage of the home.  Mr. Rivard said that this is 
the definition of an accessory building.  Mr. Kovacs said that Section 40.57.04 covers a 
detached structure.  Mr. Rivard said that a garage is an accessory building and should 
adhere to the definition of an accessory building.  Mr. Rivard also said that Section 
40.57.02 that says when an accessory structure is structurally attached to a main 
building, should be subject to or conform to all regulations to this chapter applicable to 
the main building.  Mr. Rivard said that this is where the differences definitely come in 
and makes no sense, because a garage is still a garage.  The City Tax Code does not 
comply with the interpretation of this Ordinance.  When you sell your home, you do not 
consider the square footage of the garage and this is the other reason Mr. Rivard feels 
that this building should be considered an accessory structure.  Mr. Rivard said that 
there is a difference between a garage and a house.  Mr. Rivard also agreed with Mr. 
Hutson that if they had been notified that this structure was going up they would have 
approached the City much sooner but there is no obligation to notify surrounding 
property owners.  Mr. Rivard said he knew Mr. Piscopo was going to put up a large 
garage, but he had no idea it would be this large and as soon as they saw the first 
girders going up they immediately approached the neighbor and the City.  Mr. Maxwell 
asked what Mr. Rivard’s definition of an attached garage was.  Mr. Rivard stated that he 
knows his garage shares a common wall with the living room and if they would have 
stayed on Alpine they would have converted the garage to a family room.  Mr. Rivard 
said that he believes this structure has a common doorway but is not sure if there is a 
common wall. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that when he was putting up his shed he had to have his neighbors 
sign a notification form and wondered why this property owner did not have to do the 
same.  Mr. Stimac said that the Zoning Ordinance provides for notification of 50% of the  

 15



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
property owners for the construction of a shed.  Mr. Stimac also said that there is 
nothing in the Ordinance or Building Code that requires neighbor notification of 
construction of building foundation property. 
 
Michael Bartnik, 3842 Burkoff was present and stated that he wanted to echo the 
sentiments of the other people that had spoken.  Mr. Bartnik stated that this structure 
did not just affect the residents in the immediate area, but all of the residents of Troy.   
Mr. Bartnik also said that he is concerned about the enforcement of this issue, if this 
Board decides in favor of the petitioner.  Mr. Bartnik believes the structure should be 
torn down, the property graded and then the property owner should come before this 
Board for a variance.   
 
Zak Abuzaid, 3128 Alpine was present.  Mr. Abuzaid said that he lives across the street 
from 3129 Alpine and had been approached by Mr. Piscopo and asked if he would have 
a problem with the construction of an oversized garage.  He did not give Mr. Abuzaid 
any of the details of the construction.  Mr. Abuzaid said that he does have a problem 
with this garage and would like the Board to look into it. 
 
MaryAnn Bernardi was present and stated that although she does not live in this area, 
she believes a grave injustice has been done.  Ms. Bernardi said that she is intensely 
concerned on how residential concerns are handled in this City.  Ms. Bernardi believes 
that everyone needs to come to each other’s aid when we need help and these 
residents need help.  Regarding the intent of the Ordinance, Ms. Bernardi said that Mr. 
Kingsepp made an impenetrable argument that what was intended to be put on this site 
was a garage, but what is on the site is not a garage by definition and a multitude of 
Ordinances.  Ms. Bernardi agrees that the conclusion must be to state that a Building 
Permit was issued in error.  Ms. Bernardi said that she did look at this garage on Alpine, 
and said that the first thought that came into her mind was where did professional 
judgment come in here, because there would be such an impact to the area to put this 
type of structure up because it is such a grotesque piece of property.  Ms. Bernardi 
compared the fact that this application was not questioned.  City Staff members are 
professionals and Ms. Bernardi believes they are duty bound to question and determine 
what is in the best interests of the City.  All cities are financially strapped, including Troy, 
and Ms. Bernardi believes that we are using tax dollars in Court and have been losing 
case after case and there are still sixteen (16) cases pending.  Mr. Kingsepp said that if 
you were to find that the Building Permit was issued erroneously, which Ms. Bernardi 
believes is the case, the Court could not then come back to the City, which would be 
advantageous as it would not be a waste of tax dollars that are needed so desperately 
in other areas.  Ms. Bernardi also said that to find that this Building Permit was issued in 
error would be the right thing for this Board to do. 
  
Patricia Ullman was present.  Ms. Ullman said that she lives on Willow Grove and came 
tonight to support the residents on Alpine.  In 1991 Ms. Ullman built a detached building 
and wanted to put a cupola on it, but was unable to do so because she was told it would  

 16



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
be intrusive to the Golf Trail residents, and also exceeded the height requirements.   
Ms. Ullman did not see how anyone would not think this commercial building will be less 
intrusive.  Ms. Ullman went on to say that this building is not an attached garage but a 
commercial building.  Ms. Ullman husband was a truck driver and she knows what a 
commercial building looks like and this is definitely a commercial building. 
 
Tom Krent, 3184 Alpine was present.  Mr. Krent stated that he had brought in a petition 
with one hundred and nine (109) signatures on it objecting to this monster garage.  This 
petition was presented to City Council.  Mr. Krent said that the Zoning Ordinance is 
open to interpretation.  Mr. Szerlag stated at the July 12th meeting of City Council that 
this City is structured to have the Director of Building & Zoning work in conjunction with 
the Planning Director to make interpretations of the Zoning Ordinance and arrive at 
decisions.  Mr.  Krent said that he did not believe these decisions did not utilize the 
sections of the Ordinance, which would have denied the issuance of this Building 
Permit.  By issuing this permit they have allowed this industrial style structure to be built 
in a residential neighborhood.  There are many sections in the Ordinance that should 
have prevented this building from going up.  Mr. Krent said that he was going to 
concentrate on the section of the Ordinance that deals with Home Occupation.  
Definition of Home Occupation states that “occupation shall not be visible or noticeable 
in any form from outside the walls of the dwelling and accessory structure”.  The 
structure itself is in the “form” of an industrial building and is very noticeable and visible 
from the outside.  This structure is associated with structures generally found in areas of 
Troy that are zoned M-1 (Light Industrial).  Intent of the Home Occupation Section are to 
insure compatibility of the subject residential parcel with the surrounding residential 
area; to maintain the residential character of the area and to avoid reduction of property 
values.   The structure at 3129 Alpine fails not just one of these conditions but all of the 
conditions listed in this section.  This structure is not compatible with the residential 
character of this area, it does not maintain the residential character of the area and it 
will cause a reduction of property values.  In addition to the reduction of property values 
near 3129 Alpine this structure has tainted the subdivision.  Although the Home 
Occupation section as well as many other sections of the Ordinance could have 
prevented this structure from being constructed in a residential area, our City officials 
chose to issue a Building Permit.  Mr. Krent showed pictures of this garage to 
Department Heads in Bloomfield Hills and Birmingham.  Both official stated that they 
would not have allowed this structure to go up in a residential neighborhood and the 
head of the Building Department in Birmingham called this structure an abomination.     
The Official in Bloomfield Hills stated that even if it fit in with the Ordinances, he would 
not have allowed it to be constructed and the owner would have to sue the City to 
construct this type of building.  The City Officials in Troy chose to have this structure put 
up in a residential area, which has had devastating effects including severe emotional 
stress as well as substantial financial cost.  The Rivard family has moved out of Troy 
because they were so disgusted with City Officials in allowing this structure to be built.  
In conclusion, the City Officials did not use good judgment when interpreting the Zoning 
Ordinance and in particular the Home Occupation Ordinance. 

 17



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
Emma Burry, 3224 Alpine was present.  Ms. Burry said that she has lived in this area for 
56 years.  Ms. Burry thanked all of the people who came to speak on this issue that do 
not live in this subdivision. Ms. Burry has always taken great pride in living in Troy and 
her friends from surrounding communities cannot understand what kind of Building 
Department we have to allow this structure to go up.  Ms. Burry asked the Board if they 
would want this structure to go up next to their property.  Ms. Burry said no matter 
where you live, you would not want this structure next to your property. 
 
Lon Ullman on Willow Grove was present.  Mr. Ullman said that one of the reasons you 
live in Communities is for protection and for Community values.  The function of the 
Ordinance is to preserve those community values.  Mr. Ullman feels that this individual 
has exploited loopholes in the Ordinance.  Mr. Ullman also said that he thinks that our 
staff is more inclined to proceed with proven things and everyone makes bad calls.  Mr. 
Ullman feels that this structure is the result of a bad call.  However, Mr. Ullman said that 
he thinks what needs to be done here is to say that perhaps “we didn’t use our best 
judgment” and proceed from there.  Mr. Ullman said that citizens depend on 
government to protect them and does not believe this was done.  This Board needs to 
be responsible to the community as a whole and the values and to rectify a situation 
that is obviously out of control.  Mr. Ullman said that he is a residential builder and 
started building attached garages with wood studs 35 years ago.  Structural steel is not 
considered to be residential material.  Mr. Ullman does not believe this could be 
considered to be any type of residential structure.  Mr. Ullman went on to say that the 
height of the garage door, which is 14’, is to accommodate very high loads.  Mr. Piscopo 
is a plumbing contractor and his uncle told Mr. Ullman that Mr. Piscopo removes 
material from inside of buildings.  Mr. Ullman said that he could have put up a similar 
structure and would have been able to fit a commercial vehicle inside.  Mr. Ullman 
further stated that if there is a problem with the Ordinance then it is time to go back and 
look at the Ordinances.  Mr. Ullman also said that we have to find a way so that these 
professionals are not put into a corner where they say this individual meets all the 
requirements, therefore we must approve this.  A point is needed where a professional 
does not have their hands tied.  Mr. Ullman said that the Board needs to give this 
careful consideration and to help the people that are involved. 
 
Ana Carry Barr, 3165 Alpine was present and stated that she lives two doors away from 
this monstrosity abomination and wants to add her voice for an appeal.  She would also 
like to see a human admission that a mistake was made.  Ms. Barr also said that she 
feels that these residents have been stolen from and if this building is allowed to remain 
the way it is or allowed to be put in operation in some way that is deceitful and is based 
on a lie and facilitated by a mistake, then the mistake must be admitted and they can go 
on from there.  Ms. Barr further stated that because this area is rural, she does not 
believe there are looser methods of dealing with the planning. 
 
Walter Weldon, 1535 Banmoor was present and stated that his home had built in 1947 
and studies history.  Mr. Weldon read the book Troy Corners, the history of Troy and  

 18



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
there are a number of homes in his neighborhood that have attached two-car garages.  
Over the years several homes have undergone changes, but they still fit in with the 
character of the area.  If people want to build a garage, they should build it to fit in with 
everything else in the area.  Mr. Weldon said that we should be preserving history and 
this garage should not be in a residential area.  Everything should be natural and this 
structure is out of place and looks terrible.   
 
Shirley Jordan, 3268 Alpine stated that this addition is five to six times bigger than the 
original house, and although he tore down a lot of the existing house, he did leave a 
couple of the existing walls, and wants to know if this gives him a tax advantage.  Ms. 
Jordan believes it did.  She also said that they have 200 condominiums coming in at the 
end of the street and the lots had been re-zoned and everything is a done deal.  Ms. 
Jordan wanted to know if the residents would be notified of the construction going up in 
this area.  Mr. Kovacs said that this Board has nothing to do with re-zoning and she 
would have to contact the Planning Commission.   Mr. Kovacs said that the only reason 
they would come before this Board was if they required a variance for setback 
requirements.  Mr. Wright stated that this proposed project has not come before the 
Planning Commission for approval at this time.  There was an informational meeting last 
Tuesday night, however, it conflicted with the meeting of the Planning Commission and 
therefore members of the Planning Commission were not able to attend.  Mr. Wright 
said that she should stay in contact with the Planning Director, Mark Miller, 248-524-
3364, in order to keep on top of this situation.  Ms. Jordan went on to say that she feels  
that she is getting beat up on.  Mr. Wright said that they are trying to be fair.  Ms. Jordan 
went on to say that this structure is a screw machine shop and definitely not a garage.   
 
Mr. Abuzaid came up again and stated that the owner of the house does not live at this 
location and would like the Board to also look at this issue. 
 
No one else wished to be heard and the Public Hearing was closed. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that it is his recommendation to postpone this issue until the meeting of 
March 15, 2005 as he would like to hear Mr. Stimac’s rebuttal to this presentation.  Mr. 
Kovacs also said that there is a differing opinion in the interpretation of these 
Ordinances and at that time he would also like to give Mr. Kingsepp the opportunity 
once again to give his input.  Mr. Kovacs further stated that when they go to review this 
issue it should be structure to make a motion on each section and the motion should 
indicate whether they agree or disagree with the interpretation and the reasons why.   
 
Mr. Courtney said that he thinks it is a little early to decide how they would handle it as it 
may be decided that the Board does not need to look at each section.  Mr. Courtney 
also agreed that this issue should be postponed to the meeting of March 15, 2005.  Mr. 
Courtney also said that he would like a written report from Mr. Kingsepp regarding the 
reasons for this petition.  Mr. Kingsepp said that he did not believe this would be a 
problem and he also said that Mr. Motzny and himself may be able to help by guided by  

 19



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
a proposed resolution by the City and a proposed resolution by Mr. Kingsepp.  Mr. 
Courtney said he thought it would be very helpful.   
 
At this time Mr. Kovacs asked if they needed a motion to next month’s meeting to hear 
the feedback from the Building Department and also asked if the Public Hearing would 
need to be re-opened next month.  Mr. Stimac said that so far this evening the Public 
Hearing was closed, and if Mr. Kovacs wanted to hear additional testimony he would 
have to re-open the Public Hearing at the next meeting.  Mr. Stimac also said that it 
would be possible for Mr. Kovacs to adjourn the Public Hearing until the next meeting.   
 
Mr. Wright said that the question of Home Occupation, Section 40.20.71 comes to mind 
and basically states that the definition says …an occupation that takes place inside the 
walls of a dwelling unit by a resident thereof having no employees that are not 
themselves residents.  That occupation shall not be visible or noticeable in any manner 
or form from outside the dwelling unit.”  Mr. Wright believes that this structure violates 
all of that and back in September of 2000, the Building Department called the subject’s 
wife regarding vehicles on the property and she stated that some of them belonged to 
the family and the other vehicles were employees that were picking up material that 
related to her husband’s business.  Mr. Wright said that this is a violation of our 
Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Fejes said that he believes the same way Mr. Wright does.  Mr. Fejes went on to 
say that regardless of what he hears back from the City, he does not feel this is an 
attached garage but is clear to him that it is against the law.  There is clear evidence 
that it is not a garage.  Mr. Fejes said that he would be ready to make a motion at this 
point and asked for a clear picture of what type of motion would be required.  
 
Mr. Stimac stated that the question before the Board this evening is whether or not the 
structure on this property complies with the Ordinance.  If the Board finds that it does 
comply we go on, if the Board finds that it does not comply with the Ordinance Mr. 
Stimac would write a violation notice and enforce the Ordinance as this Board has 
determined.  If it is required that the structure come down in order to comply then that 
so shall be ordered, or if it is required that the structure come down in size then that so 
shall be ordered.  This Board does not have the authority to issue or revoke a permit, 
but does have the authority to interpret what does and does not comply with the 
Ordinance. The authority to enforce the Ordinance is Mr. Stimac’s to carry out. 
 
Mr. Kovacs stated that this is the reason he would like the Board to go through each 
section and state exactly whether they feel that this structure is in violation or not.  Mr. 
Fejes said that there is enough here tonight that this is wrong and this gentleman built a 
warehouse and Mr. Fejes does not believe there is anything else to hear.  Mr. Hutson 
said that what the Board needs to hear is an analysis of all the Ordinances and how 
they intertwine and whether or not it has been taken into account that in fact there’s fact 
that supports any decision reliably.  Mr. Hutson said that he did not feel a decision could  

 20



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

ITEM #4 – con’t. 
 
be made on a gut reaction.  Mr. Fejes stated that his application stated “garage”.  Mr. 
Fejes also said that if you read from the Ordinance you can park a vehicle or lawn 
equipment that is what is normally put into a garage.  Mr. Hutson said that it may come 
to that but he would like to hear all the facts.  Mr. Fejes stated that he would be willing to 
wait until next month, but he could make a decision today. 
 
Mr. Kovacs said that he is not worried about future litigation, but what has to be taken 
into consideration that any of the decisions by the Board have to have a clear 
foundation.  We can’t just say that is an ugly garage, but Mr. Kovacs feels in his opinion 
that the Board needs to go in section by section and determine if this structure complies 
with each section.  If this is not done Mr. Kovacs does not believe it would have any 
legal standing. 
 
Mr. Maxwell said that this is one method of find a basis in fact and determining 
evidence.  A decision is based on facts, this is also an interpretative thing and also the 
spirit, and intent of the Ordinance needs to be taken into consideration.  Mr. Kovacs 
said that City staff granted the Building Permit because they feel that this structure did 
meet the requirements of the Ordinance, and in order to make a decision, Mr. Kovacs 
wants to hear why City staff came to this conclusion.  Mr. Maxwell agreed with Mr. 
Kovacs and said that he also feels the general intent relating to the general welfare of 
the community also has to be taken into consideration. 
 
Ms. Gies said that she understands that there is a problem here and asked how the 
Ordinance could be changed, if this Board determines that all the requirements of the 
Ordinance had been met.  Ms. Gies asked who is responsible for correcting the 
Ordinances so that this problem never comes up again.  Mr. Stimac explained that City 
Council has directed the Planning Commission to review this matter and propose 
revisions to the Ordinance to address those concerns.  The Planning Commission has 
proposed a series of revisions to the Ordinance that they feel will address those 
concerns.  They have gone through one set of Public Hearings and hopefully will be 
appearing before City Council for adoption in the near future.  The Board of Zoning 
Appeals may offer their opinions but ultimately it is City Council and the Planning 
Commission to have those hearings.  Ms. Gies asked if Mr. Stimac was going to offer a 
resolution to correct the problem.  Mr. Stimac said that there has been a lot of 
information provided this evening and ultimately he needs to digest it and provide a 
summary.  Mr. Stimac said that the only thing he would ask is that in reviewing each 
individual sections, and reviewing the structure, the Ordinance, intent and everything 
else, he would ask that if it does not comply what has to happen to it in order to comply; 
e.g. if 6,000 square feet is too big, how big is appropriate.  If there is a decision to 
overturn my direction, that is the decision Mr. Stimac has to enforce – this structure 
does not comply you must change it in order to comply.  Mr. Stimac asked for 
assistance from the Board. 
 

 21



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS – DRAFT                                      FEBRUARY 15, 2005 

Mr. Wright said that on the issue of Zoning Ordinance revisions, the Planning 
Commission did send some revisions to City Council some months ago, and one of the 
revisions was the maximum door height of 8’.  The standard of most of the garage doors 
in the City is 7’.  This garage door is 14’ high.  Not all of Council agreed with the door 
height as well as some of the other restrictions and sent it back to the Planning 
Commission.  By a majority vote, the Planning Commission stuck with the 8’ height 
requirement.  Some members of City staff are opposed to that so they were going to 
present two versions to City Council, however the Planning Commission said they want 
the decision to be unanimous so that they did not come back to the Board of Zoning 
Appeals for a variance.  Mr. Wright stated that the Planning Commission is waiting for 
City staff to come back to them with the reasons they do not wish to see the 8’ height. 
 
Motion by Courtney 
Supported by Gies 
 
MOVED, to postpone the interpretation request of Mr. & Mrs. George Reed & Mr. 
Thomas Krent, 3129 Alpine, regarding the issuance of a building permit to construct the 
garage at 3129 Alpine. 
 

• To allow City Staff to prepare an answer to the presentation by Mr. Kingsepp. 
 
Yeas:  6 – Kovacs, Maxwell, Wright, Courtney, Gies, Hutson 
Nays:  1 – Fejes 
 
MOTION TO POSTPONE THIS REQUEST UNTIL THE MEETING OF MARCH 15, 
2005 
 
Mr. Kovacs thanked the people from coming out to speak on this item and also for 
showing respect to the homeowner. 
 
The Board of Zoning Appeals meeting adjourned at 10:22 P.M. 
 
 
 
              
      Matthew Kovacs – Chairman 
 
 
 
              
      Pamela Pasternak – Recording Secretary 
 

 22



TROY ETHNIC ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT February 15, 2005 
 

Call to Order 
The regular meeting was called to order at 7:14 p.m. in Conference Room D at Troy City Hall. 
 
Roll Call 

Present: Hailu Robele    Jeff Hyun    
Amin Hashmi    Padma Kuppa 
Oniell Shah    Flora Tan 

  Charles Yuan   Cindy Stewart, City Liaison   
 

  Absent: Anju Brodbine   Tom Kaszubski 
    Kara Huang, Student Rep    

        
   
Approval of Minutes 
Minutes from January 4, 2005 - Motion by Yuan, second by Tan. Approved unanimously. 

 
 
 
New Business 
 

A. Sights & Sounds of the World 
a. Saturday, April 9, 2005 from 12-4 pm 

Countries to be involved - Egypt, Serbia, India, Philippines, Korea (Heehyul Moon), 
China (Kids dancing, martial arts), Pakistan 
 
Fax info to Italy (Tina Silverio), Germany (Carpathia Club - Adam Nedel), Middle 
East (Mayada), American Polish Cultural Center(Katarzyna) 
 
Each country will be allotted 20 minutes for entertainment (12:10 – 12:30, 12:35 -
12:55, 1 - 1:20, 1:25 - 1:45, 1:50 - 2:10,  2:15 - 2:35, 2:40 - 3, 3:05 - 3:25, 3:30 -
3:50).  Mehendi (henna) will be offered. 
  
Program info needed by April 1- will include sponsor/entertainment. 
 

b. More involvement from ethnic communities 
Highest population of Asian Indians in Michigan are in Troy.  All of EIA should 
recruit other members of their cultures to join various nonprofit organizations and 
City committees within the community.  Example Prayer Breakfast, Community 
Coalition, EthniCity,Troy Daze, Beaver Tales, etc. 

 
Tan - In other cultures, volunteerism is not as popular it is here in US. Language 
barriers are also a problem.   
 
Kuppa - we should still make efforts to recruit other people to help our community 
as well as sponsors from diverse companies and corporations. 

 
Old Business 
 

A. Resource List 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01h



TROY ETHNCI ISSUES ADVISORY BOARD – DRAFT February 15, 2005 
 
 
 

  

a. Email to members (pdf) send any updates to Cindy, these are being added to all new 
resident packets. Add a date to front page. 

 
B. Troy Daze 

Amin will go to EthniCity meetings (Padma will email date) 
 
We need to work hard to ensure success with EthniCity. Troy Daze Committee is okay with 
EIA recruiting ethnic demonstrators for EthniCity tent.  Example: Rangoli, using chop sticks, 
Martial Arts.  EIA members also man their booth (in costume preferred) 

 
C. Diversity Month – April 6 – May 6, 2005 

a. Prayer Breakfast May 6 
Email Erik schuette@webasto.com and cc Oniell re: Prayer Breakfast (he is from 
Buddhist temple).  EIA should make an effort to attend and bring friends and colleagues 

b. Time to send letters to churches, businesses, schools related to Diversity Month events. 
Include Arvin Meritor, Delphi, Standard Federal, International Academy, others 

c. Submit proclamation to Council  
d. Flora find article on Diversity Week in Canton 
e. April 9 Sights & Sounds of the World will be the kick off for Diversity Month and end with 

the Prayer Breakfast on May 6 
f. Padma will contact high schools; Flora - Hamilton Elementary and Oniell – Wattles 

Elementary related to any events on Diversity. 
g. Revise letter, last year’s proclamation, statistics, recent articles.  

 
D. Law Brochure 

a. On hold 
b. Check company that translates brochures re: sponsorships 
c. Email board brochure again 

 
 
Motion by Kuppa, second by Shah to adjourn - Meeting adjourned at 8:30 pm   
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Tom Kaszubski, EIA Board Chairman 

 
 

_______________________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 

 



DRAFT 
TROY DAZE ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

 
A.  CALL TO ORDER 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Advisory Committee was held Tuesday, February 22, 2005 at 
the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:33 pm. 
 
B.  MEMBERS PRESENT 
Present: 

Jim Cyrulewski   Marilyn Musick      
Cecile Dilley     Kessie Kaltsounis (absent) 
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski    Bob Berk 
Bill Hall    Mike Gonda 
Jeff Stewart (absent)   Bob Preston 
 

City Staff Present: 
Jeff Biegler 
Cindy Stewart 
Bob Matlick 
Gerry Scherlinck 
Tonya Perry 
  
EXCUSE ABSENT MEMBERS 
Resolution # TD-2005-02-04 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley 
 
RESOLVED that Kessie Kaltsounis and Jeff Stewart be excused. 
 
Yeas:  All    Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Resolution # TD-2005-02-05 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the January 25, 2005 Troy Daze Advisory Committee are 
approved.  
 
Yeas:  All    Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
CORRECTION OF MINUTES 
Resolution # TD-2005-02-06 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton Kaszubski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01i



RESOLVED that the minutes from the Special Meeting on February 8, 2005 be changed.  
One change to page 8 TD 2005-01-07 – BB did not vote as chair. 
 
Yeas:  All     Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
C. NEW BUSINESS 
 Appointment of Activity Chairpersons  - Tabled 

1. New Car Auto 
2. Talent Shows 

 
D.   OLD BUSINESS 

1. Operations Manual 
• Incorporate process for Festival Committee to bring suggestions to Advisory 

Committee 
• Look at process for openings on Festival Committee 
• Look at responsibilities of Festival Committee 

 
Motion to create subcommittee to revise operations manual   
Resolution # TD-2005-02-07 
Moved by Jim Cyrulewski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED that the subcommittee members are Cecile Dilley, Marilyn Musick (chair), Mike 
Gonda, and Bob Preston from the Advisory Board. 
 
Other Festival Committee volunteers? JoAnn Preston 
 
Marilyn will coordinate meeting schedule – suggestion to have ready for April 26, 2005 
meeting. 
 
Meeting is recessed at 7:44 pm. 
 
 
Reconvene Advisory Meeting to order at 9:28 p.m.  
 
Resolution # TD-2005-02-08 
Moved by   Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED that the Troy Daze Advisory Committee Meeting be adjourned at 9:29 p.m. 
 
Yeas:  All     Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED     
 
_____________________________ 
Bob Berk, Chairperson 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Cindy Stewart, Recording Secretary 



DRAFT   TROY DAZE FESTIVAL COMMITTEE  
 
A regular meeting of the Troy Daze Festival Committee was held Tuesday, February 22, 
2005 at the Troy Community Center. Meeting was called to order at 7:45 pm. 
 
A.  ROLL CALL 
 
Present:

Leonard Bertin   Mike Gonda  
Bob Preston   JoAnn Preston 
Cecile Dilley    Bill Hall  
Bob Berk   Jim Cyrulewski 

  Marilyn Musick   Sandy Macknis  
Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski  Cele Dilley 
Rusty Kaltsounis  Lois Cyrulewski 
Doris Schuchter  Laura Fitzpatrick 

   Tom Tighe 
    

City Staff Present:
Jeff Biegler    Bob Matlick  

   Tonya Perry    Gerry Scherlinck 
   Cindy Stewart  
         
 
B.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Moved by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Seconded by Cecile Dilley 
 
RESOLVED that the minutes from the January 25, 2005 Troy Daze Festival Committee are 
approved. 
Yeas:  All   Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
C.  TREASURER’S REPORT 
As of 1/31/05 
Revenue: $158,657.06 
Changes:  Deposit of corporate sponsors money $33,850 
Deduct from general fund $10,000 
Expenditures: $171,643.49 
No new expenses 
 
Moved by Jim Cyrulewski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
 
RESOLVED that the Treasurer’s Report was received and filed. 
 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



D.  CORRESPONDENCE 
1. February Meeting Notice 

• Check committee list (phone numbers, emails, etc.) for accuracy 
2. Letter to Troy Schools Superintendent regarding lawn signs 
3. Memo to Council regarding fees 
4. Memo to Parks & Recreation regarding Troy Daze Requests 
5. Letter to Patrick Harris regarding volunteer hours  

 
E.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

1. City Manager Budget Meeting Results – February 8, 2005 meeting with Advisory 
Committee Officers and City Manager John Szerlag, to discuss budget and state of 
City.  City Council wants city management to hold line on spending and reduce costs 
in non-essential areas.  One area is Troy Daze Festival. 
Request is to reduce Troy Daze Festival spending by 25% of City Services Fee.  This 
is not an easy cut to make, but City Admin (Fire, Police, Parks & Rec, DPW) have also 
helped cut their budgets.  A number of cuts have been made. 
 
Approximately $27,000 would be 25% reduction 
 
2004 Revenues - $152,715 
2004 Expenses - $230,547 
City makes up $77,832 difference 
 
2005 Projected Revenues - $147,100 
2005 Projected Expenses - $188,863 
Projected amount for City to make up $41,763 
 
In 2005 we will be losing $5000 from Delphi and receiving only $5,000 from Pepsi plus 
$3000 in products ($12,000 in 2004) 
Pepsi Tim Rayburn said they should check and see what Coke would offer 
 
Committee reduced parade expenses, eliminated Senior Sensation and  
Reduced other events by minimal amounts. 
 
If a sponsor donates money toward an event, can expenses cut be put back in? 
To some extent, but we also have overhead expenses that have to be paid.  Any 
donation has to be spread throughout the entire budget. 
 
How do we make cuts without jeopardizing festival safety, etc.?  Cannot cut police and 
fire.  We have made all cuts related to City manpower that we can.  If you cut items 
like installing handicap ramp for indoor stage or flooring in tents, there could be a 
liability issue. 
 
Parade co-chair Rusty Kaltsounis feels you cannot throw a parade for $5000.00. 
 
Quality of event does come into play with budget cuts.  Committee chairpersons must 
evaluate the individual events. 



 
What about increase in revenues?  Have we thought about ways to bring in more 
sponsor dollars? 
 
Loss of fireworks might hurt us as well as loss or change in parade.   Maybe it doesn’t 
have to be so big (bands/people not from Troy) but more of a hometown feel – Troy 
Community Parade. 
 
Let’s do more brainstorming to see what positive things we can do with the money we 
have.  Example, change parade route, length, date of event. 
 
Arnold Amusements loses profits during parade time.  Festival loses parking fees, not 
sure what the answer is. 
 
Cecile Dilley worked parade for many, many years.  Route used to be lined with 
crowds.  It is not this way any longer. 
 
Three years ago, parade chairpersons were told to grow the parade (more floats, 
bands) budget increased by $5000 (for walking balloons, incentives to build floats). 
 
Why keep rehashing the same things over and over?  All City Departments have to 
make cuts.  Lets just do the best we can with funds we have. 
 
Schedule a special meeting regarding fundraising revenue options.  
 
Ideas for Entertainment and Ethnicity 
 
Entertainment 

• Signs to face food court 
• Entertainment on Thursday – no 
• New artists night on Thursday 
• Checks for performers available on day of performance 
• Need volunteers on Saturday and Sunday morning to clean tent 
• Move banners up higher on stage 
• Move portajohns position from stage viewing sight 
• Performers not happy paying parking fee – too bad 
• Bring back look-a-likes – yes less expensive than entertainment 

 
 
EthniCIty 

• Have naturalization ceremony as separate event with City being contact – yes 
• League of Women Voters still do reception – yes 
• Need center aisle for opening ceremony presentation of flags 
• Add email address line to booth application 
• Increase number of volunteer shirts to include EthniCity volunteers 
• Rearrange Sunday stage schedules so poster contest awards don’t conflict with 

high school bands performance 
• Recruit more people to carry flags in parade (20 short in 2004) 



• Ensure opening to EthniCity tent is in center 
• American Flag stays center stage for Naturalization Ceremony (need 2 – one 

for photo and one to Pledge Allegiance to) 
• Develop display method for flat wall areas in tents for posters (200 in 2004) 
• Before Troy Daze posters will be at Community Center on art flats September 

1st through Troy Daze opening 
• Provide refreshments for student volunteers-they work 3 ½ hours shifts 
• Meet with new groups coming in regarding booth displays 
• Post outdoor stage schedule inside the tent 
• Arrange to have outdoor stage speakers aimed away from tent 
• Poster theme printed large on flyers 
• Friday and Saturday mornings close off front of tent to allow for set up 
• Create video of ethnic booths and run on cable - (Tell JoAnn set time to do 

interviews & she will let groups know) 
• Move Germany and Egypt to more prominent positions in tent 
• Have ethnic entertainment performance contract require them to be in parade in 

costume and carry flag? 
• Involve Avondale High & International Academy 
• Straw bales by flag post – safety issue 

 
Idea to have food demonstrations under food canopy? 
Better to place tables in front of EthniCity tent. 
 
If we can move the Ability Expo to a date and time people will come, we should be 
able to keep it - Friday evening would be ideal. 
2004 – 37 vendors 
2003 – 35 vendors 
This year we could charge vendors if we guarantee festival goers.  Ability Expo 
needs to do mailings by June 
 
Add a tentative layout for next meeting. 
 

Motion to adjourn the Festival Committee meeting by Cheryl Whitton-Kaszubski 
Seconded by Mike Gonda 
Yeas:  All 
Nays:  None 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Meeting is adjourned at 9:28 p.m.   



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   February 23, 2005 
 
 

 1

A meeting of the Troy Youth Council (TYC) was held on February 23, 2005 at 7:00 PM at City 
Hall in the Lower Level Conference Room, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  Jessica Kraft called the 
meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Alexandra (Sasha) Bozimowski 

Maniesh Joshi  
Rishi Joshi  
Andrew Kalinowski 
Jessica Kraft (co-chair) 
Manessa Shaw (arrived 7:10 PM) 
Nicole Vitale (co-chair) 
YuJing Wang 
Karen Wullaert 
 

MEMBERS ABSENT: Min Chong 
Juliana D’Amico (excused) 
Catherine Herzog (excused) 
Monika Raj (excused) 
 

ALSO PRESENT:  Laura Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 
                              
1. Roll Call 
 
2. Approval of Minutes 
 

Resolution # TY-2005-02-06 
 Moved by M Joshi 
 Seconded by Bozimowski 
          RESOLVED, That the minutes of 1/19/05 be approved 
           Yes: 7 
           No:      None  
 Abstain: 1 - Wullaert 
           Absent: 5 – Chong, D’Amico, Herzog, Raj, Shaw 
           MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. Attendance Report: To note and file 
4. Membership Update: 

Also, looking ahead: Succession Plan for Seats to be Vacated 5/05 Due to Graduations 
(at least 8 seats will be vacated): 
 Feb, March: City accepting applications; TYC to promote 

o Applications distributed to share with fellow students -  must be a Troy 
resident in grade 9 –12 as of Fall 2005.   

 April 27th TYC Meeting: TYC interview applicants and recommend students for 
appointment; brainstormed questions to ask in interviews 

 May: Send recommendations to City Council 
 May 18th TYC Meeting: New members attend meeting with outgoing members 
 August: Terms officially begin for new members 

 

bittnera
Text Box
J-01j



TROY YOUTH COUNCIL – DRAFT MINUTES   February 23, 2005 
 
 

 2

5. Troy Daze Festival Update: Youth Council Sponsored Entertainment Event 
 Seeking Members to Help  

o Recruit entertainment: band(s) 
o Recruit or serve as Master of Ceremonies 
o Coordinate publicity 

 
6. Motion to Excuse Absent Members Who Have Provided Advance Notification  
 

 Resolution # TY-2005-02-07 
 Moved by Shaw 
 Seconded by Kalinowski 

 RESOLVED, That members D’Amico, Herzog and Raj are excused.  
 Yes: All - 9 
           No:      None  
           Absent: 4 – Chong, D’Amico, Herzog, Raj 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 
7. Motion to Change May Meeting 

 
      Resolution # TY-2005-02-08 
 Moved by Shaw 
 Seconded by Wang 

 RESOLVED, That the May 25, 2005 meeting be re-scheduled to May 18, 2005 for reason 
           of May 25th being the last day of school for the Troy Public School District. 
 Yes: All - 9   
           No:      None  
           Absent: 4 – Chong, D’Amico, Herzog, Raj 
           MOTION CARRIED 
 
  

Youth Council Comments 
      PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

 
Next Meeting: Reminder Next Meeting: WED March 23rd 7:00 P.M. 

@ CITY HALL 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:32 P.M. 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Nicole Vitale, Co-chair 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Laura A. Fitzpatrick, Assistant to the City Manager 



bittnera
Text Box
J-03a



mccombca
Text Box
J-05







TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  

Carolyn F. Glosby, Assistant City Attorney  
DATE: February 28, 2005 

  
  

SUBJECT: Nancy Cook v. City of Troy   
 

 
 

 
We are pleased to advise you that the Oakland County Circuit 

Court, Honorable Michael Warren, has dismissed the lawsuit filed by 
Nancy Cook against the City of Troy.  

 
This case involved an alleged trip-and-fall on a City sidewalk, 

located at 561 Burtman, where the sidewalk was heaved approximately 
one inch.  The fall occurred on October 18, 2003.  In August 2003, just 
months before the fall, the sidewalk had been marked with a red dot for 
repair by City staff, after inspection.  The repair of this sidewalk was slated 
for the spring/summer of 2004.  Pursuant to our sidewalk program, the 
sidewalks are inspected in the summer.  This inspection process provides 
the necessary information for our annual sidewalk maintenance bid 
process.  Under this program, the actual sidewalk repair and maintenance 
occurs during the next spring/summer cycle.  This section of the sidewalk 
was actually replaced in May 2004.    

 
Plaintiff unsuccessfully argued that the City had breached our duty 

of reasonable repair, since we did not immediately repair the sidewalk, 
after discovering that it heaved approximately one inch in at least one 
location.  In response, we argued that the City maintained the sidewalk in 
reasonable repair.  This was evidenced by the fact that we had inspected 
the sidewalk, and had followed our process for repair.  In addition, there is 
a presumption that sidewalks, although not perfect, are in reasonable 
repair when there are deviations of less than two inches.  Upon 
information and belief, Ms. Cook was the only person to fall at this 
location, and there were no other injuries or incidents reported with the 
City.   

 
Judge Warren issued an eleven page written opinion on February 

10, 2005, after oral argument the preceding day.  We are awaiting entry of 
a final order closing the case.  As always, we would be glad to respond to 
any questions.          

     
  
 
    

bittnera
Text Box
J-06



TB GP  

   Memorandum 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
From: John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 

Gert Paraskevin, Director of Information Technology 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk 

Date: March 3, 2005 
Subject: Website Updates - E-Agenda Packet Format and Public Hearings 
 
 
As requested, the City Clerk’s Office and the Department of Information Technology have been 
reviewing a couple of suggested changes to the City’s website.   
 

1. Options for improving the download time and speed of the E-Agenda Packets.  
 

The Clerk’s Office has experimented with the preparation of the E-packet using a linking 
system to several individual PDF files. While it was determined that the end product 
would more quickly download for computer systems using dial up modems and older 
computer systems, it was determined that the ability to maneuver through the document 
would be compromised. The Clerk and Deputy Clerk will be attending an Adobe 
Professional design class to see if there are ways to overcome these areas of difficulty.   
 
The Clerk’s Office will produce the existing E-packet and experiment with other potential 
E-packet formats simultaneously over the next two to three Council packets to determine 
the impact of the proposed change along with any additional staff time or expense.  As 
an immediate response, an additional link will be added to the website right next to each 
E-packet that offers access to individual agenda items.  This will provide a faster 
response as the documentation for one item is much smaller then the entire packet. 
 

2. Offering Public Hearing Notice information. 
 

A new link has been added to the left hand side of the front page of the City’s website 
offering a link to Public Hearing information.   Navigating to that link will provide access 
to the public hearing notice and backup materials for upcoming public hearings.  Initially 
only City Council, Board of Zoning Appeals, Building Code Board of Appeals and 
Planning Commission Public notices will be posted on this site.   If this proves to work 
well the site will be expanded to eventually include all Public Hearings.  Attached are 
some screen shots of the new link and the Public Hearing Page. 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
J-07



 
Website Screen Shots 

 



March 2, 2005 
 
 
 

TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Study Item:  Charnwood Hills Options Relative to 
   Sanitary Sewer Installation 
 
 
 
At the meeting of January 24, 2005 City Council defeated the special assessment 
standard resolution #4 which would have initiated sanitary sewer installation in 
Charnwood Hills subdivisions.  In the aggregate, roughly 51 percent of the property 
owners were opposed to this assessment.  However, Council requested staff to 
reexamine this issue and come back with some options.  I’ll briefly outline these options 
and delve further into the matter during our table discussion. 
 
Option 1 - Reconfigure Special Assessment Districts
 
By looking at petitions submitted earlier, it’s possible to gerrymander districts in such a 
fashion as to obtain a clear majority of property owners in favor of a special 
assessment.  A related variable could also be septic failures in a given area as well as 
installation of new septic fields. 
 
There are two possible methods of achieving a redistricting in the above fashion: 
 
 a) Property owners can submit new petitions within the confines of the  
  proposed reconfigured area, or  
 

b) Council could spread the roll for these reconfigured areas without  
 obtaining signatures on a petition. 

 
Please know that a possible outcome resulting from exercising this option is that a 
septic failure outside the district could occur.  If this happens, the City would be 
obligated to extend a sanitary sewer line a reasonable distance to enable a hook-up.  
And every other home contiguous to the newly installed line would be required to hook 
up within 18 months.  At that point there would not be any petitions required nor could 
an appeal be filed as it would become a health/safety function to correct the septic 
failure.  Costs assessed to the property owner under this scenario would be through 
what’s called a benefit fee, which brings us to Option 2. 
 
 
 

bittnera
Text Box
K-01



Study Item:  Charnwood Hills Options Relative to Sanitary Sewer Installation 
March 2, 2005 
Page Two 
 
 
 
Option 2 – Benefit Fee Approach 
 
Unlike a special assessment, the benefit fee methodology enables property owners to 
pay the cost of the sanitary sewer installation over a 40-year timeframe, as opposed to 
20 years for a special assessment.  Again, where the special assessment is petition 
driven, the benefit fee approach is mandated without petition.  That’s the primary reason 
for allowing more time to have a property owner pay for the sanitary sewer.  Thus 
Council may use a benefit fee approach in tandem with a reconfigured special 
assessment district.  Please know that Council could also use the benefit fee approach 
in lieu of special assessment districts.  So too, the caveat mentioned above whereby 
there may be forced hook-ups beyond a given district due to septic failures is also 
applicable here. 
 
Option 3 – Wait for Senate Action on House Bill 4200 
 
The State House of Representatives has already passed the above-referenced bill and 
it now goes to the Senate.  Succinctly, this bill eliminates the requirement for homes to 
hook up to a sanitary sewer line within 18 months.  The salient benefit of eliminating this 
provision is that residents will be able to utilize their septic fields until such time as a 
failure occurs.  Then, a hook up and subsequent payments to the City would occur upon 
installation or some other time set by the City.  I’m not a future-teller, but my sense is 
that there’d be an overwhelming support for sanitary sewers in the Charnwood Hills 
subdivisions, and elsewhere, if the residents had the comfort of knowing they would not 
have to pay for the sewer line or hook-up costs until such time as their septic field failed.   
 
In terms of asphalt paving, City Management still maintains the position that paving 
projects should not take place until water and sewer lines are in place because they’re 
housed underneath the street.   
 
As always, please feel free to contact me should you have any questions. 
 
 
JS/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2005\03.07.05 – Charnwood Hills Options 
 
c: Lori G. Bluhm, City Attorney 
 Ivan Johnson, 6100 Windrush (Charnwood Hills Subdivision) 
 John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 

Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 Brian P. Murphy, Assistant City Manager/Services 
 Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 




























































































	AGENDA: March 7, 2005
	GOALS
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	A-1 Presentations:  No Presentations

	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	B-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	C-1  No Public Hearings

	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	D-1 Scheduling of Special Meeting – City Manager and City At

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	E-1a Approval of “E” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	E-1b  Address of “E” Items Removed for Discussion by City Co
	E-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	E-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	National Surveyor’s Week – March 13-19, 2005
	Recognition of Ruth I. Haugh on the Occasion of Her 90th Bir
	Recognition of Lorraine Dietz on the Occasion of Her 100th B

	E-4  Application for a new SDM License for Linens n’ Things
	E-5  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Opti
	E-6  Traffic Committee Recommendations – February 16, 2005
	E-7  Approval of Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT
	E-8  Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award: Lowest Bid
	E-9  Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder –
	E-10  Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Opt
	E-11  Standard Purchasing Resolution 11: Rejection of Bids –

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	F-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: a) Mayoral Appointments: Downtown Development Authority; b) City Council Appointments: Cable Advisory Committee; Historic District Commis
	F-2 Interagency Agreement – Rouge River National Wet Weather
	F-3 Request to Use Veterans’ Plaza for National Day of Praye
	F-4 Revisions Concerning Sanctuary Lake Municipal Golf Cours
	F-5 Schedule a Special/Joint Meeting with City Council and P
	F-6 2005 Magic of Fall – Troy Daze Festival Schedule - Fees

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	G-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  No Announcements Submi
	G-2 Green Memorandums:
	Mission, Vision and Values for Troy Employees
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Process Award –
	Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – 


	COUNCIL REFERRALS: Items Advanced to the City Manager by Ind
	H-1  No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	I-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS:
	J-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Troy Youth Council/Final – January 19, 2005
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Final – January 25, 2005
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – February 1, 2005
	Planning Commission/Final – February 8, 2005
	Troy Daze Committee/Final – February 8, 2005
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Draft – Febru
	Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – February 15, 2005
	Troy Ethnic Issues Advisory Board/Draft – February 15, 2005
	Troy Daze Advisory Committee/Draft – February 22, 2005
	Troy Youth Council/Draft – February 23, 2005

	J-2 Department Reports:  No Department Reports Submitted
	J-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter to Chief Nelson from Kelly Sigmon, Senior Plan Manage

	J-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizat
	J-5  Calendar
	J-6  Nancy Cook v. City of Troy
	J-7  Website Updates – E-Agenda Packet Format and Public Hea

	STUDY ITEMS:
	K-1  Charnwood Hills Options Relative to Sanitary Sewer Inst

	CLOSED SESSION:
	L-1 Closed Session – No Closed Session Requested

	RECESSED
	RECONVENED
	ADJOURNMENT



